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159. The Trial of Peter Cook, 8 Will. IIL:

M. . Rokeby. That'will be a fufficient Caufe, an Alsen, or beinga Villain 5 but where the Matter

if when they come to the Book, you objet that,
and be ready to prove it. "

Cook. Which 1s Sir Fobn Sweetapple ? [He was
[hewwn to bim.]

Cl. of Arr. There he .

Cock. 1 challenge him.

Cl. of drr. William Walker.

Cook. Sir, have you faid any fuch Thing that
you believe me guilty £

M. Walker. No, Sr.

M. Baker. My Lord, he is asking of the Jury-

man the Queftion.

M. F. Rokely. That’s a Fac the Prifoner fhould
prove upon hin.

M. Att. Gen, MyLord, he muft not aslk the
Tury that Queflion, Whether they have declared
before, that they will find him guilty ; that 15 to
make them guilty of a Mildemeanor.

M. Serj. Daruel. Is it any Mildemeanor for
me to fay, I think or believe fuch 2 Man is guilty.

M. 2t Gen. IF he be fummon’d to be of a
Jury, and declare his Opinion before-hand, 1t 13
a Mifdemeanor.

M. Sexj. Danall, Bat fuppofe it be before he
was fummon’d ¢ .

My, Att. Gen. If you make any fuch Objection,
you muft prove it, and not out of the Juryman’s
own Mouth.

Mr. Serj. Dariall. 1 think any Man, my Lord,
that comes to ferve upon the Jury, 1.2y be ask’d
any Queftion that does not make him guilty of any
Offence or Crime, or liable to any Pumfhment:
Now if any of thefe Gentlemen that are return’d
upon this Pannel, before the Summons have de-

clared their Opinion, that the Prifoner is guilty, or
ought to fuffer, with Submiffion, the Prifoner

may ask fuch a Queftion, Whether he have faid
{o, yea or nor

Mir:F. Pswell. He cannot upon a Payer Dire be
ask’d any fuch Queftion.

Az, . Rokeby. It is not denied to be a materral
Objection; but it mufi be made out by Proof,

L. C. 5. Treby. You pue it too large, Brother
Darnall, you may ask upon a Payer Dire, whether
he have any Intereft in the Caufe; nor fhall we
deny you Liberty to ask whether he be fitly qua-
lified, according to Law, by having a Frechold
of {ufficient Value; but that you can ask a Juror
or a Witnefs every Queftion that will not make
him criminous, that’s too large: Men have been
ask’d, Whether they have been convited and
pardon’d for Felony, or whether they have been
whip’d for Petty Larceny; but they have not
been obliged to anfwer ; for, tho’ their Anlwer
in the afirmative will not make them Criminal,
ot fubje them to Punifhment, yet they are Mat-
ters of Infamy; and if it be an infamous Thing,
that’s enough to preferve a Man from being bound
to anfwer, A pardon’d Man is not guilty, his
Crime is purged; but merely for the Reproach
of it, it fhall nor be put upon him to anfwer a
Queftion whereon he will be forced to forfwear
or difgrace himfelf. So Perfons have been excu-
fed from anfwering whether they have been com-
mitted to Bridewel! as Pilferers or Vagrants, or to
WNewgate for Clipping or Coining, ¢, Yet to be
fufpected or committed is only a Misfortune and
Shame, no Crime. The like has been obferved in
other Cafes of odious and infamous Matters which
were not Crimes indi¢table. But to keep to our

Cafe, ’tis true, a Juror may be challenged being

apparently carries Crime or Shame, it fhould be’
proved; the Outlawry fhould be proved, and fo
thould the berng @ Fillain,  Yet that 1s no Crime,
tho’ 1t be an Ignominy,

M, Serj. Darnall. But, my Lord, I take this to
be no manner of Infamy at all, there is nothing of
Crime, nor nothing of Reproach, but only a de-
claring of a Man’s Opinion.

L. C. 7. Treby. Truly, I think otherwife; I take
it to be at leaft a fcandalous Misbehaviour, and
defervedly ill-fpoken of, for any Man to prejudge,
efpecially 1n fuch a heinous Matter. I think itisa
very {hameful Difcovery of a Man’s Weaknefs
and Rafhnefs, if not Malice, to judge before he
hears the Caufe, and before the Party that is ac-
cufed could be tried.  But, it feems, by what the
Prifoner fays, that he would ask all the Jurors,
whether they have not faid, that he was gnilsy,
or that they would find him guilty, or that he
{hould be Aanged, or the like : Which (prefuming
him innocent) is to ask whether they have nort
defamed and flandered him in the higheft Degree;
and to force them to difcover that they have a
mortal Harred to him, and come with a malicious
Refolution to convict him: Which, admitting they
are not punifhable by our Law, yet are Things fo
deteftably wicked and fo {candalous, as are not fit
to be required to be difclofed by and againft them-
felves.

Mz, Serj. Darnall. Pray, my Lord, what is more
common than for a Man to fay, before he is fum-
moned to be upon a Jury, when he hears a Fact
reported concerning fuch a one, to fay I believe
he is guilty, or I am of Opinion heis, and ] am
fure he will be hanged, and yet there is no Crime
in this.

L. C. ¥. Treby. Truly, Brother Darnall, Iknow
not how you may approve of fuch a Man, but
I’ll affure you Ido not. I take the Queftion wot
to be concerning a Man’s difcour{ing fuppofitively;
as, if upon heartng News, or a Report of clear
Evidence, a Man fhould fay, Suppefing this 10 be
truey fuch ¢ Man is guilty, and I fhould find bim [o
if Twere of bis Jury. This might not be fufficient
to fet afide a Juror: For tlis has been a general
Difcourfe among the Subjects upon Occalion of
this Confpiracy ; and 1t imports that if Evidence
fhould not be #7#e and clear, he would acquit him.
And {o he s, as he fhould be, indifferent, But if
a Man, qualified for a Juror, affirm pgfitively that
fuch a Prifoner 1s guilty, and that he will find
him fo whatever Evidence or Proof be given or
made to the contrary, I think that may bea Mif-
demeanor punifhable as an owning and encourag-
ing of Falihood, Perjury, and Injuitice, and a Con-
tempt and Scandal to the Juftice of the Kingdom.
Tho’ 1 hope and believe that no Man hath fo de-
meaned himfelf.

M. F. Powell, In a Civil Cafe 1t would be a good
Caufe of Challenge., If a Man have given his
Opinion about the Right one way or other, may
you not upon a Yoire dire ask him whether he hath
given his Opinion one way or other? I believe it
may be ask’d in a Civil Caufe, becaufe he may have
been a Refferree; but if you make it Criminal it
cannot be ask’d, becaufe a Man 1s not bound to ac-
cufe himfelf; now the Difference lies in the Nature
of the Caufe, it is not Criminal in a Civil Cafe for
a Man to fay he was an Arbitrator in fuch a Cafe,
and, upon what appeared before him, he was of
fuch an Optnion.
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Mr. Att. Gen. But, my Lord, it is a different
Cafe to give an Opinion about the Right between
Party and Party, where a Man has been an_Arbi-
trator and fo in the Nature of a Judge, and
where a Man is to go upon a Jury in the Cafe of
Life and Death, and before the Evidence given,
he declares his Opinion without hearing the
Caufe,

"Sir. B. Shower. My Lord, we know feveral of
the Trials have been printed, and the Names of
feveral Perfons “mientioned, and upon reading of
the T'rials or converfing about them, Men are apt
to give their Opinions one way or other.

Mr. Serf. Darnal, It is only an Objection in
Cafe he has done 1.

My. F. Rokeby. But, Brother, how can you ask
him the Queftion ?

M. Serj. Darnal, If the Court are of Opinion
that it 1s fuch a Crime that it cannot be ask’d, as
tending to make a Man accufe himfelf of an infa-
mous Crime, then we fubmit 1t to you, and I
confefs we muft not ask 1t; but we cannot ap-
prehend that there is either Crime or Infamy in
it, tho' we think it is an Objection and a good
Caufe of Challenge.

Myr. B. Powys, I think, tho’ it be not fuch a
Crime as infamous upon which a Man 15 not to
be credited, for that is Infamy in the Eye of the
Law, whereby a Man is prejudiced in his Credit ;
yet however it is a fhameful Thing for a Man to
aive his Judgment before he hath heard the Evi-
dence, and therefore | think you ought not to ask
him it, to make him accufe himfelt, if 1t be an
opprobrious Matter upon him.

My, Serj. Darnal, Truly, my Lord, T always
took it to be the Rule, if the Thing asked to the

Perfon returned be not criminal nor infamous, the
Party that is ask’d ought to anfwer to 1,

L. C. ¥. Treby. I would fain know if you fhould
ask any of the Jury-men this Queflion, whether
he be guilty of all the Crimes that are pardoned
by the laft Aét of Grace, he be bound to anfwer
it 7

My, Serj. Darnal. Undoubtedly we cannot ask
any fuch Queftion; no, not to any one of the
Things therein menttoned.

L.C. . Treby. But yer you will force him to
difcover a Crime (if it be one) that is unpar-
doned.

Mr. F. Powell. Certainly you go too far, Bro-
ther, for no Man is oblized to charge himfelf with
what is Criminal, but whether this be Criminal to
fay, [ believe fuch a one will be banged, 1s of ano-
ther Confideration.

Nir. F. Rokeby. But T think it muft be proved
upon him if any Objection be made.

Sir B. Shower. My Lord, it will be no eafy
Thing to bring Witnefles to prove this matter,
and therefore we would have it from his own
Mouth.

My. F. Rokely, And it 1s a very hard matter
for a Man to be putupon proving every Difcourfe
that he has had about the publick Affairs of the
Time. *

Myr. Recorder. The Reafon of your Exception
is, that he has declar’d his Optnion before-hand,
that the Party would be hanged or would fuffer,
that’s 2 Reproach and-a RefleCtion upon a Wife
Man fo to do; and if they can prove it upon
him, let them do it : But whether you fhould ask
him fuch a Queftion, Whether he be a Fool or a
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Knave for the giving an Opinion one way of other,
that’s the Queftion before us, - .

- Mr. Serj. Darnal. My Lord, we do not offer it.
{\?I the Court as an ObjeCtion that he is not a wife

an. -

Mr. At Gen. But what a Man does utE,er im-
prudently, may occafion a Prejudice againft him,
arid therefore ought to be proved, and not he to
prove it himfelf, , ; |

L. C. . Trely. Elpecially being a Freeholder of
London, and taking notice of what is done in
London 3 and 1f he does take notice of the Ia&,
and does previoufly give his Opinion of a Matter
which he may be called upon a Jury to try, this
is an Indifcretion and a Reproach to him, and I
think a Mifdemeanour.

Mz, Serj. Darnal. My Lord, Tacknowledge ir
1s 1l done of him, that is, indifcrectly and not
wifely, and we would have difcreet and wife Men
upon our Jury.

My, Cowper. My Lord, Mr. Serj. Darnal will
make it folittle a Thing at laft, that it will amount
to no Caufe of Challenge, if it were even prov’d
againft him, which we infift it ought to be, it be-
ing their ObjeCtion, and the Party not being
bound to prove it agamnit himfelf; but truly we
think there is more in it than {o, becaufe it is an
unjuft prejudging of a Man before he is tried and
heard, and if fo, it is a Thing that he ought not
to accufe himfelf of, and therefore we oppofe the
asking any fuch Queftion.

Mr. Serf. Darnal, Qur Objettion is not becaufe
it is an Offence to declare a Man’s Opinion upon a
Faé reported, but becaufe it thews he has a fet-
tled Opinion againtt the Perfon of his Guilt, and
{o he is not fo equal a Man to try him.,

L. C. F. Treby. And 1s that like an honeft Man
and a Frecholder of London; (who ought to be
indifferent) to come with 2 fettled Opinion againt
a Man, when he is to be one of his Jury ?

M. Serj. Darnal. Well, my Lord, we have
been heard, and fubmit it to the Judgment of the
Court. ,

L. C. F. Treby. Truly, I think it reflects both
Difhonefty and Difhonour upon him, and there-
fore thefe Queftions ought not to be ask’d.  The
Quettion is #ot whether 2 Man (if ever fuch a Man
there were) that hath fo refolved and declared
fhall be fworn? No; heis not fit to ferve upon a
Jury. But the Queftion 1s, How this fhall be
difcovered, by his own Oath or by other Proof? [
think it ought to be made appear by other Proof,
if true. A Man attainted of Felony, Forgery,
falfe Verdié, or Perjury, ought not to ferve on a
Jury, yet he fhall not be examined concerning the
fame on a Poire dire. And if there be in Court a
Copy of fuch Judgment carefully examin’d and
kept by himfelf, he fhall not be forced to anfwer
whether it be a true Copy ; tho’ his Anfwer could
not fubje@t him to any further Penalty.

Mr. Serf. Darnal: My Lord, 1 hope no Gentle-
man of the Jury has done it. o

L. C. 7. Treby. 1 hope no Freeholder of London
is fo indifcreet or fo unjuft. But if any Man in
this Pannel have any particular Difpleafure to the
Prifoner, or be unindifferent, or have declared
himfelf fo, Ido admontfh and defire him w dif-
cover fo much in general; for itis not fit, nor
for the Honour of the King’s Juftice, that fuch a
Man fhould ferve on the Jury.

5C
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My, Serj. Darual. We hope fo too.. We hope
that all that are remrned upon the Jury are dif-
creet and impartial Men.

Cl. of Arr. Well, Sir, what fay you to this Gen-
tleman Mr. Walker ?

Cook. T challenge you, Sir.

Cl. of Arr. Nathanael Long.

Sir B. §hower. My Lord, we think he may ask
if they have a Freehold or no; becaufe the Law
requires that Qualification, and the Prifoner not
being able to prove the Negative, it puts the Proof
of the Affirmative upon the Perfon himfelt.

Mr. Att. Gexn, What does Sir Bartholomew mean?
would he have the Jury-men bring their Evidences
with them to prove their Freehold ¢

L. C.}. Treby. No fure, Mr. Altorney 5 but to
ask the Queftion was allowed him the laft Time,
and we will not deny him the fame juft Favour
now,

Cook. Are youa Freeholder, Sir, in London of
the Value of 10/ a Year?

Air. Long. Yes, Sir.

Cosk, Were you of the Grand-Jury when the
Bill was found againft me ?

Ay, Long. No, Str.

Cook. 1 challenge you, Sir.

Cl. of Arr. William Carbonell.

My, Carboiell, My Lord, Iam no Freeholder.

L. C. J. Treby. What, does he fay he has no
Freehold ?

Cl. of Arr. Yes, my Lord.

L.C. 7. Treby. Then he muft be fet ahde.

Cl. of Arr. Fofbua Eofter.

My, Fofter. My Lord, T am no Frecholder in
London neither,

My, A, Gen. My Lord, we defire they may be
fworn whether they have a Freehold or not.

Cl. of Arr. Hold Mr. Carbonell and Mr. Fofter
the Book. [Which was done feverall)] You
fhall true Anfwer make to all fuch Queftions as fholl
be asked you by the Conrt. o belp you God.

Mr. Att. Gen. Ask him if he hath not a Free-
hold in Londen ?

Mr. Carbonell. No, 1 have not.

Cl. of Arr. Have you or any Body in Truft for
you a Freehold in London of the Valueof 10/ 2
Year®

Mr. Carborell, No, Sir.

Cl. of Arr. Jofbua Fyffer, have you or any in
Truft for you any Eftate of Freehold in Leudon of
the Value of 10/ a Year?

Mr. Fofter. No, Sir.
~ Cl.of drr. Jofeph Billers.

- Cook. I defire they may be called in the Order
as they are 1in the Pannel ; you have not called
Fobn Bwen, who Is next.

Cl. of Arr. 1 do call themin Order; Asfor Mr.
Ewen, one hath made Oath that he 1s fick, and i3
not able to come hither, What fay you-to Mr.
Billers ¢ There he ftands. +

Cook. Sir,are you a Frecholder of 10/, a Year
within the City of Londos ?

M. Billers. Yes, Sir,

- Cook. Was you of the Grand-Jury, Sir, when
the Bill was found againft me ?

Mpr. Billers. No, Sir.

Cook. T challenge you.

Cl. of Arr. Fobn Child.

Cook. Sir, are you a Freeholder within the City
of London ¢

Mr. Child. Yes, Sir.
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Mr. Child. Yes, Sir.

Cook, Were you of the Grand-Jury when the
Bill was found againft me?

Mz, Child. No, Sir.

Cook. 1 challenge you.

Cl. of, Arr. Edward Leeds.

Cook. Sir, are you a Frecholder within the City
of London of 10/ a Year?

My, Leeds. Yes, Sir.

Cook. Were you of the Grand-Jury that found
the Bill againft me ?

My, Leeds. No, Str.,

Cook. I challenge you.

L. C. §. Treby. What Queftion was that he ask-

ed him? ~
Cl. of Arr. Whether he were one of the Grand-

Jury that found the Bull.

L. C. F. Treby. A very proper Queftion: For
an Indicter ought not to be a Trier,

Cl. of Arr. Thomas Clark.

Cook, Sir, are you a Freeholder within the City
of London of 10/ a Year.

My, Clark. Yes, Sir.

Cook. Were you of the Grand-Jury that found
the Bill againft me ?

Myr. Clavk. No, Sir.

Cook. 1 challenge you.

Cl of Arr. Nathan Green.

Cook. Are you a Frecholder, Sir, within the City
of London of the Value of 10/.a Year?

My, Green. Yes, Sir. :

Cook. Were you of the Grand-Jury that found
the Bill againft me ¢

Mr. Green. No, Sir.

Cook. T challenge you.

Cl. of Arr. Henry Sheroroke.

Csok. 1 have nothing to fay againft him.

Cl of Arr. Then hold Mr. Sherbroke the Book,
[WWhich was done.] Look upon the Prifoner. Yor
fhall well and truly try, and true Deliverance make
between onr Sovereign Lovd the King and the Pri-

foner at the Bar, (whom you jball have in Charge)

according 1o your Evidence.  So belp you God.

Then My, Sherbroke was put into the Place ap-
pointed for the Fury.

Cl. of Ari. Henry Dry.

Cook, Sir, are you a Freeholder in the City of
London of the Value of 10/, a Year?

My, Dry. Yes, Sir.

Cook, Were you of the Grand-Jury that found
the Bill againft me ¢

Mr. Dry. No, Sir.

Cook. Sir, 1 challenge you.

Cl of Arr. Fofeph Morewood,

Cook. Sir,Have youa Freehold in London of the
Value of 10/ a Year ¢

Mr. Morewood, ~Yes, Sir.

Cook. Were you of the Grand-Jury that found
the Bill againft me?

Mr. Morewood. No, Sir,

Cook. Sir, 1 challenge you.

Cl.of Arr. Richard Greenway,

Cook. Are you a Freeholder of 10/ a Year in
London 2

My, Greenway., Yes, Sit.

Caok. Were you of the Grand-Jury that found
the Bill againft me ?

M. Greenway, No, Sir.

Cook,
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Cook. Sir, I challenge you.
Cl. of Arr. Fobn Sherbrook.

Cook. Sir, Are you a Frecholder in the City of

London, of 10/ a Year?

Mr. Sherbrook. Yes, Sir.

Cook. Were you of the Grand-Jury that found
the Bill againft me?

Mr. Sherbrook. No, Sir.,

Cook. Sir, I challenge you.

Cl. of Arr. Thomas Emmes.

Cook. Are you a Frecholder, Sir, within the City
of London of 10/, 2 Year?

My, Emmes, Yes, Sir,

Cook. Were you of the Grand-Jury that found
the Bill againit me?

Mr. Emmes. No, Sir,

Cook, 1 challenge you,

CL of Arr. Samuel Fackfon.

Cook. Sir, Are youa Freeholder within the City
of Londos of 10/, a3 Year?

Mr. Fackfon. Yes, Sir.

Cook. Were you of the Grand-Jury that found
the Bill again{t me ?

My Fackfeis. No, Sir.

Cook. Sir, 1 challenge you.

CL of Arr. Henry Hunter,

Cook. Are you a Freeholder, Sit, in Londsn, of
the Value of 10/ a Year?

My, Hunter. Yes, Sir.

Cook. Were you of the Grand-Jury that found
the Bill agamnft me?

M. Huunter. No, Sir,

Cook. T challenge you,

Cl. of Arr. Fobn Deacle.

Cook, Stry Are youa Frecholder within the City
of London of the Value of 10/, a Year?

Myr. Deacle. Yes, Sir.

Csok. Were you of the Grand-Jury that found
the Bill againft me?

My, Deacle. No, Sir.,

Cook. 1 challenge you.

Cl. of Arr. Fobn Culium,

Cook. T accept of him. [ He was fworn. ]
Cl. of Arr. Thomas Shaw.
Cook, I accept of him, [ He was [zoorn, ]

Cl. of Arr. George Fuyce.

Ccok. Sir, Are you a Freeholder within the City
of Lendon of 10/, a Year?

Mz, Fuyce. Yes, Str.

Cosk. Were you of the Grand-Jury that found
the Bill againft me ¢

Mr. Fuyce. No, Sir.

Cook. I challenge you.

CL. of Arr. Richard Young.

Csok. T have nothing to fay againft him. [fe
was fwori. ]

Cl. of Arr. Fobiz Hedges.

Cook. Sir, Are you a Freeholder within the City
of Loudon of 10/ a Year?

Mr. Hedges. Yes, Sir.

Cosk. Were you of the Grand-Jury that found
the Bill againft me?

M. Hedges. No, Sir.

Cso%, 1 challenge you.

Cl. of Arr. Fobn Fames.

Cook. Sir, Are you a Frecholder within the City
of Loudon of 10/, aYear!?

M. FJames, Yes, Sir,

Cock. Were you of the Grand-Jury that found
the Bill againft me? :

Mr. Fames. No, Sir,
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Cook. I challenge you, ’
Cl. of Arr, Thomas Poole. ﬁ
Cook. Sir, Are you a Freeholder within the City

of London of 10/, a Year?

Mr. Poole, Yes, Sir. |
Cook. Were you of the Grand-Jury that found

the Bill againft me? .

Mr. Poole. No, Sir.

Cook. I challenge you,

CL of Arr. Peter Parker.

Cook, Sir, Are you 2 Freeholder in the City of

London of 10/, a Year?

My, Parker, Yes, Sir.
Cook. Were you of the Grand-Jury that found
the Bill againft me?

My, Parker. No, Sir.

Cook. I challenge you.

Cl of Arr. William Wilkinfon.

Mr, Wilkinfen, My Lord, I am no Freeholder:
in London.

[ 70 which be was fuwors.]

CL of Arr. Henry Mitchel,
~ Cuok. Hold, Sir, here Thomas Man in my Pannel
1S next,

Cl. of Arr, There 15 Oath made that he is fick
in Bed. ' What fay you to Mr, Mitchel? |

Cook. Sir, have you a Frechold of 10/, a Year
in the City of London?

My, Mitchel. No, Sir, [To which be was fworn. ]

Cl of Arr. Richard Ryder.

Cook, Sir, Have youa Freehold of 10/, a Year
i the City of London 2

Mr. Ryder. Yes, 1 have, Sir; but I live in a
Parifh that never ferve upon any Juries, nor ever
did in the Memory of any Man.

CL of Arr, But have you a Frechold of 10/, 3
Year?

Mr, Ryder. Yes, Sir.

Cook, Were you of the Grand-Jury that found
the Bill againft me?

Mr. Ryder. No, Sir.

Cook. Sir, I challenge you,

Cl. of Arr. Richard Temple.

Mr. Temple. My Lord, I am no Frecholder.
[0 which be was fwor ]

CL of Arr. Peter Walker.

Cook. Sir, are you a Frecholder of the City of
London of 10/, a Year?

My, Walker., Yes, Sir.

Cook. Were you of the Grand- Jury that found
the Bill againft me?

Mr. Walker. No, Sir.

Cook. 1 challenge you.
Cl. of Arr. Thomas Piftel,

My, Piffol, T am no Frecholder, [To which he
was fworn. ]

Cl. of Arr. Fobn Hunt.

My, Hunt. My Lord, my Name is miftaken;
my Name 1s Wilfiam Hunt, -

L. C. 7. Treby. ‘Then you muft go on to ane-
ther.

Cl. of Arr. Fobn Hardret.

My, Hardret, 1 am no Frecholder of 10/, 2
Year. [To which be was fworn.}

Cl. of Arr. Fobn Hammond.
Cock. Are you a Freeholder, Sir, of 10/ a

Year in London 2
Mr. Hammond, Yes, Sir.

5 C 2 Cook.
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Cook. Were you of the Grand-Jury that found
the Bill againft me?
Myr. Hammond, No, Sir.
Cook. 1 challenge you.
CL. of Arr. Fobn Cooper.
Cook. 1 accept of him. [He was fworn.]
Cl. of Arr. Folfelin Roberis.
Cook. Sir, Are you a Frecholder within the City
of Londor of 10l a Year?
Mpr. Roberts. Yes, Sir.
Cook. Were you of the Grand-Jury that found
the Bill agaift me?
Mpr. Roberts. No, Sir.
Cook. I challenge you.
Cl. of Atr. Fonathan Micklethwail.
 Cook, I have nothing to fay againft him. [He
1005 fworn. |
Cl. of Arr. Richard Chifwell.
Cook. Sir, Are you a Freeholder within the City
of Londoss of 10/, a Year?
Mpr. Chifwell. Yes, Sir.
Cook. Were you of the Grand-Jury that found
the Bill againft me ?
Mr. Chifwell, No, Str.
Cook. 1challenge you.
Cl of Arr. Fofeph Thompfon.
Cook. Sir, Are you a Freeholder of the City of
London of 10/ a Year?
Myr. Thompfon. Yes, Sir.
Cook. Were you of the Grand-Jury that found
the Bill againft me?
M. Thompfon. 1 was returned upon the Grand-
Jury, but did not ferve.
Cook. 1 challenge you,
Cl. of Arr. Edward Brewfter.
Cook. Sir, Are you a Frecholder of the City of
London of 10/, a Year?
Mr. Brewfler. Yes, Sir,
Cook. Were you of the Grand-Jury that found
the Bill againit me?
My, Brewfer. No, Sir.
Cook. 1 challenge you.
Cl. of Awr. George Gooday.
Mr. Gooday, My Lord, I am no Freeholder.
[To which be was fworn. ]
Cl. of Arr. Avrabam Hickmay.
Cook. Sir, Are you a Freeholder of the City of
Loudon of 10/, a Year?
Mr. Hickman. Yes, Sir.
Cosk. Were you of the Grand-Jury that found
the Bill againit me?
M. Hickinan, No, Sir,
Cook. 1 challenge you.
ClL of Arr. George Grove.
Cook. Sir, Areyou a Freeholder of the City of
London of 10/, a Year?
Mr. Grove. Yes, Sir.
Cook. Were you of the Grand-Jury that found
the Bill againft me ?
Mr. Greve., No, Str.
Cook. I challenge vou.
Cl. of Arr. Nathanael Wyer[den.
Cook. Sir, Are youa Frecholder of the City of
London of 10/, aYear?
Mr. Wyerfden. Yes, Sir,
Cosk. Were you of the Grand-Jury that found
the Bill againft me ?
Mr. Wyerfden. No, Sir.
Cock. 1 challenge you. My Lord, I defire to

know how many 1 have excepted againft,

Cl, of Arr. Oneand Thirty.
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My. Burleigh. Wtite, write,

Cl. of Arr, Samuel Blewirs.”

Cook. Sir, Are you a Frecholder of the City of
Londen of 10/, a Year ?

Mz, Blewitt, Yes, Sir.

Cook. Were you of the Grand-Jury that found
the Bill againft me?

Mr. Blewitt, No, Sir.

Cook. 1 challenge you.

ClL of Arr, Jobn Wolfe.

Cook. I accept of him. [He was fwvorn.]

ClL of Arr. William Smith.

Cook. Sir, Are youa Freeholder of the City of
London of 10/, a Year ?

My, Smith, Yes, Sir.

Cook. Were you of the Grand-Jury that found
the Bill againft me?

Mr. Smith. No, Sir.

Cook, T challenge you.

CL. of Arr, Fobu Bickley.

Mr. Bickley. My Lord, I don’t look upon my
felf as a Frecholder,

L. C. ¥. Treby. Why fo, Sir?

Mr. Bickley. 1 have a Leafe for one and Fifty
Years, my Lord, of my Houle, and there is a ve-
ry little Prece of Ground adjoining to it that was
very convenient for me to lay to my Leafe ; there
Is no way to 1t but through my Houfe; it is a
Thing that never was let for any Thing, and it
is not worth the Building.

L. C.F. Treby. What Eftate have you in it? Da
you pay 2 Ground-Rent for it ?

Mr. Bickley. My Lord, I bought that little Piece
of Ground for the Conveniency of my Leafe.

L.C. F.Treby, But did you purchafe it for Term
of Years, or to you, and to your Heirs?

Mr. Bickley. Nay, Ibought it forever, my Lord,

L. C. ¥ Trely. Thenyou havea Freehold in it.
What’s the Value of 1t?

M. Bickley. Truly very little, my Lord.

L.C. ¥ Treby. 1 don’t know any Body can
judge of the Value of it butyour {elf, Isit worth
10/.2 Year?

Mr. Bickley. My Lord, Ican’t value it at Ten
Pound a Year, it never coft me Forty Pound.

L.C.}. Treby, Then for Eftate you are well

enough, but for Value you are a little under.

CL of Arr. Thomas Collins.

Cook. Xaccept of him. [Hewas fworn.)

Cl.of Arr. Fobn Watfon.

Cook. I do not challenge him. [He was fworn.]

Cl of Arr. Benjamin Hooper. ’

Cook. 1 accept of him. [He was fworn. ]

Cl. of Arr, Fobn Wells.

Cook. Sir, Areyou a Freeholder of the City of
London of 10/,2 Year?

Mr. Wells, Yes, Sir.

Cook. Were you of the Grand-Jury that found
the Bill again{t me #
~ Mpr, Wells. No, Srr.

Cook. 1 challenge you,

Cl. of Arr. Fobn y-liﬂvm't.

Cook. Sir, Are you a Freeholder of the City of
London ot 10/.a Year?

Mr. Hibbart, Yes, Sir.

Cook. Were you of the Grand-Jury that found
the Bill againft me?

Mr. Hibbart. No, Sir.

Cook. 1 challenge you.

Cl. of Arr. Mr. Cook, you have challenged your

full Number. Call Daniel Wray, {He was fworn.}
Cl,
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Cl. of Arr. }'aZ;J: Pettit, [He was fworn,] Crier

Countez.
Henry Sherorook,

Crier. One, {J¢.
Cl. of Atr. Fobn Pettit,

Crier. Twelve good Men and true, {tand toge-
ther, and hear your Evidence,

The Names of the Twelve {worn are as follows:

Henry Sherbroon, Fokn Holfe,

Fobn Cullum, Thomas Collins,
Thomas Shat, Fobn Watfon,
Richard Young, Benjamin Hoopey,
Yobn Cooper, Daniel Wray, and
Fonath, Micklethwait, ) \ Fobn Pettit,

Cl. of Ari. Crier, Make Proclamation,

Crier. O Yes, If any one can inform my Lord,
the King’s Juftices, the King"sSerjeant, the King’s
Attorney-General, or this Inqueft now to be ra-
ken of the High-Treafon whereof Peter Cook, the
Prifoner at the Bar, ftands indi@ted, let them come
forth and they fhall be heard, for the Prifoner now
{tands at the Bar upon his Deliverence, and all
others that arc bound by Recognizance to give
Evidence againlt the Prifoner at the Bar, let themn
come forth, and give thenr Evidence, ot they for-
feit cheir Recognizance,

L. C. ¥ Treby. You muft make room for thofe
Twelve Gentlemen that are fworn, that they may
be at cafe; and for thofe that are not fworn, their
Attendance may be-fpared.

Cl of Arr. Peter Cosk. Hold up thy Hand.

[Which be did.} Gentlemen, you that are fworn,
look upon the Prifoner, and hearken to his Caufe.

He ftands indicted in London, by the Name of Pe-
ter Cook, late of London, Gentleman; For that
whereas an open and notorioully publick and moft
tharp and cruel War, fora great while hath been,
and it is by Land and by Sea carried on, and pro-
fecuted, by Lewss the Freach King, agamft the
moft Serene, moft IHuftrious and molt Excellent
Prince, our Sovereign Lord #illiam the Third, by
the Grace of God, of Englaud, Scotland, France,
and [reland, King, Delender of the Faith, &
All which rime, the faid Lewis the French King,
and his Subjeéts, were, and yet are IFoes, and Ene-
mics of our faid Lord the King that now 15, #7i/-
liam the Third, and his Subjelts, he the faid Pe-
ter Cook, a Subjedt of the faid Lord the King that
now is, of this his Kingdom of Zngland, well
knowing the Premifits, not having the Fear of
God in his Hearr, nor weighing the Duty of his
Allegiance, but being moved, and feduced by the
Infligation of the Devil, as a falfe Traitor againft
the f1id moft Serene, moft Mild, and moft Excel-
lent Prince, our Sovereign Lord, William the
Third, now King of Zigland, s Supreme, True,
Rightful, Lazwfel, and undoubred Lord, the Cor-
dial Love, and true, and due Obedience, Fideli-
ty, and Allegiance, which every Subjet of the
faid Lord the King that ncw s, towards him our
f2id Lord the King, fhould bear, and of Right s
bound to bear, withdrawing, and utterly to ex-
tinguifh, Intending, and Contriving, and with all
his Strength, purpoling, and defigning the Govern-
ment of this Kingdom of England, under him our
faid Lord the King that now is of Right duly, hap-
pily, and very well eftablifhed altogether to fub-
vert, change, and alter, and his Faithful Subjects,

Jfor High-Treafon.
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and the Freemen of this Kingdom of England, in.
to intolerable, and miferable Servirude to the a-
forefaid French King to fubdue, and enthral; the
Firlt Day of Fuly, in the Seventh Year of the
Reign of our faid Lord the King that now is; and
divers Days, and Times, as well before as after,
at London, 1n the Parifh of St, Peter Cornbil, in the
Ward of Lime-fireet, Fulfly, Malicioufly, Devil-
ifhly, and Traiteroufly did Compafs, Imagine, and
Contrive, Purpofe, and Intend, our faid Sove-
reign Lord the King that now is, then his Supreme,
True, Rightful, and Lawfu] Lord, of and from
the Regal State, Title, Honour, Power, Crown,
Empire, and Government of this Kingdom of Eng-
land, to depofe, calt down, and utterly deprive,
and the fame our Lord the King to Death, and fi-
nal Deftrution to bring, and the aforefaid Lewis
the French King, by Armies, Soldiers, Legions,
and his Subjects, this Kingdom of England to in-
vade, fight with, conquer and fubdue, to move,
incite, procure and affift, and a miferable Slaugh-
ter among, the Faithful Subjects of our faid Lord
King William, throughout this whole Kingdom of
England, to Make, and Caufe. And further, Thac
the faid Peter Cook, during the War aforefaid, to
wit, the aforefaid Firlt Day of Fuly, in the fe-
venth Year abovefaid, and divers other Days and
Times, before and after, at Lowdon aforefaid, in
the Parifh and Ward aforefaid, to the faid Foes,
and Enemies of the fame our Lord the King, did
adhere, and was affifting : And his aforefaid moit
wicked, and devilith Trealons, and T'raiterous
Compaflings, Contrivances, Intentions, and Pur-
pofes aforefaid, to fulfil, perfet, and bring to Ef
feft, and in Profecution, Performance, and Exe-
cution of that traiterous adhering, he the faid Pe-
ter Chok, as fuch a falle Traitor, during the War
aforefaid, to wit, the fame Firft Day of Fuby, in
the Year abovefaid, at Lowdon aforefaid, in the
Parifh and Ward aforefaid, and divers other Days,
and Times, as well before as after, there and elic-
where in London aforefaid, fallly, malicioufly, ad-
vifedly, fecretly, and traiteroufly, and by Force,
and Arms, with one Robert Charnock, Sir Fobu
Friend, and Siv William Perkins, Knights, (which
{aid Robert Gharnock, Str Fobn Friend, and Sir Wil-

liam Perkins, were lately {everally duly Convicted,
and Attainted of High-Treafon, in Contriving and

Confpiring the Death of our faid Lord the King
that now 1s) and with divers other falfe Traitors
to the Jurors unknown, did meet, propofe; treat,
confult, confent, and agree to procure from the
aforefaid Lewis the Frewch King, of his Subjetts,
Forces, and Soldiers, then, and yet Foes, and
Enemies of our fad Sovercign Lord #iliiam, new
King of Eigland, &¢. great Numbers of Soldiers
and Armed Men, this Kingdom of England to In-
vade and Fight with, and to Levy, Procure, and
Prepare great Numbers of Armed Men, and
Troops, and Legions againit our faid Lord the
King that now is, to rife up and be formed, and
with thofe Foes and Enemies, at and upon fuch
their Invalion and Entry within this Kingdom of
England, to join and unite, Rebellion and War
againft our {aid Lord the King that now 1s, within
this Kingdom of Zugland, 1o make, levy, and
carry on; the fame our Lord the King o, as afore-
faid, to Depole, and him to Kill and Murder :
And further, wich the {aid falfe Trattors, the fama
Firft Day of July, inthe Year abovefaid, ai Lep-
don aforcfid, in the Parith and Ward aforefaid,

traicerauily
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traiteroufly did confult, confent,and agree to fend
the aforefaid Robert Charnock as a Melflenger from
him the faid Pefer Cook, and the fame other Tral-
tors, as far as, and into the Kingdom of France,
in Parts beyond the Seas, unto Fames the Second,
late King of Eugland, to propofe to him, and to
requeft him to obtain from the aforefad French
King, the aforefaid Soldiers and Armed Men for
the Invafion aforefaid to be made, and Intelhigence
and Notice of fuch their traiterous Intentions and
Adherings to the faid late King Fames the Se-
cond, and the faid other Foes and Enemies, and
their Adherents, to give and thew, and them to
inform of other things, Particulars and Circum-
fiances thereunto referring, for the Affiftance, A-
nimating, Comforting, and Aid of the fud Foes
and Enemies of the faid Lord the King that now
is, in the War aforefaid : And to ftir up and pro-
cure thofe Foes and Enemies the readilier, and
more boldly this Kingdom of Eugland to 1n-
vades the Treafons, and traiterous Contrivances,
Compaflings, Imaginings, and Purpofes of the
faid Peter Cooke aforefaid, to perfect and fulfil;
alio the fame firlt Day of 7u/y, in the Seventh Year
abovefaid, at Lowdon aforefaid, in the Parifh and
Ward aforefaid, He the faid Peter Cook, divers
Horfes, and very many Arms, Guns, Muskets,
Piftols, Rapiers, and Swords, and other W eapons,
Ammunition, and Warlike Matters, and Military
Infiraments, falfly, malicioufly, fecretly, and
traiteroufly, did obtain, buy, gather together,
and procure ; and to be bought, gathered toge-
ter, obtained and procured, did caufe and in his
Cuftody had and detained to that Intent to ufe
the fame in the faid Invafion, War, and Rebell:-
on againft our faid Lord the King that now s,
him our faid Lord the King, of and from the Re-
oal State, Crown and Government of this King-
dom of Eugzland, to depofe, caft down, and de-
prive, and him to Kill and Murder; and the De-
figns, Intentions, and all the Purpofes ot him the
faid Peter Cook aforefud, to fulil, perfect, and
fully to bring to effect, againit the Duty of his
Allegiance, and agamnit the Peace of our faid So-
vereien Lord that now 1s, his Crown and Dignity,
as alfo againft the Form of the Statute infuch Cafe
made and provided.

Upon this Inditment he has been arraigned,
and thereunto has pleaded not Guilty, and for his
Trial hath put himfelf upon God and his Coun-
try, which Country you are, your Charge is to
inquire whether he be guilty of the High-Trea-
fon whereof he ftands Indiéted, or not Guilty 5 if
you find him Guilty, you are to inquire what Goods
or Chattels, Lands or Tenements, he had at the
‘Time of the High-Treafon committed, or at any
Time fince; if you find him not Guilty, you are
to inquire whether he fled for 1t 1f you find that
he fled for it, you are to inquire of his Goods and
Chattels as if you had found him Guilty ; if you
find him not Guilty, nor that he did fly for i,
you are to fay o, and no more, and hear your
Evidence.

Mr. Mompeffor. May it pleale your Lordfhip,
and you Gentlemen that are fivorn, this 1s an In-
di¢tment for High-Treafon again{t Peser Cook, the
Prifoner at the Bar, and the Indi@ment fets forth,
That whereas there has been an open and cruel
War for a long Time, and fhll is between his Ma-
ielty King William, and the French King, the
Prifoner at the Bar not weighing the Duty of his
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Allegiance, the firft of Fuly in the Seventh Year
of the King’s Reign, did compafs and intend to
depofe and deprive the King of the Title, Ho-
nour, and Dignity of the Imperial Crown of this
Realm, and likewife to put the King to Death,
and did adhere to the King’s Enemies; and to
fulfil thefe Trealons, he did confult with Charneck,
and feveral cther Traitors who were mentioned
there, and fome of whom have been found guilty
of Treafon, and executed for it, to {end over to
the Jate King Fames, to perfuade the French King
to fend over Soldiers and Arms to 1nvade this
Kingdom, and to raife an Infurrettion and Re-
bellion 1n it, and to deprive and put the King to
Death, and to compleat thefe Trealons, it further
fets forth, That the Prifoner at the Bar did pro-
vide feveral Arms and Horfes, and this 1s laid to
be againft the Duty of his Allegiance, againft the
King’s Peace, Crown and Dignity, and againft
the Form of the Statute 1n that Cale made and
provided ; to this he has pleaded not Guilty, and
tor Trial put himfelf upon the Country, and,
Gentlemen, if we prove thefe Facts Jaid in the In-
dictment, 1’s your duty to find him Guilty,

My. Ait. Gen. May it pleafe your Lordfhip, and
you, Gentlemen of the Jury, the Prifoner at the Bar
ftands indicted for High-Treafon.

Cook, My Lord Chuef Juftice, if your Lordfhip
pleafes, before the Witnefles are examined againft
me, [ intreat you that they may not be both in
Court together, that one may not hear what the
other fivears, tho’ I fuppofe it 1s the fame thing
for they have been together both now and the laft
Day.

}_r.. C. 7. Treby. Mr. Cock. 1 muft tell youit is
not neceflary to be granted for asking; for we
are not to difcourage, or caft any Sufpicion upon
the Witnefles, when there is nothing made out
againft them; butitis a Favour that the Court
may grant, and does grant fometimes, and now
does it to you; though 1t be not of neceflity : They
fhall be examined apart, but at prefent this is not
the Time of Examination; for the King’s Coun-
fel are now to open the Evidence before they exa-
mine the Witnefles; but when the Time comes
for the Witnefles to be call’d and examined, the
Court will, in favour to you, take care that your
Requeft be complied with.

Mr. Ait. Gen. May it pleafe your Lordfhip, the
Prifoner flands indicted for Fligh-Treafon, in com-
pafling and imagining the Death and Deftruction
of his Majefty, and likewife in adhering to ‘his
Majefty’s Enemies, thefe are the Treafons fpecified
in the Indi¢tment: The Overt-Aéts that are laid
to prove thefe Treafons are, That he with feveral
other Traitors, named in the Indiétment, did meet
and confuit, and agree to fend over Charnock 1nto
France, to invite the French King to make an In-
vafion upon the Kingdom, and did provide Arms
for that Purpofe.

Gentlemen, thz Nature of the Evidence that
you will have produced to prove the Prifoner
ouilty of thefe Treafons lies thus: It will appear
to you that there nas been for fome Time a Con-
fpiracy carried on by feveral Traitors, and wick-
ed Perfons, to fubvert the eftablifhed Govern-
ment of this Kingdom, and deftroy the Conftitu-
tion of England, by a foreign Invafion of the

French. You will hear thar this Conipiracy was
Jaid wide, and confilted of feveral Parts, one Part

was that of Aaffnating his Majefty s Royal Per-

fon,
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fon, and that was to be done firft, as a Prepara-
tion and Encouragement to the French to invade
the Kingdom : The other Part was the inviiing the
French King to invade us, and the Prifoner ac the
Bar is accufed of being concerned in that Part
that relates to the Invafion of this Kingdom, by
a French Power ; and though it may be the other
Part, that of Affaflinating the King, be the black-
eft Part of the Confpiracy, yet if the Prifoner at
the Bar has been engaged 1n the inviting a foreign
Power to 1nvade the Kingdom, my Lords, the
Judges, will tell you, 1n Point of Law, that is as
much an Overt-A& of the compafiing the De-
ftruttion of the King and the People of Euglaind,
and the Subverfion of our ancient good Conftitu-
tion, as if he had been concerned immediately in
the other Part, the Affaffination.

But now, Gentlemen, that the Prifoner was
engaged in inviting the Freuch to invade us, you
will hear proved by feveral Witnefles, that there
having been a Defign laft Year, juft before his
Majelty went to Flanders, to expofe his own Per-
{on for our Proteftion, and the Protetion of the
Liberties of Eurgpe, there was a Confpiracy to
murder him before he went to Flanders, which,
it feems, they were not ripe for them; but im-
mediately after he was gone to Flanders, you will
hear there were formal Meetings of feveral Gen-
tlemen and Perfous of Quality, among whom the
Prifoner at the Bar wasonc : There was a Meet-
ing in May, laft Year, atter the King was gone to
Flanders 3 and this was at the O King’s-Head in
Leaden-ball-ffreety and there were prelent, my
Lord of Aileshury, my Lord Montgomery, Sir
IWilliam Peikins, siv Jobn Friead, Wr. Charnock,
(all which three laft have fuffered the Punifhment
of the Law for their Trealon already) and
there were alfo Mr, Cook, the Prifoner at the Bar,
M. Porter and Mr. Goodiman 3 thefe Men did meet
together, to confider of the beft Ways and Means
of encouraging and inviting the French King with
an Armed Force to invade this Kingdom ; they
confidered that that was a proper Opportunity,
and did treat of feveral Arguments that might

erfuade to it : Firft, that the King was gone to
Flanders, and {o was not in Perfon here to defend
us; and that the Troops, to make good fuch
Defence, were in a great meafure drawn thither, to
affift the Allies again{t the French Power y they
did think likewife, that at that Time there wasa
oreat Difcontent and Diffausfaction n the Nation,
though 1 think in that they were greatly miftaken ;
and I believe and hope they will always find them-
{elves fo, to think that the People of Eugland are
fo Lttle fenfible of that which is the Means of

their Prefervation, as to hearken to any Difcon-
tents to encourage a French lf’c:._wer to come i‘nto
England to deftroy our Religion and Laibercies s
that indeed they did apprehend, though they
were miftaken, and I believe they always will,
when they go upon that Ground.

Gentlemen, Thefe Perfons thinking thisa pro-
per Opportunity, d%d agree to fend a Meflenger
into France upon this Meffage, 'L'o go to the late
King Fames, and perluade him to defire and pre-
vail with the French King to affilt him with Ten
Thoufand Men, 8oo0o Foot, 1000 Horfe, and 1000
Dragoons; and to encourage him, they promifed
their Afliftance here, as foon as he came over
and undertook, that between them, they could
{urnifh, and would raife 2000 Horle to meet him

at his Landing, and join upon fuch an Invafion,

for High-Treafon.

entlemen, At tlus Meeting this was agreed

upon by all that were there, whereof the Prifoner

was one ; and they did agree to fend Mr. Char-
nock, (who has fince been executed, and a prin-

cipal Encourager of the Defign, and Aor in it)
he was the Meflenger that was appointed to go
upon this Errand, and Mr, Charneck was refolved.
to go, buc defired another Meeting of thefe Gen!
tlemen, to know 1f they continued in their for-
mer Refolutton, that he might have all the AL
furance that was reafonable to give the French
King Encouragement to make the Invafion : Ac:
cordingly another Meeting was had of moft of
the fame Perfons that were at the Meeting before ;
particularly the Prifoner at the Bar was at that
Second Mecting, which was in Covent-Garden ar
one Mrs, Mountjoy’s, who keeps a Tavern next
Door to Sir Jobn Fenwick’s Lodgings 5 there they
met upon the fame Defign, and upon Confulta-
tion had, and the Queftion ask’d, they did agree
to continue in the former Refolution, and upon
that, immediately Mr. Charnock went into Fyance,
to follicit Forces from thence to invade us: but
1t happened, as 1t feems, that the Freuch King’s
Forces were otherwife employed, fo that he cou’d
not fpare fo many at that time; and this Return
was brought by Charnock to the Gentlemen that
employed him ; that he had fpoke with the Iate

King, who gave him that Anfiwer, That the French
King cow’d not fpare fo many Men at that time;

but he thank’d them for their Kindnef.

~ Gentlemen, This will be the Nature of our
Evidence, to thew, that the Prifoner at the Bar
was concerned in that Part of the Confpiracy
which relates to the French Invafions and if he
be guilty of that, in point of Law, he is as much
guilty of the Confpiracy, to depofe and murder
the King, as if he had been concerned in the o-
ther Partof Aflaflinating his Royal Perfon; and I
believe no Body can think that thofe that were to
a¢t in the Affaflination; wou’d have attempted to
engage 1n {uch a defperate Defign, if it had not
been for the Encouragement of the French Inva-
{ion that was to fecond them afterwards if they
fucceeded ;5 fo that no Body can extenuate the
Crime of the Invafion, becaufe as to the Horrid-
nefs of the Attempt, it is lefs black than the
other ; they are both Crimes of a very high Na-
ture, and equally High-Treafon ; and if we prove
the Prifoner guilty of this Part, we hope you will
find him guilty.

Mpr. Soll. Gen. My Lord, we will call our Wit-
nefles and prove the Matter, as it has been opened,
Call Captain Porter and Mr, Goodman.

Mir. Sers. Darnal, Now, my Lord, we muft de-
fire that that may be done which our Client de-
fired before, and which your Lordthip was fa-
vourably plealed to promife, that the Witneffes
may be examined apart.

L.C. F.Tredy. Let it be fo: Who do you be-
ain with ?

Mr. Soll. Gen. We begin with Captain Porter,
my Lord.

L. C. 7. Trety. Then let Mr, Goodmar with-
draw.

M. Baxer. Let Mr. Goodman go up Stairs, and
we will call him prefently. -

M. Soll. Gen. Swear Captain Porter : [Which
was doe.] Captain Porter, Do you know Mr.,
Cook, the Prifoner at the Bar ?

Capt, Porter, Yes, my Lord.
M,.
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Mr. Soll. Gen. Do you remember a Meeting of
fome Gentlemen at the King's-Head-Tavern in
Lzraden-ball-ffreet.

Capt, Porter. Yes, I do, S,

Mr. Soll. Gen. Then pray give an Account of
the Company that were there, the Time when,
and what pafs’d.

Capt. Porter. My Lord, the laft Year we had
two Meetings; the Firft was in May, the other
was the latter End of May, or the Beginning of
Fune; the Firlt was at the Kiug’s-Head in Leaden-
ball-fireet; there were my Lord of Aylesbury, my
Lord Montgomery, Sir Sobn Fenwicky Siv Fobn
Friend, Siv William Perkins, Mr. Charnock, Mr.
Cook and my felf; Mr, Goodmean came in after
Dinner ; at this Mecting it was confulted which
was the beft Way and the quickeft to reftore
King Fames, and haften his Return into England;
feveral Difcourles and Propofals there were; at
latt 1t was agreed to fend Mr. Charnock to the late
King to borrow of the French King Ten Thou-
fand Men, 8ooo Foot, 1000 Horfe, and rcoo
Dragoons, to be {ent over into Eugland to afhift
the King’s Reltoration, Says Mr., Charnock there-
upon, this the King can do without your fending,
and I would not go upon a foolith Errand. What
will you do to affift in this Matter 7 The Compa-
ny defired him to promife King Fames, that if
he would fend Word when he Landed, and where,
they wou’d be fure to meet him at his Landing
with a Body of 2000 Horfe.

My, Att, Gen. Was the Prifoner at the Bar in
the Company, and prefent at this Refolution?

Capt. Porter. Yes, he was,

Mr. Att, Gen. Did all the Company agree to
it 8

Capt. Porter. Yes, they did.

Mr. Att. Gen. What Signs were there of their
Agreement ? Did they ftand up feverally and de-
clare their Agreement, or how ?

Capt. Porter, My Lord of Aylesbury and Sir
Jobn Fenwick did rife up, and defired Captain
Charnock, that he would go upon this Errand:
And when the Queftion was ask’d feverally of all
there prefent by Mr. Charnock, whether he might
affore the Xing of what they had told him?
Lvery one faid yes, you may; and Mr, Cook
kneel’d indeed upon a Chair, and faid, Yes, you
may.

J%r@*. A, Gen, Did he give his Confent to ic?

Capt. Porter, Yes, he anfwered in thofe very
‘Words.

Mr. Soll. Gen. Do you remember any Meeting
of any Company at Mrs. Mountjoy’s ?
~ Capt, Porter. Yes, that was a fecond Meet-
Ing,
ng. Soll. Gen. Pray tell my Lord and the Jury
how you came to meet there then, what Compa-
ny were there, and what pafs’d.

Capt. Porter. Mr, Charnock defired another
Meeting, to fce if the Gentlemen kept to their
former Refolution ; and we met at Mrs. Mount-
joy’s exght or ten Days after, and there were moft
of the Company that was at the firft Meeting,
and there all that were prefent did affure Mr.
Charnock that they kept to their firlt Refolution,
and wou’d abide to what was agreed upon at the

former Mecting.

Mr. Ait, Gen. Who were prefent at the fecond
Mecting ?

Capt. Porter. The Prifoner at the Bar wasthere
at that fecond Meeting,
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Mr. Ait. Gen.. What was that fecond Mecting
for, do you fay? '

Capt. Porter, It was to give Mr. Charnock Aflu-
rance, that we were agreed to ftand by the Re- -
folution taken at the firft Meeting.

Mr. Att. Gen. Whatdid Mr. Charneck do after-
wards 2

Capt. Porter. I went away from themy there
was Sir William Perkins, Swv Fobn Friend and
Captain Charnock went to the Queen’s-Head Ta-
vern 1n Fleet-fireet, and Captain Charnock told me
he would go in two or three Days, and I believe
did fo.

Mr. . Gen. When did you fee him after-
wards ?

Capt. Porter. When I was a Prifoner upon the
Account of the Riot in Diury-Lane 3 about two
or three Days after I came to Newgate he came
to fee me, and faid he had been in France 3 and
that King James thank’d us for our kind Offer,
but the French King could not fpare {o many Men
that Year ;3 and he told me he had been with my
Lord of Aylesbury, and the reft of the Gentdemen
that had employ’d him to go over, and had deli-
vered them the feveral Mellages that he was or-
dered to from the King.

L.C. 7. Ireby. Captain Porter, who were pre-
fent at the fecond Meeting, do you fay ?

Capt. Porter. My Lord of dylesbury, Sir Fobu
Friend, Siv William Perkins, Captain Charnock,
Mr. Cook and my felf; I cannot tell whether my
Lord Mbontgomery or Mr. Goodman were at that
fecond - Mecting or no.

Mr. Att. Gen. Capt, Porter, I would ask you
another Queftion: You were concerned in the
Aflaffination with thofe other Perfons that engag-
ed in 1t; Pray what Safety did you propofe to
your felves after the Affaffination was over ?

Capt. Porter, My Lord, I asked Sir George
Barclay what we fhould do after the Fadt was
committed : Says he, you need fear nothing, I
will go away that Night, I have a Ship ready, and
the King will be Landed in five or fix Days after-
wards ; if you’ll but keep yourfelves clofe for
fo many Days, all will do well. |

Ady. Soll. Gen, 1f the Prifoner or the Council
gill‘ ask him any Queftions, my Lord, they may

0 it.

Sir B. Shower. Pray, Sir, can you recollet what
Time of Day this was that this Debate and Refo-
lution were had at the O/ King’s-Head in Leades-
ball-fireet.

Capt, Porter, ‘Truly Sir Bartholomew, 1 can’t
tell.

Sir B, Shower. Pray, by what means do you
recollect that this was in the Month of Mgy ?

Capt. Porter. Becaufe Capt. Charnock was ab-
fent at the Dog-Tavern Riot, which was the
Tenth of Fumne.

Sir B. Shower. Was 1t not in 4pril 2

Capt. Porier. No, Sir; to the beft of my Re-
membrance 1t was.in May,

Sir B. Shower. What makes you think it was
in May rather thar: April?

Capt, Porter. 1 have told you, Sir, becaufe both
Meetings were before the Dog-Tavern Riot, the
Tenth of Fune, and Mr. Charnock was not there
at that Time; but he told me afterwards he had
been mn France, and there were eight or ten Days
Difference between the two Meeungs.

Mr.
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Mr. Att. Gen. My Lord, if they have done with
him, I would ask him one Queftion, to fettle
this Matter in point of Time. Capt. Porter,
Was the King gone to Flanders when you had
thefe Meetings?

Capt., Porser. The King was gone, Sir, before
the firflt Meeting.

Mr. Att. Gen. 'The King did not go til] feveral
Days in May; was Mr. Goodman there ?

Capt. Porter. He was at the firft Meeting, but
I can’t tell whether he was at the Second or no.

Mr, Serj. Darnal. Pray what Time was Mr.
Goodman there at the firft Meeting ?

Capt. Porter. He came up after Dinner at the
f11tt Mecting,

Mr. Bsxer. Then call down Mr. Goodizan, who
came in, and was fworn,

Mr. 8ol. Ges. M. Goodman, Pray will you give
my Lord and the Jury an Account what you know

of anintended 1nvafion upon this Kingdom ; what
were the Circumitances of it, and who were con-

cerned 1n 1t

My, Goodizan. My Lord, about the Middle of
May laft, or thercabouts, Captain Poiter fent to
me, and told me there was a Meeting of fome
Gentlemen of our Acquaintance at the Ajug’s-
iead in Leaden-hall-fireet 5 and he defired me
that [ would be there, becaufe it was abour Bu-
fin<{v: I told him I did not know whether { cou’d
be there at Dinner; but however, I wou'd not
iail of coming thither after Dinner ; and accord-
ingly I came, When I came inte the Houle, I
fent up my Name to Capt. Porter, and he came
down and brought me up Stairs, and there I faw
my Lord Adontgomery, my Lord of dyleshury,
Siv Jobn Fenwick, Sir JVilliam Perkins, Sir Jobn
Friead, M. Charaock, and that Gendleman at the
Bar, Mr. Cosk : When we were there, the Dif-
courle was, that we did think King Fanzes’s com-
ing was retarded, and we wou'd do any thing to
iacilicste his Reftoration.

Cook. My Lord Chief Juflice.

L. C. F. Treby. What fuy you, Mr. Cook?

Cook. My Lord, Ifyour Lordfhip pleaies, I de-
fire the Jury may not be talk’d to by any Body;
and I underftand there are lome talking with the
Jury.

L.C. . Tieky. Fy vponit, we will lay any
Body by the Heels that do {o, they mulk neither
Be difturbed, nor inftructed by any Body.

Cook. My Lord, I am informed there was fome-
bedy ralking to them, and telling them chis was
the tame Cafe with Sir Fobn Friead.

L.C. 7. Treby. Do you but fhew us the Man,
~nd we will find another Place for him; we will
icnd him to the Gaol, 'l aflure you.

Mr. Burleich, This Geatleman, my Lord, did
hear foch a Bifcowfe to the Jury (pointing to
a Gentleman there) who {tood up.

niy Lord, Icannot pofitively fwear to the Man,
but Tdid hear fome Difcourfe that it was the fame
I vidence as in the former Trial.

L.C.}. Treby. If you can thew us who it was,
we will 12ke care to punith him @ 1 fuppofe he
fiands Corrected 5 and if we knew who he was,
he thou’d ftand Committed.

Mz, dtt. Gen. Pray, Mr. Geodman, begin again,
and tell what pafs’d at that Meeting, becaule the
Tury were interrupted from hearing by People’s
buzzing about them,

Vor. V.
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Mr Goodman. My Lord, When Captain Porter
brought me up into the Room, I toid-you what
Gentlemen I found there; after we were fet
down, there was 2 Confultation, that confidering
the Freach King’s Wars retarded the Affair of
{ending back King Fasmes, and the Means of re-
{toring him to the Crown, it was fit we fhou'd
find out fome Way or Method to facilitate his
Reftoration, and it was thought convenient to
have a Meflenger to fend over to King Fases
with Propofals for that Purpofe ; to this effe&,
as near as [ remember, That it King jaies cow’d
prevall with the French King to furnith Ten'Thou-
fand Men, whereof §ooo to be ooty 1000 Horfe,
and 1000 Dragoons, we wou'd endeavour to meet
him at the Head of as many Horle as we cou’d
raife, to f{uftain thofe Forces at their Landing :
This was debated in order to come to a Refoluti-
on; and much Difficulty there was how many the
Number thould be 3 the Man pitched upon to be
{ent, was Mr. Charneck; and aiter fome Debare,
how many Thoufand Horfe couid be railed:
Says Mr. Charaoecky, don’t let me go over upon a
foolith Errand, bur et me know what I have to
fay exatly: Thereupon 1t was concluded by all,
that T'wo Thouiand Horfe fhould be the Number
we cou'd promile, and the King might depend
upon them ; and if we brought more, fo much
the better 3 and Sir Fobu Friend {aid, I believe
he has fo many Friends here, that if he came him-
{elf, he might be welcome; but that we did not
think fit to truft to; and no Body wou’d advife
any fuch thing ; when the Refolution of the Thing
and the Number was thus fixed, Mr. Chariock
ask’d whether it were with all our Confents? and
that he might affure the King, that this was our
Rclolution thereupon? We all rofe up, and faid
vo him, Z2es, yon may, yes, you wmay, CVery one
particularly ; and Iremember one Thing particu-
larly concerning the Prifoner Mr. Cool, T'hat he
kneel’d upon the Chair when he faid, Zes, you
may 3 and his Elbows were upon the Table: This
is all that | know of that Meeting. There was
to be another Meeting, as Caprtain Porter told
me; but I had Bufinefs in the City 5 bur what-
foever he promifed on my Behalf, as to the Quota
of Men, 1 wou’d be fure to make it good; and }
was not at the {fecond Meeting.

Mr. dtt. Gei. Did you fee Mr. Charnscs after-
wards ?

Mr. Goodman. Yes, I did, when he came back;
and he told me the Thing was not accepred, for
the Freach King cou’d not {pare Men, and that he
had been with the feveral Gentlemen to cary
them the Compliments thar he had in Charge from
King Fanes, who returned them Thanks tor their
good Affection; and among the reft, he did me
the Honour to return me Thanks too.

Sir B. Shower, Pray, Mr. Goodmian, let me ask
you 2 Queftion: When was it that you faw Mr.
Charnock atter this?

Mr. Goodman. It was in Aruadel-fircet, at his
Lodgings.

Sir B. Shower. But 1 ask you, Sir, when it
was ? Was it before or after the Tenth of

Fung 2
Mr. Goodman., It was after the Tenth of Fune,

Str.,
Sir B. Shewer. How long after, pray ¢
Mr. Goodman. I believe it was a Month after

the Tenth of Fune. _
§ D Sir
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Sir B. Shower. Did you fee him hese in England
before Mr. Porter was dilcharged from the Riot,
and came out of Newgate ?

My, Goodman. 1 belicve I did fee him before
Caprain Porter was difcharged, long.

Mr. Serj. Darnal. Who were the Perfons that
were prefent at that Meeting?

My, Goodman. My Lord Meutgomery, my Lord
of Aylesbury, Sir Fobu Fenwick, Sic Fobn Friend,
Sir William Perkins, Mr. Charnock, Captain Por-
2¢r, and the Prif mer at the Bar, Ms. Coo.

Mz, Sev]. Darnal. Were you at Dinner with
them, Sir? _

M. Goediai. No, I came 1n after Dinner,

M. Serj. Darnal. Pray what Houlfe was 1t, do
you fay, this Meeting was at ? |

M. Goodiman. It was at the Aiug’s-Head 1n
Leadei-hall-flreet.

Sir B. Shower. Can you tell what Day of the
VWeek 1t was®

My, Goodinan, No, nor the Day of the Month.

Sir. B. Shower. Was you ever in the Company
of thefe Gentlemen at any other Time?

Mr. Goodmain. No, this was the only Time that
I heard of this Confultation; I was not at the {e-
cond Meeting.

Cook. If your Lordthip pleafes, may I ask A
Govdinain any Queltions ?

L.C. 7. Treby. Yes, by all Means ask him what
you will.

Cook. Ar. Goodmaz, You are upon your Oath:
but did you ever hear me {peak ten Words in
vour Life? Was you ever in my Company in any
Houle, before or fince ?

M. Geodman. Y e:, Sir; 1 wasinyour Company
at the Cock in Bow-firees, where you came in ac-
cidentaily.

Cook. Did you ever hear me talk of the Go-
vernment, or any ‘Thing of that Nature?

Ar. Goodwan. What the Dilcourle was of;
cannot particularly {ay, but Iam certam you was
there © And as to tue Confultation that | now
{peak of, I remember vi v well you gave your
Confent in that Manncr as I have tola the
Courrt,

My, z1. Gen. My Lord, we have done at the
prefent.

L. C.¥. Tiely. Then, Brother Daiial, what
{.y you tor the Prifoner ?

A, Sery. Darnal. May it pleafe your Lordihip,
and you Gentlemen of the jury: I am of Coun-
fel, inthis Cale, for the Prifoner at the Bar, Af.
Cesk, who {tands indicted of a very great Offence,
ro lefs, Gentlemen, than High-Treafon; and if
he be Guilty, his Punithment will be as great :
But becaufe the Punifhiment and the Offence are
both very great, the Law requires exact pofitive
Proof, and that by two credible Witne{ies, There
have been two indeed that have been produced
to you; and it you believe both of them; after
what we fhall offer to you againft them, and if
what they (wear be true, the Priforer is Guilty :
But if we fansty you that either of them is not
to be credited, {o that you do not believe both
of them, he muft be acquirted.

There 1s no doubt, Gentlemen, but there has
been a Villainous Horrid Plot 5 there is no que-
ftion of it 3 and 1t was, as it has been opened,
batcly to Affaflinite one of the bravelt Men liv-
ing ; and to makc the happiclt People in the
World, if they know when they are o, the mott
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miferable People upon Earth, by bringing them
under Freach Tyranny and Slavery. Many of the
Traitors have been brought to juft Punithment
for this Trealon; nay, they have own’d the Fact
at their Dearths, fo that there is no queftion of the
Truth of it ; and therefore, Gentlemen, every
honeft Man will endeavour to bring fuch as are
plainly guilty, of fuch an abominable Confpiracy,
to juft Punithment; but vetthey will be ascareful
not to let an innocent Man fuffer; that, Gentle-
men, every honelt Man will take care of; and ef~
pectally fuch as are upon their Oaths: It concerns
a Jury highly to be fatistied, that he s not inno-
cent, whom they bring in guilty; forit is better
that Twenty guilty Men fhould cfcape, than one
innocent Man {uffer. .

But, Gentlemen, 1f my Brief be true, we fhall
give you fuch an Account of one of thefe Wit-
nefics 3 firfty, as to the Mun himlelf; that he is
not a Man to be credited as 2 Witnefs; and then
befides that, as to the Evidence he gives in this
Cafe 5 (I fay, if my Brief be true) it is falle,
and we fhall prove it fo 5 and when you have
heard our Evidence, 1If you ave fatisfied that one
of thele Witnefles 1s not to be credited, or that
what he {wears is not true, you are to acquit the
Prifoner.

Gentlemen, Herc has been one Mr., Goodimas
produccd as a Witnefs, one that never was pro-
duced before at the Trial of any ot thofe that
have fuffered, fo that the Truth of their Guilc
does not at all depend upon his Evidence, nor
does it give any Credit to it. This is this Gentle-
man’s firft Entry upon this Stage; and yet (if my
Brief be true) this 1s not the firft bloody or cruel
Part that he has aéted; for we have a Record of
Conviltion againft him, whereby it willappear to
you, that he was indicted (for Endeavouring to
poifon twao great Dukes) for giving forty Guineas
to an frafien Empirick, one Amydei, and promi-
fing two Hundred Pounds more when it was effeét-
cd, to poifon the late Duke of Grafron, and the
prefent Duke of Northumberland 3 and we fhall
fhew you, that he was conviéted of it, and fined
a Thoufand Pound for the Offence ; which, con-
{idering the Mcanncfs of his Circumftances at that
Time, was as much as T'wenty Thoufand Pounds 5
for he could as well have paid Twenry as Qne
then; and it appears too, that Afr. Goodmas (nay,
it will not be denied by him himf{clf) was in this
horrid Plot; and he that wou’d be concern’d to
poifon two Dukes in a Family, to which he had
{o many Obligurions- ,

M. Goodman. My Lovd, Idefire leave to fpeak
to this Matter that the Scrjeant mentions.

Mr. Seiy. Daraal. Pray, >ir, let me goon; you
may talk anon; I have feen the Copy of the Re-
cord of Conviction, and have it ready to pro-
duce,

Mr. Att. Gen. By Goodwmai, be quiety and ftay
till by and by ; you will be defended, no Doubt
on it ; but in the mean time lct them go on,
and don’t interrupt them.

Mr. Sery. Darnal. 1 fay, my Lord, he thar
wou’d be concerned in fo vile an A€, as 2 Con.
trivance to take away the Lives of two great
Dukes, (who were, 1n eftect, his young Matters)
that he thou’d go to poifon them in a Family to
which he had been fo much obliged ; and then
he that wou'd be concerned in fo horrid a PPlor a;
this was, to deftroy his Country, and take away

the
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the Life of the King; fure it will be no difficult
Thing to think that this Man will not ftick at the
lictle Prifoner’s Life at the Bar, efpecially when
he has fo great a T'emptation to it, as to fave
his own Life by it. |

But perhaps fome of you may doubt whether -

it is to fave his own Life or no: But I believe
there are none of you would give any Credit to
him, if you thoughtfo: Theretore, to fatisty youn
of that Fact, we fhall produce you Evidence of
his own Opinion of that Matter, befide the sene-
ral known Circuml{tances he lay under; As, That
he was long in Prifon before he charged the Pri-
foner with any Thing, and the Prifoner was at
Liberty, went every Day abroad for a Week af-
ter Mr. Charnock’s Trial, and never abfconded
one Minute, but lived publickly, openly and vi-
fibly to all his EFriends, and all Strangers : But be-
fides, Gentlemen, that Mr, Goodman knew he
muft die,and jultly and defervedly for this horrid
Plotand Treaion himfelt 5 and had no othery Way
lcftto lave his Liie, but to come in thusas an Bvi-
dence and Acculer, which we think will fhake his
Credit with you.

I fay, befides all this, (if my Brief be true) we
{liall prove that he has faid himfelf, That either
he mult hang Peter Gook, or he muft be hanged
himf{elf. Thus, Gentlemen, he {wears to fave his
own Life, by taking away another’s.

This, Gentlemen, is as to the Man him[eif,
that he is not to be credited. But now further,
as to the Evidence that he has given; He tells
you that he camcinto the Tavern in Leaden-hall-
ftreet, and that there he found fuch Cnmpany; he
owns he came inafter Dinner s and that the other
Gentleman, Mr. Porter, owns too; he fays there
were prelent ar this Mecting, my Lord Montgoe
aeryy my Lord of Ayleshuiyy Mr. Cook, and feve-
ral other Gentlemen; but (if my Brief be true)
we fhall prove by three Witnefles, that he was
not there till they were gone ; and that will make
an End of al] the Pretence of his Evidence.,

Myr. Att. Gen. Nay, then we fhall never have
done.

My, Serf. Daraal. Tl affure you, Sir, I have
the Names of three Witnefles in my Brief, to
prove that my Lord ot Aylesbury, my Lord
Montgomery, and Mr. Cook, were gone before he
came in, tho’ ifany, oreither of them were gone,
it deftroys his Teltimony ; and if we prove this
to you, | would be loth to be one of the Jury
that fhould take away the Prifoner’s Life upon this
Evidence; no, if he were the vileft Man alive,
and much lefs the Life of the Prifonerat the Bar;
for we fhall prove (if my Brief be true) he is a
Man of Morals, a Man of Virtue, one that has
a great Love for his Country ; and this we fhall
prove by Evidence undeniable, Perfons of Qua-
lity in their Country, fuch as ferve their Country
in Parliament, as their Reprefentatives ; we thall
fhew it by {uch Evidence, that there will be no
Room to doubt of it: He 1s a Man without
any Stain or Blot upon him, "till this Accufation ;
he is the eldeft Son of his Father, and Heir 10 2
great Eftate; his Father is a great Officer, and a

rreat Getter under this Government, and can it
ye imagin’d, or believ'd, that fuch a Man would
e guilty of the worft of Trealons, to deftroy
the Religion he profeffes, to overturn the State,
to ruin his own Eftate, himfelf and his Poftericy,
which muft be the Confequence of it ? Nay, if
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two good Witneffes cou’d be produc’d to teftify
it,and if we had not had {o much to take off the
Credit of Goodman, 1 couw’d hardly believe it of
any Man that was in his right Senfes ; he muft
have been a Mad-man if he had done it, one that
ftood fo well with the prelent Government, and
of a Family never tainted with Difloyalty. _

Certainly, Gentlemen, when we make out this
to you agaimnft Mr. Goodsizan, the Prifoner can be
m no Danger of his Life, from Mr. Goodman’s
Evidence, tho’ he is an unfortunate Man to come
under fuch an Accufation; but I cannot believe
that any Jury, upon fuch a Man’s Evidence, will
brand an honeft Family with the fouleft, vileft;
blackeft Treafon that ever was hatch'd ; no, Gen-
tlemen, you are Men of Ability and Underftand-
ing, and that is it we rely upon; we doubt not
but that you will confider the Evidence, and con-
fider your Qaths, and not let the Prifoner’s Blood
lie at your Doors; therefore we fhall go on and
call our Witnefles to make out what { have ¢~
pen’d,

Sir B. §hower. My Lord; wedcfire to call our
Witnefles, and I fhall relerve my felf to make
fome Obfervations after we have given our Evi-
dence: Mr. Serj, has open’d as much as we can
prove, and we will now produce our Evidence ;
Firft we will thew the Convition of Goodrian :
Mr. Berleighy, where is the Conviction?

My, Burleizd. Hereat 13y Sir.

Sir. B. Shower. W here had you 1ty Sir 2 |

M. Burleigh. Out of the Treafury at 2Feff-
minfler, |

Str B. Shozweer, Is it a true Copy, did you exa-
mine it there? ' |

M. Burleigh. Yes, it is a truc Copy, I did exa-
mine 1t with the Record.

Sir B. Shewer. Then read it, Mr. Tanner.

Cl. of drr. Reads—Michaelmas Tevin : Tricefiino

fectzndo Caroli Secundsi.

L.C. 7. Treby. Read the Record in Euglifh to
the Jury.

ClL of Arr. { Reads.] Be it rememb-r'd, that
Sir Rebert Sawyer, Knight, Attorney-General of
our Lord the King that now is; who forthe fame
our Lord the King in this part {ueth, came here
in the Court of cur faid Lord the King, before
the King himlelf avt Aeffwinficr, on Thurfday
next after three Weeks of St. Michael, the {ame
Term; and for the {fame our Lord the King,
brought hereinto the Court of our faid Lord the
King, before the faid King, then and there, a
certain Information againtt Caerdel! Goodman, late
of the Pavifh of St. Martin in the Fields, in the
County of Aiddlefexy, Gentleman, which Infor-
mation follows in thele Words, Scilicet, Middlefes

[feilicet, Be it remember’d that Sir Rebert Sawyer,

Knight, Atrorney-General of owr faid Lord the
King that now is, who for the fame our Lord the
King, in this Behalf {ueth, in his own proper
Perfon came here into the Court of our faid Lord
the King, before the King himlelf at #efminfler,
on Thur(day next after three Weeks of St. A/i-
chael that fame Term, and for the fame our Lord
the King, gives the Court here to under{tand and
be inform’d, That Cardell Goodman, late of the
Parith of St. Martin in the Fields, in the Cunty
of Middlefex, Gentleman, being a Perfon of a
wicked Mind, and of an ungodly_and devilifh
Difpofition, and Converfation, and contriving,
practifing, and falfly, malicioufly and devilifhly

FDa - intending;
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intending Death, and Poifoning and final Deftruc-
tion unto the Right Noble Heury, Duke of Graf-
ton, and George, Duke of Northumberlond, and
that the afovefaid Cardell Goodimany his moft wick-
ed, moft impious, and devilifh Intentions, Con-
trivances and Praétices aforefaid, to fulfil, pertect,
and bring to Effect, the Thirtieth Day of Sep-
tember,in the fix and Thirtieth Year of the Reign
of our Lord Charles the Second, now King of
England, &c. and diverfe other Days, and Times,
as well before as after, at the Parifh of St. Martin
in the Fields, in the County of Middlefex, with
Force and Arms, &e. falily, vnlawiully, unjutt-
ly, wickedly, and devilifhly, by unlawtul Ways
and Means, did folicite, perfuade, and endea-
vour to procure one Llexander Amydei, to prepare
and procurc two Flasks of Florence Wine, to be
mix’d with deadly Poifon, for the Poifoning of
the aforefaid Right Noble Henry, Duke of Graf-
ton, and George, Duke of Northumberiand, and
his mo't wicked, moft impious, and devilifh Con-
trivances, Pradtices and Intentions aforcfaid, to
fulfil, perfeé, and the more to bring to Effedt,
the aforelaid Cardell Goodinan, the Day and Year
sbovelaid, at the Parifh aforeluid, in the County
aforefaid, fallly, unlawfully, unjuftly, malicioufly
and devilifhly, did promife and agree, to give un-
to the aforefaid Alexander Amydes, forty Picces of
Guinea-Gold, of the Value of forty Pound, of
lawful Money of England, if he the faid Alexan-
der Amydei wou'd prepare, procure and provide
rwo Flasks of Florence Wine, to be mix’d with
deadly Poifon, for the Poifoning of the aforefaid
Right Noble Heiry, Duke of Grafton, and George,
Duke of Northumberland ; and if the aforcfaid
Poifon with the Wine aforefaid to be mix’d,fhou’d
effe&t the Death of the aforefaid Henry, Duke of
Grafton, and George Duke of Northumberland :
that then he the faid Cardell Goodinany wou'd give
unto the faid Alexander Amydei, the Sum of one
Hundred Pounds, and that beyond Sea he wou'd
maintain the faid glexander all the Days of him
the (aid Alexandery to the evil and moft perni-
cious Example of all others in the like Cafe of-
fending, and againft the Peace of our faid Lord
the King that now is, his Crown and Dignity,
§9¢.— Then here is Procels pray’d by the At-
torney- General againft Mr. Goodian, who comes,
and by his Attorney pleads not Guilty, and here
is IfTue join’d.

Sir B. Shower. Well, fee for the Verdidt,

Cl. of Arr. There was a Trial at Nifi Prius,
and the Jury find that the {aid Cardell Goodinan is
auilty of the Premiffes in the Information {peci-
fy’d as by the Information is fuppofed againft
him.

Sir B. Shower. Now read the Judgment.

Cl.of Arr. Thercupon it is confider’d, that the
(aid Gardell Goodmando pay to the King, the Sum
of One Thouland Pounds, for his Fine, impos’d
upon him for the Occafton aforefaid, and that the
aforefaid Cardell Goodman be committed to the
Moazrfbalfea of this Court, in Execution for his
Fine aforefaid, that he be fafely kept there, till
he pay his Fine aforefaid; and before that the
{aid Cardell Goodman is deliver’d out of the Pri-
{fon aforefaid, he fhall give Security to behave
himfelf well, during his Life, and al{o fhall give
Security for the Peace to be kept towards the faid
Lord the King, and all his People, and particu-
arly towards the Right Noble fenry, Duke of

Giafton, and George, Duke of Northumberland,
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My, Serj. Darnal. So, you hear the Record of
the Information, Conviction and Judgment, for a
very horrid, abominable Crime.

Mr. Att. Gen. But I defire they may now go
on, and read the whole of the Record,

Cl. of Arr. [ Reads.] And afterwards, to wit,
on Friday next after eight Days of St. Hilary, in
the thirty fixth, and thirty feventh Years of the
Reign of our faid Lord the King that now is, be-
fore our faid Lord the King at //efminfler came
the aforefaid Sir Robert Sawyer, Kuight, Actor-
ney-General of our faid Lord the King that now
is, and acknowleded that the faid Cardel! Good-
men has fatisfy’d to our faid Lord the King that
now is, of the Judgment aforefaid againtt him,
in Form aforefaid given, therefore the 1aid Cardell
Goodman is thereof acquitted ; And fo forth.

Mr. Serj. Darnal, Call Mr. Charles Edwesds,
William Cock, Chrifiopher Grawford, Mary Crac-
ford, and Mr. Huntley.

Edwards appear’d npon a Habeas Corpus, di-
reled to the Keeper of Newgate, where be
was & Prifoner.

Mpr. Baker. Where 1sthe Warrant of his Com-
mitment? What is he commistted for?

Tokefield. He 1s committed for Sufpicion of
Treafon, and trealonable Practices.

Mr. Baker. Is he not committed for High-
Treafon?

Tokefield. No, Sir, he is not.

Mr. Serj. Darnal. What Difcour{e had you
with Mr. Goodman, concerning the Priloner at
the Bar, what did you hear him fay?

Mr. Baker, He is not fworn yer, it feems this
Gentleman was Dundee’s Chaplain in Scotinud.

Mr. 4t2. Gen. If he be not {worn, he cap give
no Lvidence.

Mr. Seij. Darnal. My Lord, we defire he may
be fworn.

L.C. J. Treby. Swear him. [ Fhich was dove.

My, Ser. Darnal. Pray Sir, will you tell the
Court, and the Jury, what you know of any
Difcourfe of Mr. Goodman’s concerning the Pri-
{oner at the Bar,

Edwards. My Lord, I defire to know, being
ignorant of the Law, whether I am brought here
by the common Courlfe of Juftice or not?

Mr. Serj. Darnal. Sir, we have Subpeena’d you
for the Prifoner at the Bar, to give Evidence of
the Truth of your Knowledge here upon Qath,

L.C.7F. Treby. Would you haveus tell you how
you came here? We fuppofe you came by due
Procefs of Law, as a Witnefs.

Edwards. Then, my Lord, I defire to fpeak
but one Word; that ’tis 2 ftrange Thing to me
to confider, how Words thould be carried away
that were privately fpoken; as if it were to ex-
pofe me to the Reproaches of all my Friends; it
is a Thing that I did never expeft to hear of a-
gain: However, feeing I am called here, and
obliged upon my Qath to declare what I know,
1 by God’s Grace will, to the uttermoft of my
Power, tell what has pafs’d in this Mateer.

L.C.%. Treby. Don’t make any Apology for
telling the Truth: You are obliged by your
Oath to do it, and the Crurt expeéls ic from
ou.

! Edwards. Among other Difcourfes that pafs’d
betwixt Mr. Goodman and me, I ask’d him when

Mr, Cook was to be arraigned, and when he was
to
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to be tried: Says he, he is to be ar’ra'igned’upon

Monday, and he is to be tried upon Thurfiday. T
ask’d him whether 1t was for the Affaffination-

Plot, and he told me no. For what then? Said
I: Asbeing concerned in fending My. Charnock
into France 2 Who are the Evidences agaitift him,
faid 1? Said he, Captain Porser and my Self. Said
1, I believe two Witnefles will be found Good,
or by Way of Demonflration in Law; and I
pity the poor Gentleman’s Cafe.' Says he, he
fwore againft me. How comes it then, faid I,
that he 15 not come off, and has not a Pardon,
and would divulge no Body clfe?

L.C. §. Treby. Who had not a Pardon do you
mean?

Edawards. Mr, Cook. Task’d how he had not a
Pardon? Says he, he would give an Account of
no Body clfe but me, and that was the Reafon he
had no Pardon. Said I to him, Whoare the Eyi-
dences againft him? Says he, Captain Porser and
my Self. And after this, {ays he, he or I muft
perifhy or, heor [ mult {uffer; I believe the
Word was {uffer : But, fays he, ’tis a foolith
Thing to be hang’d.  All that’s faid of a Man
that is hang’d, is, That he hang’d handfomely,or
he dy'd bravely. That’s all the Difcourfe thag I
can remember.

My, Serjeant Darnal. He faid it was a foolith
Thing to be hang’d 5 and Mr. Goedinas, it feems,
had no Mind to be hang’d; and I believe {o too:
Burt he muft net hang my Clieat, to fave his own
Life.

Edzwords. Now,by the fame Qath that T have
Sworn, I knew nothing of being brought hither,
till my Words were carry’d away privately from
me, and has been confulted ofy and returned to
me back again; and I was far from fuborning or
carrying away a Difcoutle privately to make any

Advantage of it. |
M. Serjeant Darnal. Now we will call Craqw-

ford, and Huntley, and Coct.
Mr. Att. Gen. I defire that Gentleman that was

laft examin’d, may not go away.

[Crawford, Huntley, and Cock were Sworn,

Sir B. Shower. Setup Mr. Crawford (which was
done.) Pray, Sir, will you recolle€t your felf:
Do you remember when my Lord of Ayleshury
and Captain Porter din’d at the King’s-Head ?

Crawford. Yes: It was abouta Twelve-month
ap0. .
gﬂf[f*. Serjeant Darnal, What Company was
there ?

Crawford. My Lord of Aylesbury, Sir Fobn
Friendy Sir Fobn Fenwicky Siv William Perkins,
Captain Porter, and T'wo or Three more, I did

not know their Names.
Sir B. Shower. How many were there that din’d

there?

Crawford. 1 think about Eight in all.

Sir B. Shower. Was the Room fhut while they
were there, or did the Servants ard Drawers go
up and down commonly ?

Crawford. Yes they did go up and down com-
monly.

Sir B. Shower. After Dinner, did any Body
come to them while they were there?

Crawford. No, notduring my Lord of Ayfes-
bury's Stay, and my Lord Montgamery went away

with him.,
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* 8ir B. Shower.  About what Timedid my Lord
of Ayleshury go away2- ,

Crawford. 1 think it was about Four o’Clock.

Sir B. Shower. How can you tell it ?

Crawford. 1 did attend upon'’ them the moff
Part of the Time.. JRPUI

Sir B. Shower. Did you fee him

Crawford, Yes, 1 did. _

Sir B. Shower. Was thar Gentleman, Mr.
Goodinen there, when they went away?

_ Crawford. 1 did pot fee him there, to my
Remembrance: No Body came in there before
they went away, faving their own Servants.

Mr. Sery. Darnal. Do you know Mr. Cook, the
Prifoner at the Bar? Was he one of the . Gen-
tlemen that were at your Houfe ?

Crawford. Yes: 1did not well remember or
recollect, till I faw him on Satarday laft.

M. Ast. Gen. Was he one that weat away ?

Crawford. 1 do not remember cruly, Sir.

Mr. st Gen, Pray, how long was it aficr
Dinner that they went away ?

Crawford. 1 think it was not an Hour.

Mr. Air. Gen. Was you there all the Time,
from the Time of the Dinner?

Crawford. No, not all the while T was not in
the Room, but going too and fro.

My . Serj. Darnal. You fay Mr. Goodman did
not come up till after they were gone?

Crawford. No, 1did not fee him.

My, A1z, Gen, Did you him at all?

Grawford. No, I did not fec him at all.

My, dit, Gen. Jult now it was faid he did not
come t1l] they were gone, and now it {cems he
did not fee him ac all.

Crawford. 1 do not know that he was theie az

g0 away.?

all,
L.C. f. Treby. But, Brother Darnal, you open’d
ity that Mr. Goodman came. after my Lord of
Aylesbury was gone, and now you will prove ir
that he came not atall.

Sir B. Shower. My Lord, we do not pretend to
fallify his Evidence for any thing move than is
material for the Prifoner: We fay Mr. Goodmas
was not 1n the Room where they din’d tili thofe
Perlons went away ; if in any Particular we dif
prove him, 1tis {ufiicient for us: If we can {hew
that he was not there till.three of chofe that he
has nam’d were gone away, that anfwers our End.
We are not concern’d if he came at four, five,
or {ix 0’Clock, and difcours’d with Charaock till
twelve o'Clock at Night.

My, Adtt. Gen. Pray referve your Remarks,
but only obferve now what he fays, thac Mr.
Goodinan came not at all thither, and that is more
than you pretended to open.

M. Conyers. How many were there that were
there at Dinner?

Crawford. About Eighr.

Myr., Conyers. How many do you name that you
know ? i

Crawford, My Lord of Aylesbury, Siv Fobn
Friend, Siv John Fewwick, Siv William Perkins,
and Captain Porter, there werc feveral otherss
two or three more, but I did not know their

Names.
My, Conyers, Did you fee Mr. Goodinan come

in at any Part of the Day afterwards?
Crawford. 1do not know that Mr. Goodman.
Mr. Cowper. Mr. Crawford, you fay, that for
an Hour aiter Dinner you were fometimes in the
Room
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Room and fometimes out; when you were out
of the Room, were you always in the Paflage
up to the Room? -

Crawford. No, 1 was not.

Mr. Cowper. Could any Man come 1n or out
without youy feeing ? , :

Crawford. 1 {hould have known him above
Stairs when I came in again.

My, Gowper, Why, you fay, therc arc two or

three above that you did not know.

Crawford, 1 knew them by Sight, if not their
Names.

Adr. Cosoper. Were you always in Sight then?
~ Crawford. No, Siry I tell you I was up and
down.

Sir B. Shower. Wasthere any Body came in be-
fore my Lord of 4jleshury went out, that 1s, any
Body befides thofe that din'd there?

Crawford. No.

Sir B. Shower. My Lord, we are not contend-
ing now about a Man’s coming up without his
Knowledge; but wheiher any fuch Man as M.
Goodimain came up and {iaid there, during the
Confultation, and we Infift uponic; there was no
Body there till my Lord of 4lesbuiy, my Lord
AMontgoinery, and Mr. Cook were gone, but thofe
that din’d there: Now I would ask a Queflion
again of him, Was there any Body but whodin'd
there, till my Lord of sfyleshaiy went away?

Crawford, No, there was not.

M. At Gen. Why do you fay fo? How do
you know that?

Crawford. 1 did not fee any Body.

M. Soll. Ger. Did you attend upon other
Rooms, as well as that, at the fame Time?

Crawford. Yes, 1 did.

Ay, 8oll. Gen. Then how is it poflible that he
can {wear that Mr. Gosdman was not there?

Sir B. Shoswer. Do you remember when ny
Lord of Ayleshury and they wentaway ?

Crawford. It was about Four o’Clock.

Sir B. Shower. Were you there n the Room

when they went away -
Crawford. 1 weat out with my Lord 1o the

Coach. | |
Sir B. Showei. Did vou {ce him comc down
Stairs; or did you go up Stairs then?
Craswford. Iwentup Stairs when the Coach was

called.
Sir B. Shower. Was then any Body there but

(uch as din’d there?
Crawford. 1 did not {ee any Body there but

thofe that din’d there.

Mr. Cowper. But, my Lord, he does not know
all that din’d there neither. -

L.C. ¥. Treby. Mr. Craswford, you fay my
T.ord of Aylesbuiy and others went away about
Tour 0'Clock: Pray how long did the Reft of

the Company ftay there? |
Crawford. 1 cannot remember. They ftaid

there pretty late: It is a pretty while ago.
L.GC.F Treby. About what Hour did they

are?
£ Crawford. 1 cannot rememb_er what Time the
Reft went away: Our Houfe is fuller at Nighe
than at Noon; and I waited upon other Compa-
“nies. It was pretty late before they went away,

that I am {ure.

L.C.¥. Treby. But hecannot remember whe-
ther it were Five, or Six, or Twelve, that they
went away, only he can remember the Hoer
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of Four, that my Lord of Ayleshury and they

went away. .

My, J. Rokeby. Was it Light, or was it Dark
when they went away? -

Crawford. It was Dark.

L. C. }. Treby. Did you attend the
atter my Lord of Aylesbury was gone?

Crawford. | went upand downinto that Com-
pany as I did into others,

L.C. 7. Treby. Wasyou there feveral Times
atter my Lord of Aylesbury was gone?

Cracsford. Yes, 1 was there once or twice after
my Lord of Ayleshury was gone, I am fure.

L.C. ¥ Treby. And did you never fee Mr,
Goodinan theye?

Crawferd. No, 1 never faw Mr. Gooduen ip
my Lite, before I faw him on Saturday Lt

Sty B. Sbower. Which is Mr, Huntley ?

Huitley. Here I am, Sir.

§ir B. Shower. Pray recolleé yousr felfy and te))
my Lord and the Jury what you rememberof any
Company that were with Mr. Poiter, at the A o's
Hrad, and who din'd there. ”

fuatley, My Lord of dylesbury, m y Lord
Montgowmery, S Fobn Feawick, Siv 1illian
Perkius, Siv Folis Friend, Mr., Porter and My,
Chariock.

§ir B. §hower. ‘That was the Company, vou
fay, that din'd there : Did Mr. Geodumns dine
there?

Huatley. Noy Mr. Goodman did not dine there.

i B. Shower. Pray, Sir, recolle€ vour felf-
“Th":[} did any of this Company part, or g0
away 7

Huntley, My Lord of Aylesbury, and my Lord
Mourgomery went away about Four o’Clock.

Sii B.8hower. Siry how do you know that?

Hitatley. 1 went down Stairs after them ; I wag
above Stairs when they parted from the Reft of
the Company.

M. Sery. Darnal. Pray mind, Sir: Was My,
Goodman there at that Time before they went
away 7 J

Huiitley. No, he was not.

8ir B, Shower. Are you fure of that,
Oath you have taken?

Huutley. Yes, Itakeit upon my Outh, he was
not there,

S;‘r B. Shower. Did you attend them at Djn-
ner !

Huntley. Yesy 1did attend them at Dinner.

Sir B. Shower. Did you attend them al] )
While they were there?

Huntley. Twascall'd frequently, and was inand
out of the Room very much after Dinner.

Sir B.§hower, Do youthink if a freth Man
had come in after Dinner, you fhould not haye
known him ?

[aj?fmrky. Yes, I fhould have known him,

Mr, Att. Gen. Pray, Friend, let me ask v
%c%}iun. Was Mr'.}r Goodman there at ;ﬁurizi

aye

Huntley, That I don’c know; 1 did not fee
him at afl.

M. Soll. Gen. Did you attend upon any other
Rooms that Day?

Huntley. No, I attended only upon that Com-
pany.

My, Soll. Gen. Were you in the Room all the
Time?

Huntley. Noy I went up and down,

Company

upon the

Mr.
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Mr., Soll. Gen. What Time did the latt of the
Company go away !

Huntley. It was about Darkifh; it was pretty
latc to the belt of my remembrance.

Mr. Att. Gen. Pray, did any Body come to
rhofe Gentlemen after Dinner?

Huntley. No, Sir.

Mr. 4. Gen. Did you ever {ee Gosdman be-
fore now ?

Huntley. Never in my Life to my Know-
ledge.

Mr, J. Rokeby. Did all the Company, but my
Earl of #ylesbury, and my Lord Montgomery, {tay

111 it was Duskith?

Huitley. That I don’t know.

Mr. J. Rokeby. Did you know all the Company
that was that Day at Dinner ?

Huntley. 1 knew all but One.

Mr. J. Rekeby. And who was that?

Huuiley., Vhat was Mr. Clarnock.

Mr. ] Rokeby. And yet you can’t tell whether
ther: was any Body elfe that you did not know,
how then can you tell that Geodiman was not
there ?

Sir 2. Skhsweer, He did not know bim at that
Time, but he might remember him afterwards.

My Congers. Did not the fame Company ufe
to meet at other Times, at your Houle?

Huitley, Not to my Remembrance.

Mr. Coayers. How then came you, if they ne-
ver had us’d to meet there, to know all chele
Peo; le's Names?

Faatley. I have {cen Sir Jobis Friend there, and
Sir /Filliainz Peilins.

nir. Coyers. WasSur Fobn Friendthere, orno?

Huitley. Ycs, he was

Me. Convers. My Lord, he was the only Man
that was not nam’d before: You did not name
Sir Foizis Irieid before, as | heard: Bur pray, did
vou ever fee M. Csaragek there, but at chat
Time?

Huantley, Wo, I did not.

Nr Couyers. How came you to know it was
My, Cheraoeck ¢

Hustley, 1 knew very few of them before that
Times and I ask’d their Servants the Names of
<l thote Perfons that were there?

wir, Conyors. Did you know Mr. Porterry pray ?

[y, Not before that Time: Idid {ee M.
Py ter, and I knew him again when 1 faw him,
his Blick told me his Name that Day.

Siv 1. Shower. You, Huitley, I would ask you
ons Queition more; Was the Door thut or
no?

Fouitley. Noy 1T was not.

Sir B. Skower, Did the Servants go up and
d-wn as they us’d todo?

Fluatley. Yes, Sir.

Nr. At Gein Sir Bartholomew would make it
thar there was no Confultation at all.

Sir B. Shower. They were mad Folks 1f they
would confult at that Rate with the Door open.
Deav call Mr. Filliam. Cock. { W ho was fworn. ]

~ir. A, Gen, Siv Jobz Freind has own'd 1t,
thar's dead.

Sir 1. Showrer. Sir Fohu Frefud's Confeffion is
nothing to the Prifoner.,

Ny, ¢t Gen. Mr. Serjeant Darnal did open,
That the Confeflion of thefe that dy’d was an un-
deniable Proof of the Confpiracy : But goon with
your Evidence.
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Mr. Serjeant Darnal. Pray, Mr. Cock, will you

recollect yourfelf, about the Time when Captain

Porter, and fome other Geatlemen, din’d at your
Houfe.

W. Cock. Yes, very well,

Mr. Scrjeant Darnal. Pray, Sir, can you tell
who din'd there at that Time ?

7. Cock, There were my Lord of Aylesbury,
my Lord Moutgomery, Sir William Perkins, Sir
Fohn Fenwicky Sir Fobis Friend, Mr. Charnock, Cap-
tain Porter, and Mr. Cook.

Mr. J. Rokeby. Was that all the Company ?
. Cock. Yes, 1t was.

Vir, J. Rokeby. One of them faid there were
Eighr.

I.. C. J. Treby. And he hasnam’d Eight, Bro-
ther.

Mr. Serjeant Daraal. Can you remember

when any ot the Company went away, and who
went away firft?

Cock. My Lora of Ayleshuryand my Lord Mont-

gomery went way In a Hackney-Coach; and their

servants werc frequensly in the Room, and wait-
ed afterwards in anoticr Room, after that they
had waited at Table ar Dinner; and tho' the
Door was {hut, 2s it ufed to be when any Com-

pany is there, yet no Body was forbid to come
there at all.

Mr, Att. Gen. Do you remember when Mr.
Goodman came there?

Cock. 1 never faw Mr. Geoodman in my Life
before to Day.

Mr. Ser), Darial, Did any Body come to this

Company before my Lord of Aylesbury went away
that did not Dine there ?

Cock. I did not {ce any Body there at all: And
my Lord of Ayleshury was about buying a Hogfhead
ot White-wine, but we could not agree about the
Price: And when my Lord of #yleshury went
away, I went down with my Lord, and waited
upon him to the Coach; and [ told my Lord,
I hoped he would buy the Winc {till. But he
aniwered, he could not tell whether he fhould
or no.

Mr. Serj. Darzal. Who elle went with my
Lord of dylesbury?

Cock. My Lord Montgoinery.
ber any Body clfe.

Mr. J. Rokeby. Did all the reft of the Com-
pany go away at once?

Cock, Truly my Lord, I can’t fay they did,

Mzr. J. Rokeby. By what time did the Reft go
away ?

Cock. I believe it might be Eight or Nine o’
Clock.

Mr, Serjeant Darnal. You faw my Lord of
Aylesbury when he parted: Was Mr. Goodman
there then !

Cock. I did not fec him,

Mr. B. Powis. Did Mr. Cook ftay’till the laft?

Cock. That I can’t tell truly.

Mr. B. Powis. I find they all Swear to Four
o'Clock of my Lord Aylesbuiy’s going, and go
no further.

Mr, Art. Gen. Pray, Sir, let me ask you a

Queftion or two: Did you ever fee Mr. Goodnran
before now?

Cock. No, [ do not remember I did,

Mr. Art. Gen. Whenyou went irto the Room
after Dinner, did you look about the Room to
fec whether there were any new Company?

Cocks

I don’t remem-
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Cork. 1 did look about the Room feveral Times,
and fo did my Servants,to {fec if there were any
Thing wanting. |

Mr. Ait. Gen. Can you takeitupon your QOath,
that he was not there whilft my Lord of 4jles-
bary ftaid?

Cock. 1 do: And can take it upon my Oath,
he was not.

~ Mr. Aiz. Ges. Thenifyou can, pray diftinguifh
the Time when he came 1n.

Cock. 1 do notremember that ever [ faw him
in my Life before to Day.

Mr. Art. Gen. Why are you not as pofitive
that he was not there at all, as that he was not
there before my Lord of Aylesbury went away ?

Cock, He might come in, and Inot {ec him.

Mr. Att. Ges. Might he not as well come in
before they went away, as after, to come in acd
you not fec him?

Cock, No, I do not think he could.

Mr. A2, Ges. Why do you think {o?

Cock. Becaulethe Servants were all about, and
they didnot go to Dinner’till Two o’Clock : And
I believe thofe Geatlemen that I named, camein
a Quarter of an Hour’s Time to Dinner.

My, Att. Gen. We do not {ay he came there
before Dinner: But could he not come in after
Dinner, before my Lord of dylesbury and my Lord
Montgoniery weat away, withour your fceing
him ?

Cock. Yes, Sir.

Sir B. Shewer. Then heark ye, Sir, I would
ask you one Queftion: Did you fee him, upon
vour Qath, or not?

Cock. No, I did not.

Sir B. Shower, Might not Mr. Geodman come
in to them without your feeing him ?

Cock. It is poflible; but I don’t think it was
o,

Mr. J. Rekeby. How then can yoube pofitive
that he was not there "ull my Lord of /ylesbusry
went?

Mr. Soll. Gen. You v you may be pofitive he
was not there before my Lord of ylesbury went :
Can yoube as pofitive now, that he was not there
before Mr. Cusk went?

Cock. 1do not know when Mr. Cook went,

Mr. Sull. Gez, How can you be then pofitive
he was not there before my Lord of Ayleshury
went?

Cock. There were no more than what dined
there when my Lord of Aylesbury went away.

Mr. Couyers. Pray, Sir, let me ask you a Que-
ftion: Were you in the Room at any Time af-
ter Dinner?

Mr. Conyers. Pray, Siry, How many Times af-
ter Dinner, were you there?

Cock. T believe half a dozen Times,

Mr. Soll. Geir, And yet youdo confefs that Mr.,
Goodinan might come in after Dinner before my
Lord of Aylesbury went, and you not fee him?

Sir B. §hswer. Ay, but he could not ftay there
without his feeing him, if he was {o often in the
Room: Youdon'ttake Mr. Cock’s Evidenceright.
- Mr. 4it. Gen. You named eight Perfons that
dined at your Houfe: Did you know them all
perfonally before that Day ?

Cock. Yes, my Lord, the mof{t of them at

leait.

Mr. 41, Gen. Did they ufe to meet at your

Houle?
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Cock. Commonly Sir Fobn Friczd did once 2
Week. Mr. Charnock I knew when I was Drawer,
and f{o I did Six Williems Perkins: The Reft }
knew by hearing their Names.

Mr. 4tt, Gen, Did you know them before that
Day; Sir, 1 ask you?

Cock. 1 had leen Captain Porter feveral Times
before that Day ; but I cannor fay at my own
Houfe.

Sir B. Shswer. Do you rcmember the Trea-
ty about the Hogthead of White-wine?

Cock. Yes, Sir, very well.

Sir B. Showwer., Were you by when my Lord
of Ayleshury went away, and fpoke with him
abour it ?

Cock. Yes, I was; and told him, I hoped lic
would buy the Wine {till

Sir B. Showsr. Can you be pofitive that any
Body was there before my Lord of 4y/esbuiy went
away, that could (tay there any Time, and did
not Dine there? _

Cock. I believe not, Sir; forI came in h.If 2
dozen Times after Dinner, and I believe if [ had
heard Mr. Goodizai's Name, or {een him there, I
fhould have remembied 1t 3 but I did not fee any
Body but thofe that dined there.

Mr. Cowper, Where was you when my Lord
of Ayleshury went away? Where did you meet
him going away?

Cock. Upon the Stairs: Sceing my Lord of
Aylesbury and my Lord J3oatgunzry coming
down, 1 met them.

Mr. Cowper. Where did you meet them? g
the Middle, or the Top of the Stars ?

Cocz. My Lord of Aylesbury wasat the Top of
the Stairs,

M. Comwper. Did you meet him juft coming
out of the Room?

Cock. Yes, Siry I faw the Coach that was cal-
ied formy Lord 5 and o I went up Stairs, and met
my Lord at the Top of the Stairs coming down,

My, Soll. Gei. Now how can you be pofinve
who was in the Room when he came out of the
Room? |

Cock. I went up in the Room afier my Lord
of Aylesbury went away,

Mr, Soll. Ges. How long after my Lord of
Ayleshnry went away 2

Cock, It was prefently after.

Mr. Soll. Gen. How long before my Lord of
Aylesbury went away, had you been in the Room ?

Cock. I had been there jult before.

Mr. Serjeant Darnal. Call Thomas Peschy. [T7ho
appeared and was fwori. ]

Sir B, Shewer. My Lord, wefhall prove that
after the Plot broke our, and after Mr. Poster
had made his Difcovery, there was no Dittur-
bance of Mr. Coot ’til} agood while afterCharnch’s
Tsial; and Mr. Cock was fo far from being fenfi-
ble, or confcious of any Guilt, that he never ab-
fconded, but continued for three Weeks in his
Father’s Houle, 'wherc he was taken bya Meffen-
ger. Pray WIr. Peachy will you tell my Lord,
and the Jury, where Mr. Cook was taken, a.d
when, and by whom.

Peachy. He was taken athis Father's Houfe by
a Mellenger,about Seven o’Clock in the Morning.

Sir 5. Showsr. What Day of the Week was 1t
he was taken’
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Peachy. Upon a Sunday Morning, “in his own
Room, in his Father’s Houfe, at Seven o’Clock
in the Morning.

Sir B. Shower. Did People come to him as they
ufed to do? |

Peachy. Yes; and he went frequently abroad
as he uled to do, and did never abicond from his
Jrather’s Houle.

M. Serjeant Darnal. Pray {wear Mr. Treganna.
[ B bich qwas done. ]

»  Gir B. Shower. Mr. Treganna, Pray do you re-
member how long after the Plot broke out did
you fec Adr. Cook ¢ |

Treganna. After My.Charnock’s Trial,a Week,
he wasat my Chamber; after the Plot broke out,
he was concerned in a Trial at #duchefier Aflizes,
apen an I{Tuc out of Chancery, Mr. Nicholls was
the Clerk in Court, and went down to manage it
at the Aflizes; and Mr. Cook came to me a Day
or twoalter Hinchefter Aflizes was over, and ask’d
me if I had any News from the Aflizes? This
was long after the Plot broke out: And | remem-
ber particularly, that I faw him twice after the
Plot was di{covered, at my Chamber.

Sir B. Shower. Swear Mr. Nichollsy [ bich was
done. |

SiiJ, Pray will you tell my Lord and the Jury
what you know of Mr. Cook’s appearing abroad
after the Plot was dilcovered?

My, Nicholls. 1 was {fent down to the Trial: 1
was prefent, and didattend at two Trials indeed,
and 1 fuppofe Ar. B. Powis may remember that I
attended at two Trials at #inchefler Allizes.

My. B. Powis. Poflibly you might, Sir: Ican'c
tell all the Attendance at the Affizes.

Mr. Nicholls. And after my Return from #in-
chefler Affizes, M. Cook was with me feveral Days,
both at my Office and Chamber, and at his Fa-
cher’s Office: And I remember particularly, that
he threatened me that I was in Trouble when |
was at //7incheffer, and therefore I remember it
very well.

Sir B. Shewer, M. Wicholls, you know Mr.Cook
very well; pray whatare his Morals?

Afr. Nicholls. Upon QOccalion of the Caufe in
Chancery that went to Trial, 1 have had the
Knowledge ot Mr. Coox hve or {ix Years; Ialways
believ’d him to be as temperate a Man as ever |
met with: I think in five Years Time I was not
above once with him na Tavern.

Sir B. Sheswer. Did you ever hear him Swear?

Afv. Nucholls. No, never; nor vent aCurle: |
believe he drank as little as any Man, and was as
godly a Man. I never heard him fpeak a foul

Word.

Sir B. Shower. How do you know that, Sir,
that he was {o godly a Man ¢

Mpy. Nicholls. Upon Occafion of this Caule, I
was feveral Times at §ir Miles Cook’s, and at Alr.
Cuok's Lodgings there, and we were togo abaut
Bufinefs, and after he was drefs’d, he has made me
ftay while he went into his Clofet and faid his
- Prayers. And he rold me further, that he never
went out of his Father’s Doors without faying his
Prayers; and I was forc’d to ftay at the Door
while he perform’d his Devotions, as he told me,
and 1 believe he did.

My. Serj. Darnal. Now, my Lord, we will
call fome other Witnefles to prove his good Af-
fe&tion tohis Country, how he continually defired
Succels to the Fleet, and to the Army,
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Sir B. Shower. Sothat really he had an Averfion
to it.

Swear My, Hamond. [Wbicj: was done.)

Mr. Serj. Darnal. Pray, Sir, will you give
an Account what you know of the Prifoner, con-
cerning his judgment,and concerning his Morals ?

Hamord. 1havebeen for fome Timeacquainted
with AMr. Cook, the Prifoner at the Bar, and to the
beft of my Obfervation, I always took him to be
a conlcientious Man, and [ have heard him declare
great Deteltation of a Frewnzl Force: And thice
or four Days before hewas taken into Cuftody, !
ask’d him what he heard of Intelligence ? Hefaid
he heard what wasin the publick Prints, and heard
no more, and knew no more; and he had a great
Abhorrence of the Confpiracy, and thought it a
very monftrous Thing. [ never heard him {peak
a difiefpectful Word of the King’s Perfon or
Government in my Life.  And ! layagain, | have
heard him feveral Times declave, in common Con-.
verfation, that he had an Averfion to Frewch
Power, and he had a dread of ir.

Mr. Serjeant Dayual. "W hat have you heard him
fay about our Fleer, or Army?

Hzinond. My Lord, I have heard him very
much wifh Profperity and Succels to our Fleer.

Mr. F. Rokeby. W hat ['leer, pray Sir.

Hamond. 'To our Fleet, ixing Hilliam’s Fleet
againdt the Fresch. Things to this Purpole he
frequently faid.

Mr. Serjeant Daraal. Then Swear Afrs. Hunt,
U bich was deire. ] but {he was not examincd.

Sii B. Shower. My Lord, we leave it here. Bus
I muft beg the Favour, that if they give any newr
lividence, and there be Occafion, we may have

Libertyto anfwer it, And I have an Gbfervasion
or two to make when the Evidence 15 over,

Mr. Att, Gen. My Lord, if they have done with
their Evidence, 1beg leave to obferve, that there
is fomething artlesupon that Evidence, tha: will
give us occafion to call a Witnefs or two more.
My Lovd, the fir{t Witnels which they call’d was
Edwards, and he is in Cultody upon Sulpicion of

‘High-Treafon 1n Newgate, and he gives an Ac-

countof fomeDi{cour{e that he had with AZr.Good-
sany and for that, it will be necefary for us to call
My, Parter agatn and Mr, de la Rue, to thew that
this Edwards, the Witnels, as heis committed for
Sulpicion of High-Treafon, fo he was in the Con-
{piracy for the Affaflination; he was one i the
Lift that was brought back by Cranburue from
Mr. Charneck to Captain Portery as onc of Char-
nock’s Men, and he s in Cuftody forit, Thenas
to the other Matter, they havecalled three Wit-
nefles to prove, That Mr. Goodman wasnot in this
Place at thisTime. The Counfel indeed opened
ity that hc was not at the Tavern wll after my
Lord of Aylesbury and my Lord Montgomery were
goneaway; buttheir Evidence goes further, That
he was not there at all: And the Mafteér of the
Houfe fays, he was not there to his Knowledge
at any Time. So that if thewr Evidence prove
any Thing, they prove that he was not there at
all; they do not remember that they faw him
there: So that the Queftion will be, whether Ar.
Goodman was there arthat Time, and it will be
neceflary to call My, Goodiman again,and Mr. Poster,
to contront thefe Witnefles, who wiil tell you

whenhecame in: And particulariy as to my Lord
¢ E of
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of Aylesbury, that he went with lum to the Stairs-
head, and my Lord would not let him go further,
but he went back again when my Lord of Ayles-
bury went down Stairs.  We will begin with the
W itnefles, as to this Edwards.

Swear My, Dela Rue. [Which was dong. |

Mr. Conyers. My. De la Rue, Pray do you know
M. Edwards that was here?

My. Dela Rue. He gocs by feveral Names; 1
know him by the Name of Dogglas: And lalk
Morday | came into the Prefs-Yard, and faluted
him by the Name of Douglas, and he {aid he had
taken his own Name again, by which he was
knownat St. Gerzmaiins, and that was Edwards or
Richards, as I remember, or fome {uch Name.

M. Conyers. When was he at St. Gerinaiis ?

Mr. De la Rue. About three or four Yearsago.

My, Conyers. Pray look upon him, lec if you
know him.

Mry. Delz Rue. T know him very well, there
he {tands, that is the Perfonin theblack Wigs he
was reputed at St. Germzaius to be my late Lord
Duidee’s Chaplain.

Mr. Ast. Gen, What Name did he go by at
St. Germains ?

Mr. Delz Rue. T can’t very well tell: Buc
he {aid he had taken his own Nameagain; and I
think he faid it was Edwards or Richards.

Mir. Conyers. Did he go formerly by the Name
of Douglas ¢

Mr. De Iz Rue. Yes, here in Enugland: M.
Porter knew him to go by that Name,

My At Gen. Whatelfe do you know of him?

My.De In Rue. The Lilt that Mr. Cranbuiue
carried from My, Porter to Mr.Charnock, and which
he brought back again from M. Charneck to Mz,
Porter, had in ity among the other Names, the
Name of Douglas, which I underftood tobe that
Gentleman,

Mr. Att.Gen. Did he go by that Name at that
‘T'ime?

Mi. De la Rue, Yes, he did.

L.C. . Treby. Pray repeatthat again, Sir, that
we may underitand it, and fee whether it be Lvi-
dence.

Myr. De la Rue. Why, Sir, the Lift that A4r.
Cranburne brought from Ar. Charnack o My, Por-
7er, at the Foot of the Lift which Adr. Porter had
{ent to him, there were other Names written, as I
belicve, in M. Charnock’s Hand, and among thofe
Names there was the Name of Donglas, which I
underftood to be this Mr. Edwards, as he calls
himf{clf. And moicover, when A, Porier went
out of Town, going to Dottors Comsnons, Icalled
at Mr.Charinock’s,and he had a great deal of Com-
pany with him, four or five Troopers, and among
the reft this Edwards or Doaglas was there fitting
by him. Here isa Gentleman that I fecupon the
Bench, Ithink:heis a Scorchman, that knew him

at St. Germains as well as I I think his Nameis

Mackdonnel.
Mr. F. Rokeby. What Countrymandid you take

this Edswards to be?
My.Dela Rue. A Scotchman, and Chaplain to
my Lord Dundee that was killed in Scorland.
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You know it tends to make him either accufe or
excule himfelf of 2 Crime.  Pray call M. Porzer
again. But in the mean time, till he comes
we'll examine Mr. Goodman, becaule he is herez
Mr. Goodman you were by, and heard what thefe
Drawers faid concerning your being at the 0/4-
King’s-Head in  Leaden-hall-fireer that Day.
Pray give an Account when you came in, whe-
ther you faw my Lord of Aylesbury, and whac
paffed between you av my Lord of 4 /eshus 5’
going away? |

Mr. Goodinan. M. Porterbrought me up 5 and
when | came in they were all fitting; and afier
Salutation | fat down: And when they had con-
{ulted fome Time, they came to a Refolution, s
I have told you alrcady. The Fellows are fo fur
in the Rightof it, that my Lord of 4/esbury and
my Lord Momtgemery went away firtt; for I took
my Leaveof them at the Head of the Stairs. Savs
my Lord of Aylesbriy to me, Pray avoid Cs:r;:r:-
morny, we will goaway privately as we came, in
a Hackney-Coach.  And as to the Mafter of the
Houle, who fays, he dees not know me, I have
dincd feveral Times chere; four or five Times
with Sir Fobn Fiiend: And one particular Day
above all the reft, I remember 1 was not weli
and 1 went down Stairs to the Bar, and faid, I
pray, can you get me alittle Brandy, He faid,
yes; he would help me to fome of the be#t in
Englapd.  And he brought me up fome which I
liked very well; and thinking he had a Quantity
of ity I'ask’d him what I thould give him a Gai-
lon for a Parcel. But he {aid, he had byt a Jir-
tle: And Iam furc he has feen me there five or
fix Times.

Mr. dtt. Gen. Then {et up that Mafer of the
Houfe, Cosk, again. [/ bich was done.)

Come, Sir, You hear what Mr. Geedsnan has
Sworn, and mind it; you are upon your Qath.
You faid juft now, that you never faw 447, Gosd-
man before,

Cock. No, upon my Word, Sir: I don’t know
that ever I faw him before.

Mr. Ait. Gen. Do you remember nothing of
his being with Sir Fobu Fiierd at your Houfe ?

Cock. No, upon my Word, Sir.

Mr. Ait. Gen. Nay, you are upon your Qath.
Nor do you know nothing of your giving of him
Brandy ¢

Cock. No, upon my Oath, I do not remember
any {uch Thing.

Mr. dst. Gen. That isavery fafe Way of Swear-
ing, I profefs. ‘

Mr. Conyers. He remembers the particular
Time when he was Sick, and you offer'd to fell
him fome Brandy. ‘

Mr. Att. Gen. No, he ask’d him what he {hould
give him for it a Gallon.  But, M. Cock, did you
ever fee Goodman in your Houle fince my Lord of
Ajlesbury and they were there ?

Cock. No, upon my Word, Sir, I did not:

And 1 never bad but two Gallons of Brandy in
my Life at a Time: And I never had any Cask,
or any Thingof that Nature, to fell any out of.
M. A1, Gen. Who ufed 1o be with Sir Yoba
Friend at your Houlfe?
Cock. There uled to be My, Richardfon, and

My. Serfeant Darnal, Did you {ee this Gentle- Juftice Cafh, and Col. Cafb.

man in France, Sir?
Mackdonnel. 1 never was in Fraunce inmy Life.

Mr, Att. Gen. Youcan'task him the Queftion:

Mr. Goodman. M. Richardfoss was there that
Day: Icould almoft have remembred the parti-
cular Day, but 1 cannot be pofitive; only we

were
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wese in the fame Room where the Confultation
was, at the further Part of the Room.

Myr. F. Rokeby. Your, Iriend, the Mafter of the
Houle, you hear what Mr. Goodizan {ays: He fays
he was with Sir7ohn Frieid at yourHoufe,and being
not well he ask’d for fome Brandy, and you told
him, you’d give him fome of thebelt in Euglaid.
And be propounded to youthen to fell him fome
of it; but it fecms there was no Bargain made.
Do you remember any fuch Thing of one that
was with Sir Jobu Friead, that {poke of buying
of Brandy when he was fick ?

Cock. No, upon my Word [ do not.

My, At Gen. Then fev ap Adr, Corter, [ Fho

faod up.} Prav, Mr. Porter, look upon that Man

in the Black Peruke; what Name did he ufe to
go by?

Mpr. Poiteir, Fie uled to go by the Nameof £4-
wards.

My, Are. Gen. Had he any other Name?

Mr. Porier. Yes. Doualis.

Mi. Att. Geiz. He hasfo many Names, that we
don’t know which is his trne Name. 7. Poiter,
pray what elfe do you know of him touching his
being concerncd in the Confpiracy?

My. Porter. | know not any thing of my own
Kunowledge; but his Name was puw down in the
Lift that Mr. Charnoct fent me of his Men, and
Mr. De La Rueread his Name there.

Mr. Soll. Ge:. Vi, Purler, youwerea Witnels
upon the Trids of Siv Johu Friend, and Siv 27il-
lizin Peilinsy did you give Lvidence that My
Goodizz 12 was in the Room at the faime Time when
the Confulration wis?

M Parter. Yes, St

My, Azt Gen. Welly you hear that thele People
have fworn, that A, Goodman did not come till
my Lord of Aylesiary went away s nay, indeed,
that he was not there at all,

Ar. Porter. My Lord, upon my Oath he was
there before my Lord ylesbury went away, and
My, Guodrizn bowzd, and took leave of my Lord
as he went out of Doors,

M. A, Genn, \Y hat time did my Lerd of Ayles-
Lary go away ?

7. Porter. Tt was about an Hoor «nd a Half,
ar two Hours afrer Dinner, and he was in the
Room whenmy Lord wentaway, for ke took his
Leave of him ar the Duoor.

My. Cowper. Do you remember the Manner of
Alr. Goodrizu’s coming m?

Mr. Porter. My, Goodizzin fent up his Name to
me, and I told the Company, and promis’d for
him, that he was a verv honeft Man, and much
in King Famess Intereft; and then with thelr
Confent I went dowa and brought hum up.

My, ¥. Powell. How long timz do you think
there was between A Goodinai’s coming in, and
my Lord of dylessury’s going away ?

My, Porter. + cannot tell that, I do not remein-
ber exaélv how Jong 1t was.

My F. Powell, Wasit aquarterof an Hour, or
half an Hour?

My, Porter, A great deallonger, for we had dif-
courfed of the whole Bufinels after A4, Goodiizan
came into the Room.

. My, Conyers, How long were they there after
Ay, Govdinan came in 2

A, Porter, Trwasvery neartwo [Hoursafter he
came in, before they wentaway; they did not go
away till Six o’clock, and he came in atjFour as
ncar as I can remember.
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Mz, Ait. Gen. ‘Then, my Lord, we have done.
Sir B, Shower. T hen I beg the Favour ofaWord

or two, my Lord. May it pleale your Lordthip,

and you Gentlemen of the Jury, I am of Coun-
fel in this Cafe for the Prifoner at the Bar, and |
muft beg your Lordthip’s Patience, and your Fa-
vour, Gentlemen, to make afew Obfervations up-
onthe Evidence that has been given 3 for we hum-
bly infiit upon it in point ot Law, that here is
not {ufficient Evidence before you to convict the
Prifoncr,  You are, Gentlemen, to have refpect
and regard to your Confciences and the Oaths
which you have now taken, to give a Verdict,
and make true Deliverance between the King, and
the Prifoner; youare not to go according to your
own private Opinions, nor according to pubiick

Fame, nor according to common Report, nor ac-

cording to the Verdiéts in other Cafes, nor ac-

cording to the Confetlions or Dying Speeches of

Criminals who have been Executed, vbether imade

by themfelvesy o by otders for 1Lem, but you are

to go by the Teftimony of Credible \Winefizs,
and if you have not the |

| Evidence of two Credi-
ble Witnefles betore yau, my Lords the Judges
will inform y- u how the Law {tands, That by
the Statute of Edwzrd the Sixth, and the new
Statute for Trials of Treafons, there muftbe two
Witnefles to prove the Prifoner guilty of the G-
vert-Aét of the Treafon thar is Iid in the 1a-
di¢tment; and whether there have been two Cre-
dible Witnefles produced before you, is the Quer-
tion that you are to cenfider upon your Oathand
Confcicnce s that is, whether you are {arisfied
here be two {uch as the Law requires. The Quef-
tion is not wmeerly whether AL Cosl be guilty,
but whether in your Cenlcicncss he be Icg;d‘lf,-
proved guilty 5 whetner there be Lvidence to fx-
tisfy your Confciences, accoraing to the Laws of
the Land, that he is guilty; and we infift there
is not; ana theretore I beg leave to recapitulate
what has been fiwvorn againit him, that we may
{cc how fav it reaches, and wherem it 15 dc-
fective.

Gentlemen, 3. Perfer he fwears that about
the Beginning or Midlle of Aduy, he canner el
whichy there was thiy Mecting at the G- K
Flad 'Cavern in Leaden- 1zl freets 1n which, 1
wou'd obierve to you, that he confines himfelf to
a certain Mon:hs the Reafon is very phin, and
therefore 1ask’d hin whether 1t was not in Apii/;
for if he had fiid it had been tacn, thae had
been no danger to the Prifonery becanle of the
Ack of Indemnizy, therefore he was carcful to
fix itin A2y ; and he would not lay it in Fuue,
for the Tenth of i 1sa fithous Day; and then,
or foon afier Newsare had him; he was confined
there for a Rict on that Bay, and fo they have
reflrained 1t to a NMonth, and the oniy Month
that he is capable of fwearing to, as to any Ack
done the laft Year till they came in Fannary 1o
the Affaffination ety which the Prifoner 1s not
accufed to have had any Concern mj. but it
fhou’d teem he cannot tell what Day of theWeek,
or of the Month, but about the Beginnmg or the
Middle of Aay Eight Perfons dined at this Place,
and then aiter Dinner Al Goodman came iny and
they difcourfed about this Matter.

Firft, Gentlemen, we indift upon ig, that 1tis
very improbable that Ziuglifh Proteftants of pious
Converlation and gocd Morals, fhouid agree, as
he fays, to fend fven a Mclfage to the late King,
(0 invitc over a Frocd Popifn IPorce; we may

§ &> caflily
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eafily fee the horrid and mifchievous Confequen-
ces that wou’d have followed fuch a Praétice, fuch

as muft affett every Englifbman with a Concern,
{fo that it is improbable a Man of Virtue and
Picty cou'd engage in fuch an Enterprize; and if
it be improbable, you will never believe it, un-
lefs the Conviction or Proof be irrefiftible: And
if you have any other Realons to diftruft this
Man’s T'ruth, then we hope you wiil goupon the
Side of Probability 5 and not let popular Preju-
dice, common Fame, or any Thing elle but le-
gal and undeniable Evidence have the Afcendant
over yoit. If you are not latisfied that Mr. Cook
did affent (as from the Charalter of the Man it ts
not probable he fhou’d) to fend Charnock into
France, to perfuade King Lewis and King Fames
to fend Ten Thoufand Men to invade our Coun-
try, then he is not guilty.

[n the next Place, Gentlemen, he is not guilty
we {ay in the Eye of the Law, if they have not
two Witnefles ; and for that we {ay you have bue
one, or but one that’s to bebelieved 5 and if you
have burt one that i1s to be believed, that 1n Law
is but one, and confequently my Cliect ts not
cuilty; {o the King's Counfelagree, thatif there
bebut one Witnefs, hecannot be convifted, the
Law is plain in the Cate. Now to make 1t out
that here is but one Witnels at moft, we have
offered you feveral Objections, and made them
out by Evidence, againtt the Tcftimony of Afr.
Goodman 3 that he 1s not a Perfon fit to be be-
Jieved; and if he be out of the Cale, then does
M. Porter’s ftand alone, and all .will amount but
to one Witnels, {uppofe it thou’d be granted that

his Teftimony were true. N
Fiift, We have read 2 Record of Conviction

againft him, of a Crime, onc of the Greatelt next
uato Treafon, that is known in our or any other
Iaw. That hehired aMan to poifon two Dukes,

ranches of a NobleFamily,to which he had fuch
oreat Obligations, as all Mankiud do know, and
he himfelf cannot but acknowledge; andif there
were not that Aggravat. -1 in ity of his QObliza-
tions to that Famuly, yet to lic in waitto Murder
and Poiflon, is fuch an Ofience as any Age can
{cldom fhew thelike.  And the Objection s not
{o very caflily anfwered as they would have it;
nor can it be fo foon pailed over as they think,
by faying He is a Witnefs of a Cenfederacy with
which the Prifoner is acculed, a Crime greater
than the Thing objected. It is true, none can
bear Teftimony in fucha Bufinels, but hethat isa
Party : But, we fay, if thele Perfons who come
and fet up themiclves for Witneffes, were not
orobi Hlomines, and did notappear to be Perfons of
indifferent Credit berween Man and Man, and did
not ftand impartial in the Eye of the World in
other refpeéts before, then they are not to be be-

lieved, as to what they charge themielves and
others to be guilty of. Now,y if M. Gocdman

ftand conviéted of fuch an Offence as this that is
alledged againtt him, tho’ he is pardoned by the
A& of Parliament, orSatisfaétion acknowledged
upon the Record, thoughitbe even the very next
Term, yet that does not purge him from the In-
famy and Difgrace, or from the Impuration of
being concerned infoVillainous a Defign. It is
impofiible that he fhould be a good WVirnefs thac
wou'd be engaged in fuch a Matter, clpecially
when we have thofe various Witaceflcs, and fucn
a concurring Teftimony, that what he has Swermn

15 abfolutely falfe.
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Gentlemen, If there werenothing but hisows
Teftimony in the Cafe, there would be no Quetti-
on at allinit: And as to Capt. Porter’s Teltimo-
ny about his being there, we have produced three
Witnefles, who, if they be of Credit, then 44,
Goodman is not to be believed, but 15 falfified
throughout ; for it isnotthe Queftion, whether
Mr. Cook went away before the Confultation and -
the Refolution ; for if my Lord of Aylesbury, ox
my Lord Montgoiery went away, Mr. Goodman
is falfified in that, and confequently you oughe
not to believe him in the reft; for he actoally
fwears, that my Lord of 4ylcsbury, my Lord
Montgomery, and thofe other Gentlemen, weie all
prefent, and at the Conlult, and did conient and
agree to the Refolution, by ufing thefe Words;
Yes, you way s Tes, youmay. Now,we fay, there
are three Witnefles that fwear, That my Lord of
Aylesbury was gone before he came there. [ do
not care whether he came there, or nor; that 1s
not material: For if there weie no Body tuere
when my Lord of Aylestury was there bt thofe
that weie at Dinner, then My, Goodman was not
there at any fuch Confultation, as they wouldin-
finvate was at that T'ime, 11 that Place, and that
Company.

My Lord, we Lave proved to you Afr. Cook’s
Abhorrence and Declaration, which, we think,
ought to go a great Way;in Satisfaction of his In-
nocence, at leaft to induce you to the fuvourable
Side ; tor, Gentlemen, you are not brought hi-
ther to Convict a Man only,but toTry and Exa-~
mine him, and it is your Duty to Acquit, as
wellas Conviét, according as the Evidence ftands ;
It 1s your Duty to go according to your Confci-
cnces, and to declare whether he be Guilty or
Not Guilty, uponthe Evidence you have before
you: You are to examine the Truth of the Fadt
in allits Circumftances, and upon your own Con-
{ciences to declare, whether he 15 Guilty or Not
Guilty ; now we propofe it toyou, and fubmititto
your Contciences, that heire are three Witnefles,
that {pcak upon their Oaths, againft whom there
is no Ubjection, thatever they were guilty of ly-
ing in wait to Poifon any Body, nor in any Piot
for an Affaflination, nor any Confpiracy for in-
viting an Invifion from Fraice, nor any other
Objection againft them, but they {tand upright
in the Face of the World, and they threc{wear,
That he was not there at that Time. The An-
{wer that weexpect, is, T'hat he might be there,
and they not fee him: And becaufe 1t was poili-
ble he might be there, and they not fee him,
therefore it is no Evidence: But, my Lord, be-
caule it may be fo, is no Evidence that it is fo ;
that’s no Objection; for you will take it as the
Narture of the Thing will afford, and the Matter
itfelf allow. INow there can benobetter Evidence
than this; that they went inand out continually ;
the Drawers, and the Mafter of the Houfe five
or {ix Times himfclf, were in the Room, and
they fay, thercwasno fuch Perfen there. Why
then it 1s very improbable, if not impoffible, thac
any fuch Man {hould be there.  Tlie onc fwears,
he came down from my Lord of dylesiury jufk
before he went away; and another fays, he tol~
lowed him out of the Room; and the Malter
{ays, that he met my Lord of Alcitury ar the
Stairs-head.  All which fallthies 3y, Gooazan in
that Particuiar, thar he was with my Lord of
Arleshyry at the Stairs-head, when he went away,

Thele
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Thefe are incompatible; and if we faifify him
in any on¢ Thing, he is not to be believed inany
other.

Then, Gentlemen, we offer to your Confidera-
tion an Anfwer to another Objetion: They fay
thefe Witneffes feem to {wear, that he was not
there atall. We are not concerncd whether he
was there afterwards, ornot: If you arefatisfed,
that he was not there, as our Witnefles fwear,
while my Lord of Ajylesbuary was there, that’s
enough, Butthenthey make an Objettion, how
comes the Malter of the Houle to remember my
Lord of Aylesbury’s g-oing away, more than any
Bodyelie? Gentlemen, youknow the Nature of
the Thing fhews, not only that it was more pro-
bable the Mafter of the Houle thould make his
Obfervations near the Time of Dinner, rather
than afterwards at Night, when there is more
Hurry : But it is more probable he thould rake
noticeof it from the Quality of the Perfon, from
the Difcourfe he had with him about the White-

wine, which was a good Medinm to vefrelh a
Viatner's Memory, it being a Matter 1n his own
Trade, and that might make him call it to mind.

Therefore, Gentlemen, we think thele three
W itnefles ftand free and clearin their Credit ; and
heing fo, areinconfiftent with Mr, Goodmanw’s Te-
ftimony ; and we hope, in favour of Lifc, the
Credit inclines on their Side, efpecially when the
Queltion is, whether a Man fhall be exccuted for
Treafon who never fled for it, who was never
charg’d with any Treafon or Treafonable Praclizes
before ; nay, not fo much as with any particular
Crime or Immorality: And whether three Wit-
nefles thallbe believed,againft whom there 15 no
Objeftion, rather than Two, againft One of
which there are fuch Objections.

My Lord, we are not now debating or attacks-
ing the Evidence of the Plot, or arraigning the
former Judgments againft the Confpirators that
have {fuffer’d ; bur, Gentlemen, we are putting
you now upon a ferious Enquiry, (as God and
vyour own Confciences fhall incline you) whether
our Client be guilty or not guilty upon this Evi-
dence; thatis, whether Mr. Goodinan{wears true,
or not. We hope that we have given you fufh-
cient Satisfaction, that upon Mr. Gosdman’s Part
the Evidenceisinfufficient 5 and we hope you witl
accordingly find our Client not guilty.

M. At:.Gen. If Mr. Cook haveany thing tofay
himfelf, 1 defire he may fay it now, before we
begin. |

Sir B. Shower. No, pray go on, Sir.

L. C. . Treby. Mr. Cook, wouw'd you {ay any
Thing your flf, before the King’s Counfel fum
up ?
PCaaé. The little I have to fay, my Lord, Dll
{peak now, or by and by, which you pleafe.

L. C. . Treby. You muft do it now, becaufe
after they have fumm’d up, there is nothing
more to be faid by you.

Cook. My Lord, 1thank God, I have lived, a
Life, 1 hope, as good asany Man, and have of-
ren received the Blefled Sacramen: ; I have done
it conftantly, and fhall do it {peedily, by the
Grace of God, as foon as I can have a Minifter
come to adminifter it to me. Idid offeritto my
own Father, when he came to me, and told me,
IF I would confefs this Thing I fhould uot come 1o
Tvial: I told my Father, I would not for Ten

Thoufand Worlds take away the Blood of an in-

f‘or High-Treafon.

nocent Man to {ave mine. I thadk God, I am
in a very good Way to die; Ihave, for at leafk
this laft Year, frequently recetved the Blefled Sa-
crament ; ‘and how I have liv’d, every Body 1in
the Court that knows me can tell my Life and Cons

verfation has been as regular as any Man’s, and L
am as ready to die to-morrow, if Occafion was for

it (I thank God) as any one 3 [ will receive the
Blefled Sacrament upon it ; .and.it is not for Life
that I would do any Thing that is wrong or un-
juft: I dolovemy Nation, and I love the Quiet
of the Nation; I never was for difturbing the
Government that now is; and | ever wasagainit
Foreign Forces or an Invafion, for | never thougit
of one, orheard of it, but w:ith Abhorrenceand
Deteftation : And1 do affure faithfully, 1 thou'd
be forry to difparage Mr. Porter’s Evidence, be-
caule I would have cvery Body that was concern-
ed in that Horrid and Barbarous Crime to {uffer;
in God’s Name, letthemallfuffer. Ithank God,
I never knew any Thing of it, nor of a French
Invafion: And I would fay more of it, butibatl
would not hurt Mr. Porzer's Evidence, whole Dif-
covery of that blcody Bufinels has done {o much
Service. As for Mr. Goodman, as 1 hope to re-
ceive the Blefled Sacrament, and may I perifh
when I do it, if 1 {peak an Untiuth; I would
not for any Thing, no, not for the Good of my
Country, have innocent Blood fpilt 5 I'would lay
down my Lifeto ferve my Country, but 1 would
net have my Blood be lightly loft; and how lit-
tle a Man foever I am, my Blood will lic as hea-
vy upon the Nation as any the weighuefl Man’s
can do. I do not doubr your Loidfhip’s Juftice,
nor the Jury's, but I pray, my Lord, obfervey
though it is ufual not to own Things st the Bar,
yet I do not make this Denial as of Courle, but
out of Truth; and I affure you, in the Prefence
of the whole Coure, if I thould {uffer tor this, I
muft at my lait Moments either confels or deny
{omething: And, I fay, 1 do affure, in the Pre-
{ence of the whole Court, and I will take the
Blefled Sacrament upon it, that 1 mufl, at my
Death, deny this whole Matter, and that ever ]
did fee Mir. Gosdman at all there 3 1do not think
[ faw him; I do not remember I {aw Mr, Good~
man at ally except once 1 Geimain-flrect, When
the Coach broke, and that muft be but in pafiing
by neither, and he would have hurt or kill’d the
Coachmun, and we kept bim from it and I
walk’d with him half the Length of Germain-
[rreet, before 1 knew who Mr. Goodinan was, 1
ever a one of thofe Gentlemen, that are Men of
Credit and Honour, can fay I was any ways fe
inclined, or that they ever faw me; or knew
me, that 1 ever bought a Piftol or a Blunder-
buis, or the like, may God fink and ftritke me
dead; and the Bieffed Sacrament, which I'intend
to receive, be my Curle and Damnation, if I
knew of King Fames’s Coming, tillatter the whole
‘Town rang of it: [ had no Hand in the Invafi-
on; and, befides my Abhorrence of introducing
forcign Force, I defire your Lordfhip and the Ju-
ry to confider the Circumitances of my Cale, thar
1 had but a very fmall Allowance from my Fa-
ther, and therefore it is not probable I f(hou’d
take upon me to join with my Lord of dylesburyy
and my Lord Montgomery, and thole other Gen-
tlemen, to fend Mr. Charnock into France, to in-
vite over a Foreign Force : And I call Ged 1o

witnefs I had no Hand in it, I beg your Lord-
{hip’s



77°

thip’s Pardon for all this Trouble; I would not
hurt M. Porter’s Evidence, for the Reafons that
1 have told you; but this is for my Life, and 1
don’t {fo much value that as I do T'ruth and Since-
rity; and I fhall receive the Blefled Sacrament,
it I die, that I never did do {o. Indeed I never
did take the Qaths, nor did I everrefule them,
becaufe they were never ofter’d me; but I wou’d
take the Oathsnow if they were offer’dme, My
l.ord, I beg your Pardon for this Trouble.

L. C. 7. 9reby. Have you done, Siv ? Have you
faid all you would fay ¢

Cook, Yes, my Lord.

L. C. 7. Treby. Then, you Gentlemen of the
King’s Counfel, will you conclude?

11. Soll. Gen. May it pleafe your Lordthip, and
you Gentlemen of the Jury, 1am of Counfel in
this Cafe for the King, and 1 could have been
very glad that this Gentleman’s Defence that he
has made had been frronger than in Truth it has
been: And 1 fhould have been very giad too that
his Counfel had been able to have made it better
for him; butthat he and they may be fatished as
much 1sdonc as the Cale will bear; they have
had all the Libertyin the World to make his De-
fence l:hcy could defire, nay, more than in Strict-
ne!s could be silowed them.

Gentlemen, our Evidence is very pofitive a-
gainft the Prifoner at the Bar, and for the highett
Crime that the King’s Subjeéts can be ﬂuzlr}f of,
by the Confeflion of the Ge ntlﬂmm himclf and
ot his Counfel. We have, 1 fay, two pofiive
Witnefles againft him thf:y ﬁy they are not le-
gal ones: I muft own, if we have not two Wit-
nefles, we have never an one; for what{oever
filrﬁes Mr. Goodinzi’s Ueltimony, falfifies what-
{oever Afr. Poiter has (worn. Now, the Evidence
that 4fv. Porter has given againft him, is this:
tetays, There was to bc a [‘sflcctmg at the Kins's-
Head~Taverr  in Leaden-Fall-Grezt, and there
they confuited of the Mctheds to bring back ing
J2es hither; and it was thoughe the beft ny
to lend to King Fames v vite the french King
ro {end 1000 Hm (e, toco Dragoons, and §:00
Foort, to Land hercinthis Ixm&dom, where they
would mect him with 2000 Hoife, They pircly’ d
upon a very propey Mellenger, 7. Charneck, a
Perlon th'u: has been arrainted, and has {uffer’d
tor High-Treafon; e was to bc {ent into France
upon this Errand; V. Co-k, the Prifonerat the
hu;, was onc of thc Perfons that were there at
thar' Time, and he w asconfenting to this Meflage s
and Adr. Porter gives you np"utlcuhr Token re-
jating tothe Prilone ry forhe remembers the Pit-
ioner did kncel upon the Chatr, andlean’d his El-
bows upon the Table when he confented.

wlr. Porter goes turther, and tells you, That
M. Chariock would have another Meeting; ¢, 1O
know and {ce whether all the Company were of
tlic fame Mind they h'm hecns and, That alter-
wards they met av 2. Mezntjey’s Houle, and
there the Prifonerat the Bar was prefent, 'md con-
fenting to the fame Thing: Thereupon My, Char-
sock went into Fraice, and came back again, and
{a1d, 'The French King could not {fpare {fo much
Force.  Adi. Goedman gives the fame Kvidence
that My, Porter had given: It’s trae, he was not
at Mys. Mouutjoy's Vavern, but hetells you with-

al, ne {poke with M, Charsocz when he came

back from Fraice, and Charnock return’d him the
fame Anfwer he did to M. Porter, That the Freiich
King could not {pare fo many Forces. Thisisthe
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Evidence in fthort, Gentlemen, that is given a-
aainft'the Prifoner; and if this Ewdcncc be true,

then is he guilty of the Crime for which he is in-
dicted.

Againtt thefe Witneffes they have produced,
firft,a Record ot Conviction againft My, Gosdian,
and that was for Hiring one Amyde; to poilon
the Duke of Graftoiz, and the Duke ‘of Nisthum-
berland : ‘They have produc’d the Record, where-
by it appears, he was Convicted, and Fmed 1200 /.
and was to find Sccurity for his good Behaviour
curing Lifc; and he was to lic in Prifon till the
Fine paid, and Security given: But it hap-
pens, in th n: verv Record itappears there was Sa-
tisfaction acknowledg’d upon that, cven the eIy
next Term s and thatuu’r: a grear deal of Sulpi-
cion tobelicve, that the Evidence that was given
was nat much credited y for, tho® the Couentel for
the Prifoner has faid, that it was the Payment of
the 1000/, that was the Satisfaction § no, It 15 not
fo, 1tisa Satisfaltion of the whole Judgment, for
finding Security as well astheFine,  Theylay he
was not ableto pay the Fine, and there isnothing
appears of the other Parts of the Iuﬂﬂzncnt[:u.mrr
complicd wit, but the whole Judgmeznt is fctas
fide.

Butall this docs not make a Man 76 [ ezl VY it-
nels; if they thought this Conviticn tended 1o
et alide bis fvidence,they would have preduc'dic
at another Part of the Trial, than where they did
'That 15, when Ay Goodiivas was firlt cali’d to be
fworn as a Wiitnels, then they fhould have
produced this Record, and faid he had been no
Witnefs: But they knew well enough that that
was no [bxception againit the Legality of his Evi-
dence, but tends only to his Credit, and nothing
clfe. Now, tho’ it be a black Crime to endea-
vour to poilonanother, yet thatdocs not totally
deftroy any Man’s Credit ; ificdid, then the other
Gentleman, Adr. Perter, has cnnfeﬁ’d him{elf guil-
ty of a greater Ciime than that for which A
Goodman is convicted by this Record 5 for he
owns himfelf one that wasin that Defign Df Aflaf-
finating the King, And M. Good w1272 OWns him-
felf too guilty of a greater Crime then lwt s
objected to him, which is that of High-Tre:fin s
and, | hope, if he mav be believed, when he owns
hin fclr guilty of mr,-., Ticaforn, wlnch 15 agreater
Crimethan Pmionmqunvatc Subicét; or rmlty
of {uch a Defign as the Affaffination of the King,
which Mr. Perter has charg’Jd himfclt with, and
notwith{tanding which, they have not ofier’d thae
as an LException againft Adr. Poreer’s Ividence,
(ior the} very well know, his Evidence has been
receiv’d, and credited ) Mr. Goodiian may be
credited, tho’ guilty of the Crimc cbijcled to
him: And the conftant Practice in all Trials of
this kind hath been, that it docs not take away
the Witnefs’s Evidence, however it affelts his
Credit, which in this Cafe is {fupported by the
cencurrent Teltimony of Afi. Porter. And fo
then, T fay, we have two legal Wimnefles (not-
wuhihndmg all the Ehcepnnnb) to prove M.

Couz guilty of the Crime for which he 15 in-
difted.

Then they go on further, and preduce cther
Witnefles: Firdt,y they produce one Fdwwaids, a
Peifon that is committed for High-Treafois him-
{clf, and under Sufpicion of his Lcrrrr to be one
of thofe that was to have a Hand in the Afilina-
tion ; but hisEvidence goes no further, than that
My, Goodman told him he was to be a Witnefs

againft
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againft Mr, Cook, and cither he the Witnefs, or
Mr. Cook muft fuffer; and, Thar it was a foolifh
thing to be hang’d. My Lord, there is noihing
at all in this Matter that takes away Mr. Gosdinan's
Evidence : It isvery plain Mr. Goodinas had for-
feited his Life, and muft do fomething to fave ir,
and I think he could not do a better Service to

entitle himfelt to the King’s Mercy, than todif~

cover thofe that were equully guilty with himfelt,
*Twas his Duty to have done it, if he had not
been in Danger; and if he hath done no more
then what washis Duty, Thope thatis no Objec-
tion againft his Teftimony.

‘They have produced likewilc a Drawer of the
King's- Head Toverny onc Crawford, and he fays,
he attended in this Room while this Company was
there. But then he goes a little further than the
Counfel, or the Priloncr would have had him;
for they called him to prove that Mr. Gosdman
was not there when my Lord of Aylesbury, my
Lord Meantgomery, and Mr. Cook were there,  But
when the Drawer comes, he knows nothing of
Mr, Goodman's being there ac all: Helays, My,
Cook was there, but not Mr. Gavdman 3 and yet
he does acknowledge, that Mr. Goodman might
be there, and he not {ee bim comcup. He ac-
knowledges he attended upon other Company as
well as this; {o that it is plain in the Nature of
the Thing, and his own Confeffion, that Goodwraiz
might be there. This cannottuke off the pofitive
Evidence of Mr. Goodrain, and Mr. Portery who
both {wear, That Gosdman was there.

But then they produce another Drawer, and
that is one Huitly; and he gives the fame Ace
count, only indeed he {ays; He was there all the
while they were at Dinner : Butthat is nothing,
becaufe it is acknowledg’d both by Mr. Porter,
and Mr. Guodman, That he wasnotthere at Din-
ner-Time, but he might be there after Dinner,
and yet Huutly could not {ec himat Dinner: He
tells you likewife, he pafs’d up, and downin the
Room afterwards, and did not fee Mr. Goodinan
there; bur yet he might be there, and henot fec
him,

Then they produce the Malter of the Houfe,
and he gives much the fame Evidence in Effelt
which his Servants do, That he did not {ee Mr.
Goodman there all the while 3 but he fays {ome-
thing that is a Jittle incredible ; Fle can be pofi-
tive that Mr. Gosdman was not there while my
Lord of Aylesbury was there, but he cannot be
pofitive he was not there afrerwards. He tells
you, he metmy Lord of Aylesbury, and my Lord
Montzomery uponthe middle of the Statrs coming
down, and he is fure Mr. Goodian was notin the
Room at that Time. Now, is that poflible that
he can be fure of thaty, when he owns, (and
cannot but own) That Mr. Goedman might go
into the Room, and he not fec him: So that he
has made a ftrain in his Evidence that it is very

Jittle to be credited, which was not defigned
{o much for the Advantage of Mr. Cook as for the
Advantage of fomebody clfe: And, initlelf, it
is almoft an impoffible Thing that it {hould be
true, by what he offers as the Reafonof his Evi-
dence. _

But then, Gentlemen, you are to confider,
that all thefe three Witnefles, if they {wear true,

do falfify not only Mr. Goodman, who {wears, . .
we have done on all Sides, we think,

That he was there; but they likewife falfify the
Evidence of My, Porter, and for that Reafon 1
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ask’d Mr. Porter the Queftioni, Whether he did

not give the fame Evidence againftSir Yobn Friend ?

And if what he {wears now be not true, neither
was it true when Sir Fobn Friend was try’d, for
he was the only Witnefs at that Time againit Sir
Fobn Friend, tor this Meting ; and thercfore
thele Mens Teltimony tends to overthrow both
Witnelles as well as one: And 1 mufl tell you,
that if Mr. Goodizan be not a legal Witnels, be-
caufe he has {worn a T'hing that isnot true, then
My, Porteris not a good Witnels, who has fworn
the fame Thing, viz. That Mr. Goadinan was
there ; and then you ought to acquit the Prifoner,
becaufe there isno Witaefs again{t him at Law 5
for there is the fame Evidence againft Mr. Por-
ter; that there is againft Mr. Goodman as to this
Matter,

Then, Gentlemen, asforthe Character of Mr.
Cook, they fay he is a good Eanglifh Proteflait, 1
hope heis fo; butit is plain, that Religion does
not vary the Cafe: *I'is within the reach of eve-
ry Man’s Memory thar is here, thatr the fame
1hings have fallen upon other Gentlemen that
have had the fame Gharalter, particalarly Sir
Yobir Friend, and Sir William Perkins, who both
{aid the fame Things, in the fame Place, That
they were Zrue Protefiants of the Charcl of Eng-
land. But that 1s no Manner of Evidence that
will be Weighe againft pofitive Gaths.

Now, Gentlemen, itis it likewile you fhould
reflet upon another Thing: What 1s 1t that
thould engage Mr, Porter, and Mr. Goodman, or
invite either of thofe two Gentlemen to give a
falfe Evidence againft the Prifoner at the Bar? It
docs not appear that there was any Injury done
by him to them, toprovoke them to it ; fo that
it could be for nothing bur for the fake of Truth.

It has been further faid on the behalf of M.
Cooky That Le abhorred the French, and any In-
vafion upon his Country, and the like: It is a
Matter that is eafily faid 3 and it has been faid by
others that have been in the fame Place where he
now ftands ;s That they hated all Plots, and they
might punith them if ever they caught them. But
thelearc only Sayings, and nothingelle. Ifthere
can be any Conftruétions made of the Evidence
given by thele two Witnefles, that docs not di-
reCtly prove the Indi¢tment, then the Prifoner
ought to be acquitted : But if therc can be no
other Conftruftion made, but only, That there
was a plain Defign to fend Ghariock into Fraice,
to King James, to perfuade him to prevail with
the French King, to come and invade us with a
Forcign Force : And if our Witnefles are legal
Witnefles, (as, 1 doubtnot, my Lords the Judges
will tell you they ares if there be no Exception
to the Credit of Goodman, but only that he was
in fuch a Defign of Poifoning the two Dukes,
which is really no Objetion of Diferedit to his
Teftimony ;) then, with Submiffion, I think there
is no Room left for you, Gentlemen of the Ju-
ry, to doubr, but that the Prifoner is as guilty
of this Crime laid to his Charge, as any qgthers
that have been try’d and condemn’d tor the fame ;
And fo, Gentlemen, I leave it to you,

L. C. 7. Treby.. Mr. Couyers, and Mr. Cowper,
will you fay any Thing to this Matter ?

Mr. Conyers, and Mr. Cowper. No, my Lord,
we fubmit it entircly to your Lordfhip’sDiretion ;

L.C.¥
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L..C. %. Treby. Gentlemen of the Jury, the
Prifoner at the Bar, Mr. Cook, ftands indiéted here
for High-Treafon; there ave laid in the Inditment
two Sorts of Treafon 3 the one is, Compafling
and Imagining the Death of the King, the other
is adhering to the King’s Enemies. The Evi-
dence to prove thefe Treafons feems to be joints
for, as to that of Compafiing and Imagining the
King’s Death, as well as to the other, the Overt
Adls are meeting and confulting about the Trea-
{fon, and then agreeing and refolving to invite
and procurean Invafionfrom France, and to meet
that Invafion with an Infurrection here. And

the Bvidence is apply’d eatirely to prove thefe
Afts.

Gentlemen, that theleare proper Owert 485 of
Compaffing the King’s Death, I need not inform
you, the Law is very wellknown s and the Pri-
{oner’s own Council do acknowledse, thatthefe
are fufficient Overt Aéts of Compafling and Ima-
gining the King's Death: Sothat all whichthey
defend him by is, the Improbability of the Tefti
mony given againft him.

Now, Gentlemen, you are to confider and
weigh well the Evidence that hasbeen given. By
Law, itistrue, asthey obferve, there mult be fawo
Witneffes. Hereisno Defe€tof Number ; that’s
acknowledg’d too, here are two Witnefles; but
the Queftion is, whether here be two Witnefles
that defcrve Credir, and upon whofe Teftimony
you can find that the Prifoner is guilty. The
Witnefles, Gentlemen, are Mt, Poster and M.
Goodman,

Firfty For the Matter of their Teftimony, itis
pofitive from them both 5 that you’lldo well to
obferve. Mr. Partertells you, That in May lalt,
(which is now juft a Twelvemonth) there wasa
Meeting of cight Perfons, that is, my Lord of
Ayleshuryy my Lovd Moutgoinery, Sir Fobn Fenwic?,
Sir Z7illiam Perkins,Siv Fobn Friend, 2y, Charaoeck,
Mr. Cook the Prifoner at the Bar, andthe Witnels
bimf{elt Mr. Porter 3 and thiswas at the King's- Head
‘Tavernin Leaden-hall-fi; -ot, and therethete Kight
dined, and this was in order to confult about an
Invafion, together withan In{urrettion intended
to be made for the Reftoring of the laie King.
After Dinner comes in Mr, Goodman, he {ays,
and then they purfued this Confultacion, and came
to a Refolution, to {end Mr. Charnock into Frauce,
and the Meflage was agreed upon which he fhould
carry 5 and he was'to go to the late King, and
{follicite him to obtain 10,000 Soldiersfrom the
French King, whereof Sooc thould be Foor, 1c00
Horfe, and 1000 Dragoons. Thefe were to
make up tho 10,020 Men to invade this Kingdom.
And they refolved allo, when this Ferce thould
land, they fhould meet and aflift this Invafion
with a joint Force, that {hould confift of 2000
Horfe.  And to acquaint and affure him of this,
was the Meflace. But, he {ays, That Mr, Charnock
was very cautious in ity and would not prefently
go upon this Errand, but he would have further
Affurance that they were in earneft, and would
make good what they did fend him to propole,
therefore lie would havea {fecond Meeting 5 and a
fecond Meeting was had, and that was at Mrs.
Mountjoy's Tavern, and there they did renew the
fame Refolution, and there wereprelent my Lord
of Aylesbuiy, Siv Williams Perkins, Six Jobu Fen
wick, Siv Fobn Friend, Mr.Chariock, the Prifoner
at the Bar, and himfelf 5 hedocs not know or re-
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member whether my Lord Monzgomery, or Mr.
Goodman was there. He fays, Mr. Chariock did
accordingly go into Frauce, and hedid returnand
bring back King Fames’s Thanks to them, bur
their Defive could not be comply’d with 5 and he
had his Share ot the Compliments.

Now comes Mr. Goodian, and he fays, Thazt
about the fame Time, viz. Mid. May, Wir, Perter
acquainted him,there would bea Mecting of fome
of King Fames’s Friends, at this Tavern in Lea-
deit-ball-fireet.  He fays, “That he did tell Mr.
Porter, hedoubted hic thould not bethere at Die-
ner, but he would come as foon as he could af-
ter Dinner; and according to Appolntment, he
did come after Dinner, and there was this Con-
{ultation and Refolution that Mr. Perrer iy caks of,
and {ays, That Mr. Charnock aiterwards told him,
he had been v Framce with the late King, and
brought back the fame Anfwer that Mr. Poster
chal-:s of ; and he had cthe Honour of ‘ihanks
from the late King too.

Gentlemen, | muft obferve one Thing toyou,
which does go very much towards the Cenfirm-
ing what thefe Wiwmefics fay, and that is the
Agreement in their Teltimonies, tho’ they were
examin'd apart at the Defire of the Prifoner :
You will find theyagree in thefe leveral Circum-
{tances, in the Time, thatic was this Time twelve-
months; inthe Place, thatitwasat this Taverns
in the Number of Perlonsthat were there, which
was Eight before Mr. Goodman came in; in the
Number of Horfey, Foot, and Drigoons that were
to be brought from Framce, and in thole Horfe
that were to meet them here s and befides, in
thofe Words of Dilcourfe upon the Confuliation
and the Relolution, And there is one Circum-
ftance more 1n which they do agree, and which
is very particular; That when they came to deli-
ver their Confent tothis Mefiage thativir, Char-
sock was to carry, the reft far, ard Mr. Cook the
Priloner did kneel upon the Chair, and lean’d
upon the Table. And this both of them do
agreein, Andafterall the many Quettionsask’d
in their feparate Examination, I do not find they
difagree in any Part of their Evidence.  So thar,
Gentlemen, there can remain no Queftion now,
but whether thefe two Witnefles are Men of
Credit ; or, whether there has beer oppofed (o
them any {uch Evidenceas will make youbelieve,
that (if not both) at leaft one of them has for-
fworn himfelf, "Theydo produce nothing againft
Mr. Porter, whatfoever may havebeen produc’d
at tormer Trials againft his Credir : Ferbaps
what has been before, has {atisfied the Cbjettors,
and there is nothing anpears againft his Credit ;
but he 1s not only a cempereat but a very clear,
good, credible, and undoubted Wienels.

But againftMr. Goodmai they ofter feveral Things
whichthey fay amountto a violent Prefumption,
that heis not to belook’d upon as a credible Wit~
nefs: And firft, they producea Record of a Con-
viCtion uponan {nformation againft him, for at-
tempting to ponion two Noble Dukes: This he
was convicted of, and fin’d 1000 /. and ordered
to find Sureties for his good Behaviour during his
Life. But, to thisitisanfwered, thatitappears
in the fame Record, that Satisfattion wasacknowe
ledged of the 1000 /. and all the reft of the Judg-
ment the very next Term, and he was forthwith
difcharged, and that without paying the Money,
which ("twas obferv'd) the Prifoner’s Counfel faid

Mr,



1696.0. 5.

Mr. Goodman was not able to pay at that Time,

no more than he could 20,c00/. and thereupon the

King’s Counfc! fay, that the Government was
convinc’d that he was wrong’d by a caufelefs Pro-
{ccution, and the Evidence againft him was found
not to be credible.  And befides, Mr. Goodmer
ftands pardoned by feveral Aéts of Pardons, as
well as other Subjects,

T'hen they produce one Edwards, who is a Pri-
foner here, and committed for Sulpicion of High-
Treafon, and for Trealonable Praétices: He s,
no doubt of it, 2 Witnels tor all that : For that
is but an Accufation upon him, and does not take
away his Credit. He tells you of a Dilcourfe
that he had with Mr. Goodmain, and that Goodnan
ask’d him when the Prifoner was to be try’d;
and he told him he wou'd be try’d {uch a Day;
and when it was ask’d what it was for, it was an-
fwer'd, not for the Affatlimation, butr for {cnd-
ing Mr. Charnock into France. Heask’d then who
were the Witnefles againft him 2 Mr. Goodinan
{aid, Mr. Perteir and him{elt. And further faid,
that heunderitood that Myr. Cook had {worn agamit
him (though he would give an Account of no
Body elic) and had no Pardon, and cither he
muil hang, or himfelf. And then he talk’d light-
ly of the Bufinefs of Hanging, and faid it was a
tooilfh Thing to be hang’d, for all that People
would fay, was, that {uch an one hang’d baiid/vinly
or dy'd dravely. This indeed is 2 Sort of Dul-
courfe as if Mr. Goodman did apprehend himfelf
in Danger from Mr. Cook’s tvidence; and yet [
cannot fee that it does at all falfify the Evidence
of ¥Mr. Gosdmigin: He maybc a true Wiinels, and
yet he might fay he was to give Evidence againit
Mr. Cook, and it was in Mr, Cook’s Power to give
Tvidence againtt him, and that truly; and it
‘both were in the Guilt, they were in Danger of
one another. But for a further Anlwer, the
King’s Counfel have produc’d Mr. Dela Rre, who
{ays, that he knew Mr. Edwards,and that he wasa
Scotchinainy, and reputed Chaplain to the Vilcount
of Duidee, that he went formerly by the Name
of Donglas, and by that Name he was {et down
and defcribed in the Lift that Mr. Charnock lent
to Captain Porter; and to that Name heanfwer'd
in the Prefs-Taid lately, Now itis certain, that
Mr. Charnock’s putting of his Name in that Lit,
1s no Evidence of his being guilty in Mr.Clariock’s
Treafon. Burt his going by two Namesdoth juitly
lay him under fome Sufpicion. But the Evidence
that the Prifoner feems to rely upon moil, 1s
what Evidence has been produc’d againit wir.
Goodinan in that Point of [Maét, by the Malter
‘and the two Drawers; the firlt of the Drawers
Name was Crawford, and he doces tell you, that
about tw:lve Months ago there was this Company
at inner there : My Lord of 4ylesbury, my Lord
Momigowery, Siv Fobin Friend, Siv Fobn Fenwick, Sit
Wil Perkins,Captain Porter,Mr. Chariock, and
‘the Prifoner, though he did not then know his
Name, or the Name of one or two move of
them [ oblerve by the Way, that his Teflimony
‘fo far does verify theirs, that there were eight of
‘them there, but hefays he did not fee M. Guodman
-there, nor any but tholc th.t dined there. And
my Lord of Ayleshriy went away, as he tninks,
-about Four o’clock He cannot {ay that the Pri-
“foner was there, or was gone at that ‘Time before
“Mr. Goodman came in; for he did not lee Mir,
* Goodman there at all, he was not in the Room all
the Time, but-he was to and fro attending till my
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Lord of Alesbusy and tay-Lord Montgomery went
away in a Coach that was called, and when they
were gone, the reft of the Company ftaid there
a good while ; being urged to tell how long, at
laft he faid it was dark, and that agrees with Mr.
Porter, who {ays, it was abour nine o’clock when
they went away. He fays he was there oncc or
twice after my Lord of Aylesbury went away,
but he never faw Mr. Goodman that he rememberts
av all, tll laft Sararday, inall his Life. Asto
this, the King’s Countel {iy, that it is only a se-
gative Kvidence, and in which 2 Man cannor be
abiolutely pofitive, but can only fpeak according
to his Oblervation and Memory, which might
not be perfeét, and Mr. Goodman might be there
in the mean time of his going in and out: That
is pofhble ; and fo it muit be left to you to con-
{ider of 1t. _

V' hen there is Huatley the other Drawer, and
he fays my Lord of Aylesbury went away about
that Time, and that he did not fee Mr. Goodinan
there ar all, nor ever in his Life till now; nei-
ther does he remember that any Body came to
them after Dinner, and if any frefh Man had
then come iny he thinks he fhould (g-ing ofren
in to them) have known him; and fays, that he
attended this Company only: And he had feen
Sir Fobu Friead and Siv William Perkins theve
before.

Then Mr. Cock, the Mafter of the Houle, was
produced, and he names all theeight Perfons that
did dinc there, and fo far he confirms the King's
Evidence: He thinks that my Lord of Aylestury
and my Lord Moxuzgomery went away privately (as
it fecms they had come) in 2 Hackne;~Coach,
and that1t was about Four o’clock, and he (ays, he
did not fee Mr. Goodian therey and he docs not
know that he ever faw him till now: But when
he was crofs-examined by the King’s Counfel, he
does acknowledge that he might poflibly come in
after Dinner, and before my Lord of Adylesbury
went away, and he not fee him, becauvle he was
not there all the Time; he fays, Sir Febu Fricid
ulcd to dine at his Houle, and came 1o his Houle
once 2 Week s and he had feen fome of the reft,
but they did not frequent his Houfe as Sir Febi
Fiiead did : He fays, the Company din’d about
Two o’clock, and the latt of them ftaid till a-
bout Eight or Nin-, and that the Door was fhut
as is ufual when Company is in a Rcom, but no
Body v as forbid to come there.

But to eltablifh the Credirt of the Evidence on
the King’s Part, they did preduce Mr. Goodzair
and Mr. Porter again : Mr. Goodrisan docs ackuow-
ledge fo far to be true, that my Lord of jclesbury
went away firft ; bur fays, that himfelf was not
wholly a Stranger to this Houfe, for he had di-
ned there four or five Times with Sir fobi Fricid,
and particularly one Time, he being fick, and
asking for fome Brandy, the Mafter ot the'Houle
(aid he would help him to fomeof the bett in Lirg-
land,and Mr. Goodman would have boughtiome of
him. But the Maiter feems not to own that, and
fays, hedoes not remember any Thing of it

But then comes My, Porfer again, and hefays
pofitively, that Mr. Goeodinans was there, and that
he did {peak with theCompany,and complimented
my Lord of Aylesbuiy when he went away, and
went Part ofthe Way tawards the Statrs wigh him;
and he does well remember it by this Token, that

.when Mr. Porter was told Mr. Goodman was below,

he mentioned him in the Company as a truty
f I ) Man'r
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Man, that was fit for the Converfation, and then
Mr. Porter wentand fetch’d him up,and Mr Good-
sman was there near two Hours, and they difcour-
fed all this Matter in that Time in the Prefonce of
the Prifonerand thereft; and hefays it was about
fix o’clock before my Lord of Aylesbuiy, and my
Lord }Mouigomery went away, and then there was
Opportunity enough for this Difcourfe, and Con-

{ult chat they fpeak of.
The Prifoner has offered another Sort of kvi-

dence: Firft the Confidence of his ownlnnocence,
that he was abroad three Weeks after this Coufpi-
racy was difcovered ; and thes have produced Mr.
Trezannay Mr. Peacky, and Mr. Nichols, who prove
that he never abfconded, but wasabroad, and ap-
peared openly (for three Weeks atter) will fuch
Time as he was taken, This the King’s Counfel
fay is no Proof that he is not Guilty, and their
Evidence untrue. They fay he might have a
Confidence, and the rather becaufe he s not char-
ged with the Aflaflination; for at that Time
thefe Witneffes {peak of, nothing was difcovered,
and publick but the Affaffinaticn; for it was be-
fore Sir Fobu Friend’s Trial 5 and then was the
grcat Dilcovery of the Secret of the Invafion.
Then he thews further as to his Converfation,
that he is a Man of a very fober Life, ncver was

known to {wear, that he drinks but little, and is
a Gudly Man, and often fays his Prayers. As to
that, the King’s Counlel on the other Side tell
you, that has been pretended to by other People
too; and the Queftion 1s not about Relizisn, but
this Faét that you are now to try.  Whether he
be {o Religious, or no as he pretends, or whether
he be fincere in his Devotion, that is not {o much
the Matter now, but the Queftion is, whether he
has offended in this Kind as he ftands accufed ?
They produce a Gentleman, one Mr. Famnzond,
and he {ays that heis avery Conlcientious Man,
and particularly is a great Lover of his Country
and he has often heard him declare a Deteftation
of an Invafton by a Freach Force, and wifh Suc-
cefs to the Ddeety brr 7har which he remembers

chiefly, was about the Time of the Difcovery of

this lot. The King’s Counfel anfwer to this,
that a Man may ufe fuch kind of Expreflions, per-
haps to cover his Guilty and in the Reply 1o Sir
Bartholomew Shower’s Obfervations, it was taken
notice of by Mr. Sefliciter, (what we all cannot
but remember) that the like Evidence was given
as to Sir Fobu Friend, that he did deteft an Inva-
{ion,and was prefent at the Common-Prayer when
King Willian was pray’d for, and declar’d againft
Plots; and that if they catch’d him in the Corn
they might put him in the Pound. Thele Things
a Man might {ay, and 1t is the lighteft Evidence
that can be given, being Difcouries out of Mens
own Mouths, who will never proclaim their own
Gult; and therefore it 1s the weakeft Defence
that can be offered. But, Gentlemen, you are to
confider the other Evidence that has been produ-
ced by the Prifoner, given by f{everal Witnefles,
and who are upon their Oaths now as well as the
King’s Witnefles. And his Counfel {1y their Wit-
nefles, but particularly the three upon whom they
chiefly rely, have no Objetion made out againft
them ; and no Man’s Teltimony ought to be pre-
famed to be falle.  And it mult be taken notice
of, that they can fpeak only according to their
Belicf, grounded on their Oblervation, and Me-
mory, that they did not, fo far as they obferved,
or remember, fee Mr. Goodman there, as 'twas
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moft probable they fhould if he had been, But
’tis poflible they might overlook, or forger; the
rather for that they were not of the Company,
but in and out, up and down; and Mr, G.odviai
was not there at Dinnery when their Attendance
was fix’d and conltant.

It ought tobe confidered alfo, that here arc fe-
veral Circumflances, fome ot which feem very
pregnant. It is agreed on all Hands, that the
Piifoner dined there with thofe other teven Ier-
fons, concerning Four of whem we muft conclude
nothiig; but concerning Three of them we in
this Court may take noticc, they are Attainted
of High-Treafon, and fo 1t is evident that the
Frifoner was for a long Time a Companion of
three Traitors, and had a2 Converfation with

them. 1do not find that he had any Qccafion to
be there; nor any of the reft of the Company.
Concerming my Lovd of Aylesbury, indeed it 1s
fard he propofed to treat abour a Hoglhead of
White Wine. DBut thar {eems to be cajual, and
not the End of his Coming, and Dining with this
Company there. But, be that how it wili, that
relates to his Lordthipalone. But, forthe others,
1 do not find they do pietend any Occafinn of
Meeting there ; and thercore it lexves it the more
fufprcinu.-i: And ’tis the more {o, becaule it was
managed fo privatcly, and cauttoufly. They were
not attended according to their Quahries. 'The
Lords wenr away togecher in a Hackne: -Coach
that was called, as they had come thither 14 ano-
ther. Thereft thought fit to ftay thercdiil it was
dark ; and as foonas it was fo, went away. ‘'here
was fome extraordinary Caule for ail this. It did
import the Prifoner to fhew, thatit was for fome
good Caufe, and Purpole.

And further, it is obfervable that this Houfe
was a Place which, as the Matter favs, nonc of
this Company did ule to refort to, excepr Sir Foliz
Friends which mukes 1t probable (this being a
Houlfe that Sir fuba Friead trcquented, and none
of the others) that &e befpoke this Place, and
brought the reft thither: And if it were{o, rhat
makes it more probable that there was fuch a
‘Treafon there to be hatch’d, as is ¢videnced by
the King’s Witnefles; for you may remcmber,
and it appears by the Record in this Court, that
Sir Fobu Friend was indifted and attainted (not
for the Aflaflinationy but) for the Thealon tor
which the Priloneris now a Tiying, an Invafion
that was to be fupported with an infurreétion.
Now if Sir Jobn Friend was chicfly acquainted
with this Houle, and brought this Company to-
gether, it is very probabie it was about this Bufi-
nefs which Sir Fobn Fiicnd was {o concerned in.
And that he is Artainted for it, appears upon the
Record before us; which fhould be read, but
that the Prifoner’s Counfel admit ir, and are fo
far fatished in it, that they won’t Arraign the
Veidit; nay, they did acknowledge that there
was a Plot; and there was no Doubt of ii, there
was fuch a Plot.

Now then, Gentlemen, hereit is certainly pro-
ved by thefe two Witnefles, (and not gain-faid by
the Priloner’s own Wiinefles) that there was fuch
a Meeung, and that the Prifoner was there; and
they both have pofitively fworn that this Treaf n
was committed there. You have heard what has
been objelted to their Credir; they have dcli-
vered their Teftimony upon their Oaths, and {o,
Gentlemen, you are upon your Oaths: If you
ate {atishied, and can take it upon your Con-

{ciences
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{ciences, that thefe two Witnefles are, or any
one of them is, (if fuch Diftinction can poffibly
be made in this Cafe) then you arc to acquit the
Prifoner; butif you are fatisfied, and think they
have {worn truc, you are to find him Guilty.

My. F. Rokeby. Nay, if onebe forfworn, both
are; for the Evidence is intirely in all Parts the
fame; and if Mr. Giodinan be perjured, Mr, Porter
s {o too.

Sir B. Shower. For{worn and Perjured are hard
Words; weonly fay miltaken.

M. f. Rokeby. Well, that Objettion gocs to
one as well as tother.

L. C. . Treby. It mufi be {o, fince they fpesk
of the fame joint Mattcry viz. their being toge-
ther in Company. If Mr. Porter lays true, when
he {wears that Mr. Geedman was there with him
and the reft, Mr. Goodizan muft fay true when
he fwears that he was there with Mr. Porzer and
the reft.  There was one Thing that I forgot:
Qir B. Shower obferved, that it mgnt be an In-
vention of Captain Porver, becaule he fixeth it in
Point of Time to the Month of May, that hedoes
not fay it was in 4pril; for that then it would be
within the Pardon, which cxtends to April 29, laik
Year ; nor would he lay it in Fune, for then he
was in Newgare, and cthers of them were difper-
{cd by realonofa Riot committed in Drury-Lane s
and this Sir Bartholvmeww Shower ailedges, was a
Piece of Skilland Contrivance: Bur, really, this
is a Picce of Ingenwity in himfelf: For, befides
that the King’s Witneflesafhirm pofitively thatic
was in May, and remember it by a certain To-
ken, viz. That it was within a very few Days
after the King went beyond Sea, one, or two of
the Prifoner’s Witnefles (Crawfoid 1 am { re)
did fay that this Meeting was this Time Twelve-
month, and you know we are now near mid-A7zy.

M. Serj. Darpel. H you believe our Drawers
for part, you mufl believe them for all,

My, At Genn. No, not fo: My Lord fpeaks
only where they concur with our Evidence. It
were ftrange to expeét we fhould disbelicve, or
doubt what the Witnefles on boch Sides athrm to
be true: But, I do not think it would be to the
Advantage of the Prifoner, 1f what his Counle]
propofeth were agreed to, viz, Thatthe Draw-
ers (and their Mafter too} fhould be believed
for all they fay, provided equally the King’s Wit-
neffes fhould, in like manner, be believed for
what they fay. For, themain thing controvert-
ed, is, Whether Mr. Goodman were at this Meet-
ing ? Thele Witnefles for the Prifoner fay, they
did not fce him there; at leaft they do not re-
member it. Mr. Porter, and Mr. Gosdinan him-
felf fays, he was there. Now, thefe Things a-
greed,and admitred, would make a very confiftent
clear Evidence, that Mr, Goodizzi was there, tho’
the Maiter and Drawers did not oblerve, or do
not remember his being there.

Ther ain Officer was [worn 1o keep the Fury, who
awithdrew to Confider of their Verdily aid a-
bout Thiee Quarters of an Hour after ieturiied
ziato Court.

Cl.of 4ir. Gentlemen, an{wer to your INames.
Henry Sherdvook.

Mr. Sherbrook. Bere. And lo of the'Reft, &e.

Cl.of A+ Are you all agreed of your Virs
dict?

Fury, Yes.

Vor. IV.
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Cl. of 4rr. Who fhall fay for you?

Fury, Our Foreman.

Cl. of Arr. Ser Peter Cook to the Bar, («0hicls
was donc) Peter Ceok hold up thy Hand, (which
be did ) Look upon the Pritoner ; how {ay you,
Is he guilty of theHigh-U'reafon whereof he ftands
Indictud, or not guilty?

Foreman. Guilty. '

Cl. of Arr. What Goods, or Chattels, Lands,
or Tenements had he at the Time of the Trealon
committed, or at any Time fince?

Foreman. None to our Knowledge.

Cl.of 4rr. Then hearken to your Verdict as the
Court has recorded it: You {ay that Peter Cook
is guilty of the High-Trealon wheicof he ftinds
Indi@ed, but that he had no Goods, or Chattels,
Lands, or Tenements at the Time of the High-
Trealon committed, or at any Time fince to your
Knowledge, and fo you fay all. |

Jury., Yes.

Cl. of 4rr. Gentlemen, the Court difmiffes you,
and thanks you {or your Scrvice.

Tlen the Court adjourned #ill Five o'clock in 1le
Evemng,

PostT MERIDIE M.

About Six o'clock, the Conrt being, by Preclamai:-
oty refun’dy the Prifoncry convitledy was brought
to the Bary in order to Judgment.

Cl. of Arr. Peter Cooky hold up thy Hand
(which be did.) thou ftand’ft convited of High-
Trealon, for compafling and imagining the Death
of his Mujetty King //uliam the Third, and for
adhering to the King's Encmies: What can’ft
thou fay for thy felf; why the Court fhould not
give thee Judgment ro die according to the Law:

Cook. My Lord Mayor, myv Eyes ure very bad,
therefore I defire your Lordthip would be pleated
to take this Paper, and that it may be read.

Cl. of Arr. Have you any Thiag to fay in Ar-
reft of Judgrent?

Cook. 1 defire my Paper may be read.

(1t was handed up to she Court, aiud then deli-
vered down to Mr, Attorncy General, gid the
King’s Counfel, but aot openly read.]

My, Recorder, [ Sir Salathicl Lovedl.] Mr. Gook,
the Court have read your Paper you fent up, and
have communicated it to the King’s Counlel; if
you have any Thing to move in an Arrcft of
Judgment, this is your Time, and we will hear
you; butasforany Reprefentation of your Cafe
to any others, that muit be confidered of after-
wards, you are now called to your Judgment.

Cook. 1 did not know that I might offer any
thing afierwards, but if your Lordihips think
fit to communicate that to my Lord Juftices, I

{ubmit it to you.
M. Recorder. Mr. Cogk, there is nothing ap-

pears upon this Paper that is Matter of Law, and
{o not ferviceabls to you now, and thercfore what
you defire in it, the Court will confider of after-
wards.

Cook. 1do not underftand the La'w, my Lord, -
but I have heard the Courr ought to he ot Coun- |
{el for the Prifoner, and I defire I may not {uficr
by my Ignorance.

My, Recorder. I declareit, for my part, T know
nothing that you can have any Advantage of, in
Arrctt of Judement; 1t I did, you fhould notlole

B2 the
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the Benefir of it, and you have had your Counfel needs know that in this Place we frequently con-

afligned, who have pleaded for you without re-
{traint; and if there had been any Matter of Law

demn ro Dcath, Clippers, Coiners, Thieves, and
Robbersyand other fuch like Criminals, and that

that would haveavailed you in the Arreflt of Judg- juftly and neceflarily too, tor the Prefervation of

ment, no doubt, they would have laid hold of
that Advantage for you.

Cook. ! can't tell,myLord,what isMatter of Law,

My. A1t. Gen. Your Lordthip obferves, they
took all the Objeftions that they could to the In-
dictment, but there was none that they could fix.

Cl. of Arr. Then Crier make Proclamation,
(which was done oi bsth Sides of the Court.)

Crier. Oyes, All Manner of Perfons are com-
manded to keep Silence while Judgment is 1n
giving, upon Pain of Imprifonment.

Cook. My Lord, may I have my Paper again?

Mr. Recarder. 1f you think 1t may be any Ser-
vice to you to leave it with the Courr, you may
do {o; or if you defire it, you fhall have it again.

Ceok, 1 defire your Lordihip to keepit.

M. Recorder. T will receive it, and it fhall not
be buried, I 2fure you. -

Cook. 1 don’t hear what the Court fays,

M. Recorder. You fay you did not hear what
was {aid toyou: If youdefire to have your Paper
again, you thall haveit; butif you defire to have
it communicated Above, the Couit will confider
ir, and take care of that too.

Cook. I defire your Lordfhip would do ir.

Then the Recorder procecd:d to give Fadzincit.

r. Cook. T think it ufeful to the Publick, and
alfo at this Time 1o you, to obferve, Thar the
Reign of the late King Fames, was, throughout,
one intire Defign and Projeét form’d, in conjun-
Etion with the Freach King, totally to fubvert our
Religion, Laws, and Libertizs, which grew o
apparent to the Subjects of thefe Nations, in {o
many Inftances of fatal Confequence, manag'd in
fuch a Method, and advanc’d {o far, thar the
People of thele Kingdoms,ofall Qualities,Ranks,
and Degrees,did ind it 2" olutely neceflary for the
Prefervation of themlelves and the neighbour-
ing Nations now in Alliance with us, to pray in
Aid of the then Prince of Orange, as a Perlon not
only nearly allied to this Crown, but allointircly
in the Intereft of thefe Kingdoms, and thofe
neighbouring Princes, and Countries thar lay ex-
pofed to the Violence and ambitious Infults of
France. And the Love which that noble Prince
did bear, not only to us, but to our Neighbours
alfo, difpofed hiim to embrace that Invitation, up-
on whofe Arrival here,that Predecefior, from Mo-
tives that were invifible, declin’d the Kingdom
and the Government, and left the People to them-
{elves; whercupon his prefent Majefty was ne-
ceflarily and rightfully placed upon that Throne
he {o welldelerved: And this is now that King,
for whofe Prelervation all good People have aflo-
ciated, and fpare neither Lives nor Treafure to
fupport and to continue in the Government; and
thisis that King whom you have traiteroufly con-
{pired, not only to dethrone, but 2lfo todeftroy;
and this is that People that you would have to
{wim in Blood, and lofe their Religion, Liberty,
and Property. Thefe Matters need 2 Hiflory to
rclate 4t large, I only touch them fhortly, to move
good Men to rejoice in their Deliverance, and
to move you ferionfly to reflect vpon the [ein-
oufntefs of your Crime.

. Mr. Cooky your are an Englifh Man and muft

the Innocent, and for the common Good. OF
what Condemnatton muit you, and fuch as you,
be worthy then, who have {o horridly endea-
vour'd and defign’d the fatal Ruin and Defbruéti-
on of your own native Country, and to render
your Fellow-Subjelts a mifcrable Prey, and ac
the beft to become Slavesand Valluls to 4 foreign
Prince?

Let me alfo mind you, that nothing is more
{ure, than that after this, you mufk receive a Judg-
ment in another World; and if thar pafs againtt
you too, that Sentence will be mott Terrible, ard
your Sufferings without End: And thercfore
do advile you to employ the few Days you have
yet to live, in Preparation for your future Hap-
pinels, which cannot be duly dene without a full
Confeflion of this, as well as other Crimes you
have been guilty of : Itherefore charge it to you,
as your Duty, and leave it with you at your ut-
moft Peril, that you honeftly and faichinily dif-
cover all you know of this mhuman and traites
rous Confpiracy, and all the Per{ons that you do
know to be guilty of it: This will be the great-
elt Seivice you can do 1n this World, and will
be the beft preparatory Step that you can take
towards a better,

And, Sir,

Therc now remains no more for me to {iy,
but to pronounce that Scntence on you which
the Law direéts: Ard that is this,

That you, Peter Cook, e tnken Dence to the
Place from whence you came, aud thence le
drawi upoin ¢ Huidle to the Place of Exe-
cution, wkere you aie 10 be hanged by ile
Neck, aid cut down befere you be dead s
thar youar Bowels be taken ocuty and yorr
Privy-Mewbess cnt from your Body, aud
both burict in your Sichts that your Flead
be cat offy and your Body divided into four
Quarters, wbich Head and Quarters are to
be at the King's Difpofaly and God Almigh-
1y have {lercy npon your Soul.

Cook. 1 beg, if your Lordfhip pleafe, that I
may have my Relations and Fiiends come to fee
me, and fome Divines, the better to prepare me
for another World.

NMr. Recorder. Mr. Ceok, if you'll give the
Namcs of thofe that you would have comc to
you, to the Officer, Care fhall betaken in it
and you will not be denied any reafonable
Helps that may be had for your Preparation for
Eternity. |

MMr. A1t. Gen. Tt is not fit he thould be deny’d
any reafonable Help; but in the mean pime
there 1s Reafon for the Government to be cru-

tiotis upon the Acccunt of what has notoricully
paft 1 the Cale of fome others.

Mr. Recorder. 1f he give in the Names, it will
be confider’d of, and Care taken that nothing
be done, but what is reafonble and fafe,

Then the Prifoizr was takes from the Bar, asnid
the Conrt procecded to what was reinaining of the
Dufiucfs of the Seffians.

He was afterwards parden’d, upon Conditicis of
tranfporting Limfelf, and wever veiwrniiz any siove
70 England.

CLX.
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CLX. The TRIALof ALEXANDER KNIGHT-
LEY, ar the King's-Bench, for High-Trealon, May
20, 1696. Palche 8 Will. I1I.

Thurfday, April 30, 1696.

et HIS Day the Keeper of Newsgate
?3"‘3&@ brought to the Bar of the Court of
ST 5 ins i

ﬁﬁ :%@ King's - Beneh, ff:?xﬂﬂdf}‘ Kanightley,
Eg@m@ by Virtue of a Writof .Ha!zms Cf;i{?ﬁ{,
£7) Iffuing out of that Court for that Pur-
pofe,to be Arraigned upon an Indictment of High-
'Freafon, found againit him at the Seflions of Oyer
and Zerminer, holden for the County of Aliddlejex 5
which Indi¢tment by Writ of Certiorari was re-
moved into the Aiu7's-Beach. 'The Return of
the Habeas Corpus was delivered, and then the
Prifoner was Arraigned thus,

Cl. of dir. Alexzuder Kuightley hold up thy
Hand (which be dif.) Thou {tandeflt Indicted by
the Name of Llexsnder Aunizhiley, late of ihe Pa-
rith of St, Panl Covent-Garden in the County of
Middlefex, Gent,  For that you not having the
Fear of God in your Heart, nor weighing the
Duty of your Allegiance, but being moved and
feduced by the Inftigation of the Devil, asa falfe
Traitor againft the moft Serene, moft Nlluftrious,
and moft Excellent Prince, our Sovereign Lord
Hilliam the Third, by the Grace of God of Eig-
land, Scotland, France and Irelond, King, Defen-
der of the Faith, 5¢. Your {upreme, true, right-
ful, lawful, and undoubted Sovcreign Lord, the
cordial Love and true and due Obcdience, Fide-
lity, and Allegiance, which every Subjeét of our
faid Lord the King that now is, towards him our
{aid Lord the King fhould bear, and of right
ought to bear, withdrawing, and utterly to ex-
tinguifh, intending and contriving, and with all
your Force purpoling and defigning the Govern-
ment of this Kingdom of Eigland, under nim our
f2id Lord the King that now is, of righr duly,
happily, and very well eftablithed, altogether to
fubvert, change, and alter, asalfo the fame our
I.ord the King ro Death, and final Deftruction
to put and bring, and his faithful Subjelts, and
the Freemen of this Kingdom of £xngland, nto
intolerable and moit miferable Slavery to Lewis
the French King to tubdue and inthral, the tenth
Day of February,in the feventh Year of the Reign
of our faid Sovereign Lord the King taat now Is,
and divers other Days and Times,as well tefore
as after, at the Partth of St. Pawl Covent-Gasden,
aforcfuid, in the County aforchaid, falfly, malici-
oufly, deviliflily, and traiterouily you did coms
pafs, imagine, and contrive, purpofe, delignyand
intend, our faid Sovereign Lond the King that
now is, to flay, kil, and murder, and a mife-

rable Slaughter among the faithfel Subjects of our -
faid Liord the King,throughout this whole King-
dom of England, to make and caufe; and your
foid moft wicked, moft impiouns, and deviiih
T eafons, and traiterous Compaflings, Contrivan-
ces and Purpoles aforefaid, to fuihl, perfect, and
bring to effect, you the faid " Alexgnder Kuightley
afterwards, to wit, the fame tenth Duy of Fedia-
ary, in the Year abovelard, at the Parifh alore-
{a1d, in the County aforefiid, and divers other
Days and Times, as well before as after, there
and elfewherein the fame County, filily, mali-
cionfly, advifedly, fecretly, traiterouily, and with
Force and Avms, with very many other Traitors
to the Jurors unknown, did meet, propofe, treat,
confuls, confent, and agree, him our {aid Lord
the King that now is,by lying 1n waitand decest,
to affaflinate, kill, and murder, and that execra-
ble, hoirid, and detcfiable Affaflination and kil-
ling, the fooner to exccute and perpetrate, after-
wards, to wit, the fame Day and Ycar, and divers
other Days and Times at the Parifh atorefaid, in
the County aforcfiid, traiteroufly you did treat,
propofc, and confult with thofe Traitors, of the
Ways, Manner, and Means, and the Time and
Place where, when, how, and in what Manner,
our faid Sovereign Lord the King, fo by lying in
wait, might be flain and killed, and that yeu did
confent, agree, and affent with the fame Tral-
tors, that forty Men on Horfeback, or therea-
bouts, of whom you the {aid Alexander Kuightley
wete to be one, with Guns, Muskets, and Pi-
{tols, charg’d with Guupowder and lcaden Bul-
lets, and with Swords, Rapicrs, and other Arms,
armed, thould lie in wair and be inambuth, the
{ame our Lord the King in his Coach being when
he thould go abroad to attack, and that a certain
and competent Number of thefe Men fo arm’d,
upon the Guards of our f21d Lord the King, him
then atrending, and being with him {hould fct up-
on, and fhould fight with them and {ubdue theu,
whilit oihers of the {ime Men {oarmed, Liim our
fuid Lord the King thould aflailiaze, killy flay,
and murder; and you the faid Aewander Knight-
Iry, your Treafons and all your traiterous Ingen-
tions, Defigns,and Contrivances afore{nd, toexe-
cute, perform, fulfil, and bring to cfiect, after-
wards, to wit, the aforcfaid tenth Dey of Febrit-
ary, in the feventh Year abovefaid, at the Parifh
aforefzid, in the County aforctaid, diverte Horles,
and very many Arms, Guns, Muskets, Raners
and Swords, and other Weapons, Ammunitien,
and wariike Things, and military Inftrume .,
filfly,
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fatily, malicioufly, fecretly, and traiterouily you
did obtain, buy, gather rogether, and procure,
and to be bought, obtain'd, gathered together,
and procured, did caufe with that Intent to ule,
employ, and beftow them inand about the dete-
table, horrid,and execrable Aflafination, Killing,
and Murder, of our faid Lord the King that now
1s, as aferefaid; and che fame Premifics, the more
fafely, and furely to execute, do, and perform,
you the {uid Arexander Kinightley, with one Edward
King late {or High-Treafon, in contriving and
con{piring the Death of cur faid Lord the King
that now Is, culy convicted and attainted, by the
Confent and Affent of divers of the T'raitors and
Confpiratorsaiorcfaid in the faid tenth Day of Fe-
bruaryinthe feventh Year abovelaid, traiterondly
did go and come to the Place propos’d, where
fuch intended Affaffination, Killing, and Murder,
of our faid Lord the King, by lying in wait fhould
be done, performed, and commited, to view,
{earch, and oblerve, the Conveniency and Fitreis
of the fame Place for fuch lying in wair, Affafhina-
tion, and Ki'ling. there to be made, performed,
and commirted, and that Place {o being {een and
oblerved, afterwards, to wir, the fame Day and
Year, your Oblervations thereof to fome ot the
faid Tr:itors and Confpirators, you did relate and
impart, to wit, at the Parifh aforefaid, in the
County aforefaid, againit the Duty of your Alle-
giance, and again{t the Peace of our faid Sovercign
Lord the King thatnow is, his Crown and Digni-
ty, and againit the Form of the Statuten this Cafe

made and provided. How fay’it thou, #lexaudes

Kuizhtley, art thou guilty of the High-Trealon
whereof thou ftinds indicted, or not guiley?

Kaiohtley. Not guilty.,

Cl of .drv. Culpiit, How willyou be Try’a ?
Kuishtlzy. By God and my Country.

Cl. of Arr. God fend you a good Deliverance.

Kightlcy. With Submiffion to your Lordfhip, 1
did not expeét, ia this weak Condition that I am
i1, to be broughrat this Time, to the Bar; That
having taken me offext: _mely from the Applica-
tion that | thould have otherwife made of my felf
tomy Defence; bur {eeing thereisno Mercy to
be had here, I will endeavour to have Patience,
and undergo my Fate as well as I can.

L.C. 7. Holt. Mr. Kuightlery you have no Rea-
{fonto find fault; for when I was acquainted you
were ili, and defired a Phyfician, I ordered one to
be {ent toyou; and Yefterday in the Afternoon
you fent Word you were fo fick, that you could
not be brought hither to Day; but your [Ji.étor
was with me lalt Nighr, and upon Difcourfe with
him, I didapprehend you werenot fo ill, bur that,
efpecially confidering the Weather, you might
very lafely be brought to the Bar to Day.

Kuightley, The Gentleman that brought me the
Copyol the Indictment found me very ill, and I
have been ill ever fince this Day {even-nighe,

L. C. F. Hoir. Wellhnow lerustec what Time
we {hall appoint for the Trial.

Ady. A1t. Gen, { Siv Thamas Trever.] When your
Lordfhip pleafes to appoint.

L. C. 7. Holt. T think you cannot Ty it cill
IPednefday Fortnight.

My. Clark, That Day is free, my Lord.

L.C.F. Holt. lt being upon a Cestiorari, the
Peinire {acias muft be returnable upon 1 common
Day; and there muft be fifteen Days between the
70/ and the Return,
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My, Att. Gen, May it not be Zuefday then, that
the Jury appear?

L. C.J. Holt. You cannot have it before 7724- -
aefday, tor that is the Return-day.

Mr. Clark. Tuefdny Fortmght 1s appointed for
the Trial between Pride and the Earl of Bath,

NMr. A4t Gen. Then it muft be upon Wediefday,
for there malt be fifteen Days between the Teffe
ard the Return.

L. C. 7. olt. Well, take back your Prifoner ;
and bring him hereagain on 77eduefday Fortnighe,
you thall have a Kule for it.

Tlein the Prifvner wras carvied back.

Die Mercurii Ficefino Maii, 1696. In
Banco Regie, Dominus Rex wer/fus
Kmghtley.

5~ HIS Day being appointed for the Trial of

& the Prilonery ke was brought ro fefruin-
fler-Iiail, and the Jury were call’d over as foon as
the Court appeared in the Hall, and the Defanl-
ters recorded ; and about Eleven ofthe Clock the
Prifsner was brought to the Bar. |

Clerk of the Crown. Alexander Knightley, hold
up thy Hand, (which le did.) Thofe good Men
that thou fhalt hear called, and perfonally appear,
arc to paf between our Sovercign Lord the King
and thee, uponthe T'rial of thy Life and Death :
If therefore thouwould'ft challenge them, orany
of them, thy Time is to {peak unto them as they
come to the Book to be Sworn, before they be
Sworn.

L.C. 7. Helt. Mr. Kuightl:y, 1 perceive you
have 2 Defire to {peak fomething 3 let us hear
what you have 1o {ay.

Anightley. 1 humbly beg your Lordfhip’s Leave,
that I may {peak beforc the Jury be called. What
I have to fay, Ibeg I may have your Leave to

read, becaufe I have 2 bad Memory.
Y ILord, Ihl:pc to.fave the Jury

(REML)B;/

and the Witnefles againft me a
great deal of Trouble, and defign to take up ve-
ry little of your Lordihip’s Time: Buct in the
firft Place I think my felf obliged to thank your
Lorathip for your great Indulgence, in granting
me fo much Time between my Arraipnment and
Trial; the greateft Part of which I have em-
ployed to avpear before the great Tribunal of
Hcaven.

| {peak in the Face of the World here, That
I am convinced 1 cannot hope to be happy here-
after, without a juft Abhorrence of, anda fincere
Repentance tor that Crime for which I here fland
Indited.

And fince Confeflion isan effential Part of Re-
pentance, ) do acknowledge I was to have been
concern'd in fome Part of the barbarous Affafii-
nation, and was vnhappily furprized into a Con-
{cnt to adt in ity though in my Heare I did abo-
minate the I'altas much asany Man living ; but
under lome honourable and fair Pretences | was
drawn in at firfty and then of a fudden became
(o far engaged, that by amiftaken Notion of Ho-
nour, I thought I could not retreat without the
Infamy of Cowardife,

My Lord, | humbly crave your Lordthip’s Per-
miffion, to acquaint you, how that jome Time

fince

r
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his Majefty’s moft Honourable Privy Council,
where ildn affure your Lordfhip I did freely own
and fully difcover my being concerned in that
horrid Defign ; and I here openly confefs the fame
with that Sorrow and Rcpentance as becomes 2
Man of Honour and Confletence.

My Lord, there is one Circumftance particolar
in my Cale, I moft humbly beg leave to infitt
upon, and urge to your Lordfhip in my behalf,
which 15, that it was upon my Confeffion (as I
conccive) that Mr, Elarris, now a principal Evi-
dence againtt me, was firft difcovered 3 fo that
my own Confeflion has been a great Means to
take away my Life.

I expecltafter a few Words now in this folemn
Court to receive from your Lordfhip the Sen-
tence due upon the Convi€tion, from my own
Mouth, of a Crime for which I cannot in modefty
hope, fo much above my Deferts, the King’s mott
Gracious Pardon; yet the Greatnefs of my Of-
fence does not rob me of all Thoughts of Mercy,
whillt I throw my felf abfolutely and entircly at
his Majeity's Feet for it; and I humbly beg of
your Lordihip as a Privy-Councelior, that you
would reprefent my unfortunate Cafe to their Ex-
cellences the Lords Juftices of Engliud, as an Ob-

Ject of his Majetty’s Favour.
And now, my Lord, I fhall not detin your

Lordfhip and the Court any longer, but my next
Words convict and lay me under the juft Sentcnce
of Death: So to my IndiGtment I beg Leave to
plead guilty, and throw my felf cntirely upon the
King’s Mercy, and do defire my former Plea to
my {ndi¢tment may be withdrawn.

Cl.of the Crown. Thou hatt been Indifed and
Arraigned of High-Treafon, in compaffing and
imagining the Deathand Deftruétion of the King ;
how fay'lt thou Alexander Kuightley, art thou
guilty of the High-Treafon whereofthou ftand’ft
indicted, or not guilty?

Kinghtley, Guilty, my Lord.

Cl.of the Crown. Artthou content to withdraw
thy Plea, Not guilty. “

Kuightley. Yes, Sir.

Cl.of the Crown. Do you plead to the Indi-
ment guilty or not guilry?

Kiightley, I am guilty.

M. der. Gen. Thenmy Lord we defire, fince
hie relinquithes his Plea of Not guilty, that you
will fecord his Confeffion; and fince he has
confeft the Indi¢tment, we have nothing more to
do but wait the. Judgment of the Court.

L.C.J. Holt. We fhall not give Judgment

now. |
Mr. Att. Gen. It the Prifoner haveany thing to

lay for himfelfyour Lordfhips I {uppofe will hear

him to ir. _
L. C. ¥. Holt. But 1fay we cannot by the Courle

of the Court give Judgment now, forafiera Pe;-
{on is convited here, whether by Confeflion or
Verdict, he ought to have four Days from the
Time of fuch Confeflion or Verdié, to move-in
Arrefl of Judgment, if theré be fo many Days
of the Term remaining, if not, thenthe longeft
Time that canbe had in the Termis ullow’d: In
(Trial 74.) Stayley's Cafe it was otherwife praéti-
fcd, Judgment was given the fame Day, that was
n the Time of the Popifh Plot, and is a Caie
not to be imitated, becaufe not juftified by any
Precedent before that Time or fince, but it has

_been always obferv’d to have four Juridical Days

L

- for High-Trea-fon.

fince 1vas brought before fome of the Lords of  for moving i Arreft of
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‘m Judgment, if fo many
remain of the Term, , ‘ A

Die Lune Vicefrro Quinto Die-Mais
An. Dom. 1696,

Being the loff Day of the Term, the Prifomr
was brought from Newgate fo the King’s
Bench-Bar,

Mr. Att.Gen, If your Lordfhip pleafe, T defire
the Judgment of the Court to be pronounced up-
on Mr. Knightley upon his Conviticn,

CLof the Crown, Alexander Knightley hold up
thy Hand. {#7hich he did.] Thou haft been Indi&-
ed and Arraigned for High- Treafon in compaffing
and imagining the Death of the King, and adhe-
ring to the King's Enemics 3 what can'ft thou fay
tor thy felf, why Judgment thould not be given
againft thee to die according to the Law ?

Kiightley. 1 have nothing more to fuy,
Lord, than what I have faid.

my

Cl. of the Crown. Crier, make Proclamation for Sie
lence. W f_JEc:*b was done on both Sides the Court.

Cryer. Oyez: Qur Sovereign Lord the King
{traitly charges and commands sll manner of Per-
fons to keep filence while Judgment is in giving,
upon pain of [mprifonment.

L. C, JoHolt. M. Kuightley, You are by your
own Confeflion conviéted of High-Treafon in de-
figning the Murder of theKing and the Subver-
fion of the whole State of Euglaud, in promoting
an Invafion from the French, itsmoft antient and
inveterate Enemics. ’

It hathappeared before your Arraionment, not
only by the Evidence that hath been given at
former Trials; but even by the Signs of the
Times and the Manner of fome Mens Actings,
that there hath been for fome Years laft paft a
T'rain of Plots and Confpiracies again{t this Go-
vernment, and when the various Mcans which the

Confpirators did project among them/(elves for its
Ruin proved incffeCtual, it wasar Jaft refolved a-
mong {ome of - the Confpirators to aflaffinate the
King, as the moft certain Way of accomplifhing
their End. ~

In which Defign you were deeply engsged and
‘was an active Inftrament in the carrying it on,
being fent to view the Ground on both Sides the -
Water, and with others that were fent with you
reported your Opinion, which was the moft
convenient Place to attack the King and his

Guards.
And though you did, the laft Time you were

at the Bar, urge by way of Extenuation of your
Crime, that vou being engaged in the Intereft
of the late King, and thereby {upported, you

was furprized into this barbarous Defign, which

‘being -propofed to you, you thoughi your felf

obliged in Honour to engage in it; which is {o
far trom an Extenvation, that it is an high Ag-
oravation: For Men of honourable Principles,
tho’ moft zealoufly difpofed to the Advancement
of any particular Intereft, yet always deteft the
Ufe of bafe and vile Means. Thercfore when

the Affaffination of the King was propofed, you

had an Opportunity to have retreated with Ho-

nour; and might have refufed to be further con-
| cerned
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ceined; but you rather purfued this Wicked En< * the : ‘
A - by fuch a wicked Treafon givéh a Demonftra~

terprize with great Zeal. .

And tho’ you are by your Profeflion a Romar
Catholick, and may for that Reafon.think thac
your Crime is mitigated, s becaufe you acted in
the Behalf of a Prince’ of *jour own Religion,
which you hoped thereby to introduce: Not-
withftanding all' which, your Offence is highly
aggravated in refpeét of the Ingratitude and Fol-
ly with which it is attended.  For there 1s no
Englifs Papift thdt is Matter ofany Property, but
he 15 interefted in the Prefervation of this Go-
vernment, to which the whole Party of them hath

been, and ftill are continually obliged for its Mo~

deration and Juftice; for inftead of being expo-
fed to the Severity of thole Laws to which they
are obnoxious, they have had the fame Indul-
cence in the Enjoyment of their Religion, and
the fame Prote&ion, and as much Benchitinthe
Diftribution of the Common Juttice of the Realm,
as any other of the King’s Subjets; therefore
none of them could ever expett 1o mend their
Condition under a Freach Domination. But the
contrary is forefeen by all confidering Menj; for
the Englifh Papift, as well as Prot~{tant, would
have been reduced to a moft difmal State if you
had obtained vour End.

Fer it is againft all the Rules of Reafon, and
the Expcericnce of all Ages, toimagine, thart the
French King would fpare Euglifh Papifts more
than Proteftants; for it 1s not Zeal to Religion,
or Affecticn to the Intereft of the late King, that
hath excited him to invade Eaglaud, but it's his
Prideand Ambition to conquer the three King-
doms, and to reducc this to be a Province to
France: Indeed the Pretence of reftoring the Jate
King, and introducing the Popifh Religion may
{erve to delude fome warm and unwary Zealots
to engagein his Afliftance, who do not confider,
that if they {hould be fuccefsful they would beas
certainly deftroyed as others, but with more Dif-
advantage to themfelves  For after they f{hall
have {urvived the Liberty of their Country, have
embrued their own Hands in their Countrymen’s
Blood, they will be at the Mercy of their Con-
queror, who can never think it his Intereft to
truft them, but will defpife them for being {uch
villainous Traitors to their own Country. Nay,
rather, thele Luclifbinen, who by their Courage
and Refolution fhall endeavour to defend their
Country, though they thould be unfortunately
vanquifhed, will meet with a much better Re-
ception, for they will have given Affurances that

théy may bé confided ini, when the others have

tion to the contrary. |, |

There being then nothing fo be faid that can
palliate fuch a Crimé ds that of which you are
convifted; but you having taken a different
Courfe the laft time you were. at the Bar from -
what you took at firft, you have reliiiquifhed your
Plea of Not guilty, and have confefled the In-
di¢tment; I wifh out of Charity to your Peifon
it was us fincere as (I think it) it was prudent
in you; for aftér feveral Convictions of others
that were your Accomplices, you could notbea
Stranger to the Evidence upon which they were
greunded, you muft theretore 1n all Probability
have expelted to have undergone the fame Iate,

If your Confeflion te a real Effect of your Re-

pentance, you will reap the Advantage of it in
the next \World, bur what Confequence it will
have in this I cannot fay, For 1he Heast of the King
is in the Hand of the Alinighty, which as the Ri-
vers of W atery be turvueth whitherfocver he will.
Live therefore for the Time to come in expectati-
on of a fpeedy Death, and prepare your felf to
appear before another Judgment-Seat ; to the ma-
king of which important Freparation [ fhall dif-
mifs you, fnit difcharging the Court of the Duty
now incumbent upen it,m giving that Judgment
which the Law hath appointed. And the Court
doth award,

That you be conveyed frow bence fo Newgate,
the Prifon from «whence you came, and
from thence you are to be drawn upon 8
Hurdle to 'Uyburn; <where you aie 1o be
hanged by the Necky and while yon are
alive {0 be cut dowsny your Privy-Aiembeys
areto be cut offy and your Bowels to be cut
out of your Body and TLurat in your View s
sour Head is to be cut off, and your DBody

" is to be divided into fory Parts, and your
Head aid yonr Quarters are to be difpojed
where bis Majefly fhall appoint.  And
I pray God to hawe Mercy upen jour
Soul.

Kiightley. My Lord, I am rruly forry for what
I have done, and I humbly thank your Lordfhip,

and the rcft of the Judges for your Favour to
me.

Then the Prifoncs was carvied back 10 Newgate,
and afterwards was gracionfly pardoi’d,
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